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Department of Administration

200 South President Street
Post Office Box 17
Jackson, Mississippi 39205-0017

Harvey Johnson. Ir.
Mavor of the Ciry of Jackson

March 30, 2012

Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and
Citizens of the City of Jackson, Mississippi:

A requirement of Mississippi law is that local governments annually publish audited
financial statements. Accordingly, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR} for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 for the City of Jackson, MS is submitted
herewith. -

An unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the City of Jackson, MS has been
issued by Banks, Finley & White Co. for the year ended September 30, 2011. The
Independent Auditor’s Report is included in the front of the financial section of the CAFR.
The City of Jackseon is also required to have an audit performed in compliance with the
Single Audit Act of 1998 regarding grants received from the federal government. The
Single Audit report was issued by Banks, Finley & White Co.

The dedicated and professional staff of the Finance Division, Department of Administration,
prepared this report in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America {GAAP). We maintain that the data is accurate in all material
aspects and is presented in a manner designed to set forth fairly the financial activities of
the various funds of the local government. The responsibility for the accuracy of the data
and the fairness and completeness of the presentation, including any disclosures necessary
to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the fiscal affairs of the City, is entrusted
to the administration of the local government. We further assert that the internal controls
implemented provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of any
material misstatements.

All of the funds account groups and enterprise operations of the City of Jackson, MS, as
well as the Jackson Redevelopment Autherity (JRA)} and the Capital City Convention
Center Commission {component units of the city) are included in the 2011 CAFR. JRA and
the Capital City Convention Center Commission are presented as a proprietary fund type
within the CAFR because the City exercises significant oversight responsibility. The
approval of JRA’s administrative operating costs and appointments to its Board of
Commissioners are authorized by the City’s governing body. Additionally, JRA accounts
for its separate funds and maintains revenues sufficient to meet their operating costs, debt
service and system replacement and maintenance needs for their parking gafages and other
urban renewal projects. The Capital City Convention Center Commission is accountable as
a component unit of the City because of its fiscal dependency on the City of Jackson. Four
Enterprise Funds, which provide a variety of services on a fee-for-services basis, are among






those funds whose financial operations are included in the CAFR. These Enterprise Funds
are the Woater/Sewage Disposal System, Madison Sewage Disposal System,
Transportation, and Sanitation and Recycling.

Organizationally, the 2011 CAFR provides information in three major sections:
Introductory, Financial, and Statistical. The Introductory Section encompasses the Letter
of Transmittal, the Organizational Chart of the Executive Branch of the City of Jackson,
MS, and a list of principal elected and appointed officials. The Financial Section consists
of the Independent Accountants’ Report, the Basic Financial Statements, Notes to the
Financial Statements and the various individual fund and account group financial
statements and schedules. Additionally, a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis
are provided in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A}). We
recommend that the MD&A on pages 3-11 be carefully examined by the reader to provide
a more concise picture of the financial position of the City.

DESCRIPTION OF CITY OF JACKSON, MS

Historical Background

The City of Jackson, MS was founded in 1821 at the site of a trading post that was
situated on a "high and handsome bluff" on the west bank of the Pearl River, which is
located in the central region of the state. It is said that the trading post was operated by a
French-Canadian trader named Louis LeFleur, who gave the town its original name of
LeFleur's Bluff. The Mississippi Legislature wanted the seat of government moved out of
the Natchez area and into a more central location. Thomas Hinds, James Patton and
William Lattimore were then commissioned to locate the ideal site for the state capital.
Their report to the General Assembly was that LeFleur's Bluff had "beautiful and healthful
surroundings, good water, abundant timber, navigable waters, and nearness to the Natchez
trace.” A legislative act dated November 28, 1821 authorized the location to be the
permanent seat of government and that it would be named Jackson in honor of Major
General Andrew Jackson who later would become the seventh president of the United
States. A $3,500 contract was let to build Mississippi's first capitol, a two-story brick
structure 40 feet by 30 feet, where the opening session was held on December 23, 1822.
A second capitol building, populariy known as the "Old Capitol," was completed in 1840
and remained in use until 18903. The building, restored in 1961, has become Mississippi's
Historical Museum. The New Capitol building, a magnificent structure patterned after the
National Capitol, was completed in 1803,

During the Civil War, the town was ravaged and burned three times by Union troops under
the command of General William Tecurmseh Sherman. The destruction prompted the
unwelcome nickname of “Chimneyville.” Although less than 8,000 people lived in Jackson
at the turn of the century, its population began accelerating rapidly after 1900.






Jackson Today

Presently, Jackson has 173,514 citizens within it radius of 113 square miles. Since 1985,
the City of Jackson, MS operates under the mayor-council form of government. Prior to
1985, the commission form of government, which included a mayor and two
commissioners elected at-large, was in place. Currently, the municipal government is
comprised of the mayor, who is elected at large, and seven council members, who are
elected by ward. The mayor and council members, who have policy-making and legislative
authority, serve four-year terms. The Mayor appoints, and the City Council approves, the
Chief Administrative Officer, City Attorney, and eight department heads. City leaders are
committed to ensuring that the municipality has a healthy financial outlook while providing
essential services.

A comprehensive range of municipal services including public safety, street maintenance,
water, sewer, and sanitation services, social programs, recreation activities, cultural events
and general administration are provided to Jackson’s citizens. These services are provided
in the context of the broad public policy initiatives as determined by the elected officials of
Jackson, MS. Youth Development, Public Safety, Economic & Community Development,
Infrastructure & Transportation Enhancement, Reinventing Government and Cultural,
Social, & Recreational Services were the policy initiatives for FY 2011.

The City of Jackson, MS is required to submit its municipal budget on an annual basis to
the City Council for adoption on or before the fifteenth day of the last month in the fiscal
year. A budget process, linking policy initiatives, services, and available resources, is
utilized to develop the budget. As the primary financial planning and control document,
the budget provides the foundation for City operations. The budget is crafted to include
expenditures by fund: General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Proprietary, Trust, and
Capital; by department: Administration, General Government, Human & Cultural, Parks &
Recreation, Police, Fire, Personnel, Public Works, and Planning; and by category: Personal
Services, Supplies and Material, Other Services and Charges, and Capital Outlay. General
Property Taxes, Licenses and Permits, Fines and Forfeitures, Intergovernmental,
Admissions, Fees, Rentals, Interest, Other Revenues, and Operating Transfers are the
categories that comprise the revenue budget. During the fiscal year, department heads
may transfer resources within a department by following established guidelines. These
transfers, along with other budget adjustments, are incorporated into Budget Revisions that
must be approved by the City Council. The Executive Branch is afforded the opportunity
to submit a maximum of three Budget Revisions to the City Council for approval within the
fiscal year.

ECONOMIC QUTLOOK

The City is the seat of government for the State of Mississippi and home to a diverse
economy. In addition to governmental services, major industries located within the city
limits or in close proximity include the Nissan auto plant and manufacturers of power,
metal fabrication, airplane parts, and machine parts and engines. However due to the
national economic downturn, the city, state, and industries alike have been impacted by
the national recession. Jackson continues to be the site of the largest financial institutions
in the state.






Numerous healthcare facilities and health service agencies, inciuding the state’s only
medical school provide employment to more than 30,090 professionals and staff.

As the population, educational, cultural, medical, and governmental center of the state, the
Jackson metropolitan surrounding area has a relatively stable unemployment rate of 7.6
percent with an employed labor force of 248,900. This unemployment rate compares
favorably to the state's overalli unemployment rate of 9.5 percent. Over the previous
years, the unemployment rate has ranged from a high of 11.1 percent to a low of 9.5
percent for 2011.

Jackson, MS, however, is highly dependent upon the public sector as an economic engine.
While public sector employment is generally more stable than private sector employment,
the spin-off businesses and entrepreneurial opportunities that are needed for sustained
growth is not generated at the desired level. Thus, the economic development efforts
must look toward business-government partnerships as a part of the solution. Towards
that end, Jackson is poised to realize a number of developments of mixed use facilities in
the immediate future.

The City has also begun to benefit from a variety of downtown revitalization efforts.
These efforts include a recently renovated multi-modal transportation center, completion of
a major portion of a parkway project to connect downtown to Jackson State University,
and creation of an entertainment district in and around Farish Street, the oldest African
American nationally designated historic district. Occupancy in the downtown area is at 85
percent and is expected to remain stable. The high percentage of college-educated
residents who reside in Jackson is a positive trend that can further the City's efforts to
becoming a dynamic urban center.

The total renovation and completion of the King Edwards Hotel (Hilton Garden) and Class A
office space at the Pinnacle building along with the opening of the Standard Life Building
as a mixed use facility has generated a resurgence of downtown.

Jackson property owners pay property taxes for county, city, and school totaling $170.35
per $1000 of assessed value. The assessment rate is 10 percent for residential property,
15 percent for other real property and 30 percent for personal property. There is no local
income tax in Jackson.

FINANCIAL OUTLOOK

The City’s financial stability is evidenced by the general fund reserve, fund balance reserve
policy, bond ratings and other fiscal determinants. An Unrestricted General Fund Reserve
policy that is within range of the level cited by GFOA recommended practice has been
adopted by the City Council. The City's unreserved fund balance amounted to 25 percent
of the adopted General Fund operating revenues for FY 10.

The General fund balance available for future appropriation is $24,757,074 million, which
includes %$8,486,272 million attributable to the City’s General Fund reserve policy. An
additional $4,506,569 million is reserved for inventories and state tort claims.






The City remains an excellent place for investors with ratings of Aa2 on G.O. bonds and
Aa3 on Revenue bonds by Moody's and AA- on G.O. bonds and A+ on Revenue bonds by
Standard & Poor’'s. As a result of sound financial management practices, an upgrade was
received by the City on its Series 2009 General Obligation Street Resurfacing Bond from
Standard and Poor’s from “A+" to “AA-", and Moody's affirmed their “A1" rating on the
G. 0. bonds, but subsequently upgraded it to Aa2.

The estimated ratio of net bonded debt to estimated assessed valuations and the amount
of bonded debt per capita in FY 2011 are useful gauges of the City's debt position.

POPULATION: 173,614
BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA: $ 706
REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY ASSESSED VALUE: $ 1,034,755,714
NET BONDED DEBT (G.O}): $ 131,720,000
RATIO OF DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUE: 12.66%

The following charts reflect activities within the Debt Service Fund and Enterprise Fund:

BONDS OUTSTANDING

Amount Outstanding Amount Outstanding
Category Sept. 30, 2011 Sept. 30, 2010
General Obligation $ 131,720 $ 131,720
Special Obligation Bond — Pension - )
Tax Increment Limited Obligation 6,541 4,231
Bonded Debt $ 138,261 $ 135,951
Revenue Bonds 148,325 148,920
Urban Renewal Bonds - 10,9563 10,726

Component Unit
Total $ 297,639 $ 295,597

v






ENTERPRISE FUND - CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Net Income {Loss) 2011 2010
Water/Sewage Disposal Fund $ 7,662 $ 1,121
Madison Sewage Disposal Fund 10 24
Transportation Fund 559 1,689
Sanitation and Recycling Fund 414 1,106
Total Net Income $ 8,645 $ 3,940

The City of Jackson participates in two retirement systems administered by the Public
Employees’ Retirement System of Mississippi {PERS). Both systems are defined benefit
plans and include a multi employer, cost-sharing pension plan and an agent multi employer
pension plan. Substantially, the City of Jackson full-time employees participate in the multi
employer cost-sharing pension plan. Benefit and contribution provisions are established by
state law and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. The employer
and employees’ contributions represented 12.00 and 9.00% of covered payroll,
respectively. The contribution by the employee was raised by statute to 9.00%, effective
July 2010.

Additionally, the City maintains the Employees’ Group Benefit Fund {(Internal Service) to
account for the accumulation of revenues, principally contributions from the City of
Jackson and employees to be used to fund future liabilities and current payment of
employee medical claims and related administration expenditures of the City's group
benefit plan. Revenues totaled $8,076,210 and employee benefit costs were
$13,515,614 during fiscal year 2011. The City's General fund appropriated $4,667,045
to the Employees’ Group Benefit fund.

FINANCIAL POLICIES

There are several distinct policies that provide the framework for the financial operations of
the City. One such policy is the commitment to conservatism by the Executive Branch in
projecting its annual revenues. This policy provides a safeguard to drastic reductions in a
given budget cycle in the event of under budgeted or unbudgeted costs. The City of
Jackson, MS also has a policy to carefully allocate one time revenues such that operating
expenses are not increased.
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SELECT RECOGINTIONS
Recognized by Readers Digest as one of the best cities in America.
Selected as one of the Top 700 Places to live by in RelocateAmerica.

Selected as one of the five US Capital cities for EPA’s Greening America Capital’s
Programs.

Recognized as one of 700 Best communities for young people by America’s Promise
Alliance.

Certificate of Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA)} of the United States and Canada
awards a Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting to a governmental unit that
publishes a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR} that meets the GFOA
standards. GFOA awarded a Certificate of Excellence to the City in 2010 for its CAFR. A
Certificate of Achievement is valid for one year only. The City's management believes that
its 2011 CAFR confirms to the Certificate of Achievement program requirement and
therefore will submit it for review.

FUTURE INITATIVES

The Construction and development of a Convention Center Hotel remains a top priority for
the City of Jackson. It is expected that many developers will respond to the Reguest for
Proposals and once the hotel is developed will employ 300 persons within the hotel and
restaurant.

Farish Street Entertainment District is being develop as a tourist destination that will have
14 restaurants and clubs in phase one. These venues will provide live music, food and
opportunities for local talent to perform. The number of jobs is estimated at 600.

The 21 acre property known as the old school for the blind has been acquired and is the
proposed site for the District at Eastover Development which is proposed to include a
100,000 square foot office building, an 80-120-room hotel, a 45,000 square-foot grocer, a
restaurant, 125,000 square feet of retail and 120,000 square feet of residential units.

The Landmark Health Care Facility development is moving forward and will be a state of
the art five story medical office complex with medical offices and retail outlets located on
State Street.

Growth along the Mississippi Healthcare Corridor {Woodrow Wilson Drive) is expected in
the coming vyears with University of Mississippi Medical Center having hired 1,800
employees over the last 18 months.

The Highway 80 initiative plans for a cooperative effort amongst many different groups.

The City of Jackson is relocating 300 City employees to the Metro Center Mall to create a
basis for other businesses to locate within that area. The Jackson Redevelopment
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Authority has designated the Highway 80 corridor as an Urban Renewal Area and has
shown different sites to developers for future development.

Jackson State University has completed University Place. This mixed use development has
provided housing for students and faculty and the first floor has a number of retail
businesses to include the Penguin restaurant, an optometrist and a gallery. The second
phase of One University Place will include approximately 75 townhouses and around 40
single family units.
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BANKS, FINLEY,
WHITE & CO.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor Harvey Johnson, Jr.
and Honorable Mambers of the City Council
City of Jackson, Mississippi

We have audited the accompanying financlal statements of the govemmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Jackson, Mississippi (the City), as of and
for the year ended September 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. We also have audited the financial statements of
each of the City's nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise, and internal service funds
presented as supplemental information in the accompanying combining and individual fund
financial statements as of and for the year ended September 30, 2011, as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Jackson, Mississippi,
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the component units of the City of Jackson,
Mississippi, as follows: Jackson Redevelopment Authority and Capital City Convention Center
Commission which statements reflect assets and revenues of 22.98 percent and 12.31 percent,
respeclively, of the business-type activities funds. Those financial statements were audited by
other auditors, whose report thereon has been fumished to us, and our opinlon, insofar as It
relates to the amounts included for this component unit, is based solely on the report of the other
auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respect, the financiai position of the govemmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Jackson, Mississippi, as
of September 30, 2011, and the respeciive changes in financial position, cash flows and, the
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the Federal Grant Speclal Revenue
Fund, where applicable, thereof, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
30, 2012 on our consideration of the City of Jackson, Mississippi's internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government

308 HIGHLAND PARK COVE + RIDGELAND, MS 39157 « (601) 353-5423 « FAX (601) 353-5426
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Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of
our audit.

Accounting principies generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 11 and 81
through 95 be presented to suppiement the basic financial statements. Such informatlon, although
not a part of the basic financlal statements, is required by Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the supplementary information in accordance with the auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s response to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financtal statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance onh the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Jackson, Mississippi’s financial statements as a whole. The
introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical
section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of State, Local Governments, and Non-Profifs Organizations, and is also
not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City of Jackson, Mississippi. The
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the Unlted States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated
in all materials respects in relations to the financial statements taken as a whole. The infreductory
section and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financlal statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on them.

Bw‘,}mé«, WM ?[&f
BANKS, FINLEY, WHITE & CO.

Jackson, Mississippi
March 30, 2012



CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As financial management of the City of Jackson, we offer readers of the City of Jackson’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Jackson for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2011. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here
in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be
found on pages i - viii of this report.

Financial Highlights

« The assets of the City of Jackson exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$424 million {net assets). Of this amount, there is $42 million in unrestricted net assets, which may be
used to meet the gavernment's ongoing abligations to citizens and creditors,

» The government's total net assets decreased by $2.6 million.

= As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Jackson's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $56.5 million, a decrease of $.3 million in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately forty-four (44) percent of this total amount is $24.8 million (unassigned) and is
available for spending at the govermmment's discretion (unassigned fund balance).

« At the end of the current fiscal year unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $24.8 million,
or twenty-four (24) percent of total general fund expenditures.

+ The City of Jackson's total debt increased by $3.1 million (1.0 percent) during the current fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements ‘

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Jackson's basic
financial statements. The City of Jackson's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Government-wide finang¢lal statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Jackson's finances, in @ manner similar to a private-
sector business,

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City of Jackson's assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Jackson is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported [n this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods {e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the govemment-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Jackson that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental acfivities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-fype activities). The governmental activities of the City of Jackson include general
government, public safety, public works, human & cultural services, employee benefits, and interest on
long term debt. The business-type activities of the City of Jackson include water/sewer, transportation
and sanitation.

The government-wide financial statements include the City of Jackson itself (known as the primary
government), and a legally separate redevelopment authority and Capital City Convention Center
Commission for which the City of Jackson is financially accountable. Financial information for these
component units are reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary
government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12-13 of this report.



CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fund flnancial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Jackson, like other
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Jackson can be divided into two categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end
of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing
requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is nammower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Jackson maintains sixteen {16) individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
- expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Federal Grant Fund, Debt Service
Fund, Improvement Fund, 1998 General Obligation Bond Fund, 2003 General Obligation Bond Fund,
2006 General Obligation Bond Fund, and 2009 General Obligation Bond Fund, all of which are
considered to be major funds. Data from the other eight (8) governmental funds are combined into a sin-
gle, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-najor governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Jackson adopts an annual budget for all of its funds. A budgetary comparison statement has
been provided to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

The basic governmentat fund financial statements can be found on pages 14-25 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City of Jackson maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The City of Jackson uses enterprise funds to account for its Water/Sewage Disposal
System Fund, Madison Sewage Disposal System Funds, Transportation Fund and Sanitation Funds.
Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among
the City of Jackson’s various functions. The City of Jackson uses an Internal Service Fund to account for
its Employee Group Health Benefit Fund. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental
rather than business-type functions, it has been included within governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements,

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the
Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund and Sanitation Fund, both of which are considered to be major
funds of the City of Jackson. Data from the other fwo (2) proprietary funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. individual fund data for each of these non-major proprietary funds is provided
in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. The Intemai Service Fund is presented in
the Proprietary Fund financial statements as governmental activities.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 26-30 of this report.

Flduciary funds. Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for
others and therefore are not available to support City programs. The function of the City’s principal trust
fund Is discussed in Note 6.A.2. The reporting focus is on nét assets and changes in net assets and are
reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds. The purpose of the City’s Agency Funds
is to collect and remit to the related organizations the proceeds of a special sales tax received from the
State.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 31-32 of this report.
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Notes to the flnancial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the govermment-wide and fund financial statements.

The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 33-78 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financlal statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information conceming the Clty of Jackson’s progress in funding
its obligation to provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees. Required
supplementary information can be found on page 79 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds and non-
major proprietary funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on
pensions and other post-employment benefits. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules
can be found on pages 80-100 of this report,

Government-wide Flnancial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of 2 government's financial position.
In the case of the City of Jackson, assets exceeded liabilities by $424 million at the close of September
30, 2011.

By far the largest portion of the City of Jackson’s net assets (86 percent) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The City of Jackson uses these capital assets to provide services fo
cltizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Jackson’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

City of Jackson's Net Assets
{(amounts expressed in thousands)
Governrmental Business-lype
Activities Activiios Tolal
2001 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Cunent and other assets ¥ 150380 3 B1402 % T0.56 3 0,045 T 240,85 § 240,347
Capital assets 286,452 287523 350,564 347,256 637,016 634,779

Tolal assets 436,841 438925 441,120 436,301 877,981 875,226
Long-term liabllitles outstanding 183,589 177254 167,373 171,624 350,962 348,878
Other Liatifties 91,525 88,798 11,511 10,985 103,86 99,783

Total Lisbilitles 275114 266,052 178,884 182,609 453,998 448,661
Net assets:

Invesied in capital assets, net

of elated debt 180,357 188,172 183,735 176,170 364,002 364,342
Restricied 17,469 23585 - - 17,489 23,585
Unrestricted gen 00) gs.ae? 78,501 77,521 42,401 38,639

Total net assels . \ ¥ X%2,536 § 253,691 § 423WB2 "§ 4X%.5606

The City of Jackson’s total net assets decreased by $2.6 million during the current fiscal year.

Governmental actlvitles, Govemmental activities decreased the City of Jackson’s net assets by $11.1
million.



CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

City of Jackson's Changes in Net Assets
{amounts expressed In thousands)
Govemmental Business-type
Actlvities Activitles Total
2011 2010 2001 2010 2011 2010

Revenues:
Program revenues

Charges forservices $ 14,076 § 11424 % 59,580 § 53663 % 73,656 § 65,087

Operating grants and contributions 11,5670 17 441 706 865 12,276 18,106

Capital grants and contributions 5,025 2226 2,568 4,584 7,503 6,810
General revenues:

Property taxss 68,108 68523 - - 68,108 68,523

Sales taxes 31,656 31,268 - - 31,856 31,268

Franchise taxes 7.878 8,551 - - 7,878 8,551

Other 830 430 1,841 285 2,671 605

Total revenues 138,143 139,863 64,695 59,177 203,838 199,040

Expenses:

Genemal govemment 29,312 32358 - - 29,312 32,358

Public safety 58,166 56,922 - - 59,166 56,922

Public works 21,774 22237 - - 21,774 22,237

Human and cultural services 16,011 14859 - - 16,011 14,859

Empioyee benefits 8,625 8,764 - - 8,625 8,764

Interest on long-term debt 5,864 8830 - - 5,864 8,830

Water/Sewer - - 41,795 41,064 41,795 41,064

Nanmajor - - 6,764 7,856 8,764 7,856

Sanitation - - 11,156 10,243 11,156 10,243

Total expenses 140,752 143970 61,715 59,263 202,487 23,233

increase in net assels before transkers (1.609) (4107 2,980 (86) 1,371 {4,193)
Transfers (10,232) (4.027) 5,564 4,027 {4,668} -
Increase in net assets (11,841) (8.134) 8,544 3,841 (3,297} (4,193)
Netassets - October 1, 2010 172,875 1805611 253,692 249,751 426,567 430,362
Prior year adjustment 692 388 - - 692 398
Net assets - September 30, 2011 $ 161,726 § 172876 § 262,236 § 253,692 § 423,062 § 426,667

In FY 2007, the City issued $65 million in General Obligation Bonds on behalf of the Capital City
Convention Center Commisgsion to construct the Convention Center. A special sales tax levy was
established to pay the debt service for the bonds. The bonds couldn't be issued as revenue bonds
because of the uncertainty of the sales tax collections; therefore, the bonds were issued as GO Bonds of
the City with full, faith and credit of the City. The asset (the Convention Center facility) is the property of
the Capital City Convention Commission and recorded on the books of the Commission, but the liability
(the bonds to construct the Convention Center} is on the books of the City.

In prior years, the City had not presented the asset resulting from the 1997 confribution of bond proceeds
to fund the actuarial accrued liabllity for the MRS plan. In 2007, pursuant to GASB Statement No, 27,
Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, the City calculated its net pension
obligation, In adopting GASB Statement No. 27, the City has increased net assets — beginning of year in
the government wide financial statements of governmental activities by $25.6 million to recognize the net
pension asset caloulated under GASB Statement No. 27.



CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Jackson uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.



CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPP{
MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Jackson's governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the City of Jackson’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Jackson's net assets by $8.5
million. This increase is primarily in the Water Sewer fund.

Expenses and Program Revenues—Business—Type Activities
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As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Jackson's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $56.5 million, an increase of $.3 million in comparison with the prior year.
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Forty-four (44) percent of this total amount is $24.8 million which Is available for spending at the
government's discretion (unassigned). The remainder of fund balance is as follows:

+ Nonspendable - $1,813,522 is designated for inventories.
+ Restricted - $436,962 is designated for public safety.

 Committed - $6,085,607 is designated for state tort claims, capital outlay, and other restricted
purposes.

* Assigned - $33,442 is designated for cafeteria flexiable spending.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Jackson. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $24.8 million, while total fund balance reached $33.1
million. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.

During the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the City of Jackson’s general fund increased by
$2,302,632. The increase in fund balance for the federal grant fund $885,634 is for a variety of restricted
purposes. The debt service fund has a total fund balance decrease of ($745,124) which is partially
revenue from property taxes and the payment of debt. The increase in fund balance for the improvement
fund $4,102,928 is to liquidate contracts and purchase orders. The reduction in fund balance for the 1998
G0 Bond ($523,300) and the increase in fund balance for the 2003 GO Bond $81,905 is the natural
spend down of bond proceeds. The reduction in fund balance for the 2008 GO Bond ($2,478,081) is for
the construction of the Capital City Convention Center. The 2009 GO Bond had a fund balance decrease
of ($4,214,107) due to indebtedness incurred during the year.

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $1.8 million, all of which is reserved for the payment o
debt service.

Proprietary funds. The City of Jackson’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail,

Unrestricted net assets of the Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund at the end of the year amounted to
$75.4 million. The increase in net assets for the Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund was $7.6 million.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget expenditures were $14.1 million
increase and can be briefly summarized as follows:

e $2.8 million increase in capital outlay

« $9.1 million increase in contract services and charges
o $1.1 million increase in personnel services

e $1.1 million increase in supplies and materials

Significant budgetary expenditure variances between the final amended budget and actual results are as
follows:

Actual personne! services for all city departments was $3.0 million less than the final budget.
Actual capital outlay for all city departments was $3.5 million less than the final budget.

s Actual contractual services and charges throughout all city departments was $7.3 million less
than the final budget.

s Actual supplies and materials for all city departments was $.8 million less than the final
budget.



CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Jackson's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type
activities as of September 30, 2011, amounts to $837 million {net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assefs includes land, buildings and system, improvements, machinery and
equipment, park facilities, roads, and bridges. The total increase in the City of Jackson's investment in
capital assets for the current fiscal year was 1% (a .009% change for governmental activities and a 1%
increase in business activities).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

+ The increase in total net assets was the continued expenditure of prior bond issue proceeds
for expansion and replacement of infrastructure.

City of Jackson's Capltal Assets
(net of depredatlon)
(amounts expressed In thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Actlvities Total
2010 i O 1'; [ — 2011 2010

Land . T 1538 v  1.538 5 165 §  W1.H0
Building & systems 57,371 58830 43,043 44,018 100,414 102,848
Machirery and equipment 11,886 11331 16,022 17,225 27,908 28,556
infrastructure 118,589 122,401 146,556 147,581 265,147 263,982
Construction In progress 84,079 80433 143,103 136,594 27,182 217,027

Total $ 286452 $§ 287523 $ 350,584 § 347,256 $§ 637,016 § 634,779

Additional information on the City of Jackson’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 on pages 52-54 of
this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Jackson had total bonded debt
outstanding of $287 million. Of this amount, $138 million comprises debt backed by the full faith and
credit of the City. The remainder of the City of Jackson’s debt represents bonds secured solely by
specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds).

City of Jackson's Outstanding Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds and Other Loans
(amounts expressed In thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
0 2001 — 2000 — 2011 2010
General obligation bends $ 131,720 $& 131,720 $ - $ - $ 131,720 § 131,720
Revenue bonds - - 148,325 148,920 148,325 148,920
Taxincrement bonds 8,541 4231 - - 6,541 4,231
Special obligation bonds - - - - - -
Loans, noles and leases 28,838 23917 16,557 20,131 45,395 44,048
Total $§ 167,099 § 159866 $ 184,882 $ 169,051 $ 3M981 $ 328,919
10



CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of Jackson's total debt increased by $3.1 million during the current fiscal year.

The bond ratings services from Standard & Poor’s and Moody's establish that bonds marketed by the City
have favorable investment qualities. Presently, the city has the following ratings:

Moody's Standard & Poor's
Revenue Aa3 A+
General Obligation Bonds Aa2 AA-
Urban Renewal Revenue Bonds Aal A

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 15 percent
and 20 percent of its tolal assessed valuation. The cumrent debt limitation for the City of Jackson under
the 15% rule is $100 million in excess of the City of Jackson's outstanding general obligation debt.

Additional information on the City of Jackson's long-term debt can be found in Note 4 on pages 58-68 of
this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates
*  Major revenues sources are expected to remain basically at existing levels.

+ Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.

Al of these factors were considered in preparing the City of Jackson’s budget for the 2012 fiscal year.

During the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance in the general fund decreased $1.9 million.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Jackson’s finances for all
those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided
in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Department of
Administration, Office of the Director, P.O. Box 17, Jackson, MS, 39205-0017.
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Accounts receivable, ned
Other receivable
Intergovernmental reccivable
Internal balances
Tnventories

Prepaid Expenses

Net pension asset

Accrued interest receivable
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Deferred charges
Capital assets:

Land

Buildings

Automotive and equipment
Infrastructure

Construction in Progress
Property held for development

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued interest payable

Uneamned revenue

Other lishilities
Nencurrent liabilities:

Net other postemployment benefits

Due within one year
Due in more then one year
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for:
Debt gervice
Capital projects
Other purpases

Capital City Convention Center

Unrestricted
Totul net assets

City of Jackson

Statement of Net Assefs
As of September 30, 2011
Primary Government Component Units
Capital City
Jackson Convenfion
Busincas-Type Redevelopment Center
Governmental Actlvities Activities Total Anthority Commission
$ 54,650,900 3 10,083,807 § 64,734,707 3 680,482 § 3,340,585
- - - 526,913 -
74,350 25,265,934 25,340,284 - -
73,949,175 292,157 74,241,332 1,390,649 941,693
2,342,676 1,603,728 3,346,404 - -
2,928,944 (2,928,944) - . .
1,813,522 2,407,330 4,220,852 - 92,521
- - - 1,992 40,336
14,200,800 . 14,200,800 - -
. - - - 501
- 50,199,810 50,199,810 535,864 1,412,191
- 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,292,044 500,000
428,541 2,232.918 2,661,459 260,180
14,526,623 1,837,999 16,364,622 4,538,425 5,792,683
57,371,472 43,043,513 100,414,985 30,658,490 73,175,042
11,885,834 16,021,771 27,907,605 3,941 4,475,811
118,588,716 146,557,761 265,146,477 - -
84,079,080 143,102,616 227,181,696 135,712 -
- - - 1,846,021 -
436,840,633 441,120,400 877,961,033 41,870,713 89,771,363
4,924,264 4,887,920 9,812,184 91,791 263,967
699,687 610,435 1,310,122 178,771 -
68,945,558 - 68,945,558 - 303,638
3,427,455 4,071,655 7.499,110 22,682 142,811
13,528,797 1,941,203 15,470,000 - -
10,411,909 4,396,116 14,808,025 1,101,350 -
173,176,501 162,977,026 336,153,527 9,851,964 -
275,114,171 178,884,355 453,998,526 11,246,558 710,416
180,356,985 183,735,105 364,092,090 26,732,340 83,443,536
1,832,076 - 1,832,076 - -
12,624,459 - 12,624,459 1,685,130 -
2,693,047 - 2,693,047 - -
319,989 - 319,989 - 1,912,191
(36,100,094) 78,500,940 42,400,846 2,206,685 3,705,220
$ 161,726,462 $ 262,236,045 § 423,962,507 % 30,624,155 § 89,060,947

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
Reconciliation of Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2011

Amount reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:

Total fund balances - governmental funds 3

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore are not reported in the funds

Net pension assets recorded in governmental activities that are not a financial
resource and therefore are not reported in the govemmental funds

Internal service fund is used to account for the group benefit plan.
The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are
included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets

Receivable recognized on the full accrual basis for the government-wide
statements but not on the fund statements

Revenues that were earned but unavailable to the city and recorded as unearned
in the fund statements

Net other postemployment benefit recorded in governmental activities that are
not a financial resource and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Bonds and loans payable, net of refunding gains, premium and discounts
Deferred bond issuance costs
Accrued interest on long-term debt
Capital leases
Compensated absences
Claims payable
Workers' Compensation Benefits

Net assets of governmental activities 3

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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56,507,540

286,451,725

14,200,800

(174,397)

1,754,947

373,955

(13,528,797)

(153,579,516)
428,541
(699,687)
(18,073,670)
(4,934,036)
(2,067,197)
(4,933,746)

161,726,462
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City of Jackson
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues
Expenditures, and Changes [n Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net change m fund balances — total governmental funds 3 (267.168)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital ontlays exceeded
depreciation in the current period (1,071,519)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to
Governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of the governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net assets. Also, governmentsl funds report the effect of issuance cost, premiums,
discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas, these amounts are deferred
and amortized m the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences
in the treatment of long-term debt and related items 1,489,669

Activities from debt related transactions

New capital lease proceeds teported in the fund statements (8,158,676)
Retirement of prior leases 3,605,680

Bond proceeds recorded in the fund statements (3,682,096)
Amortization of deferred bond issnance cost (17,142)

Decrease in net pension asset reported on the statement of activities that do not require current
financial resources and therefore not reported as expenditures in the funds 538,237

Increase in net other postemployment benefits liability reported on the statement of activities that
do not require current financial resonrces and therefore not reported as expenditures in the funds (3,975,560)

Expenses reported on the staternent of activities that do not require current financial resources

and therefore not reported as expenditures in the funds 349,492
Revenues recognized on the full accrual basis for the govemment-wide statements but are not
recognized on the fund statements 267,646
Internal service fund net activity not reported on the governmental fund statement (919,526)
Change in the net assets of governmental activities $(11,840,963)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

Variance with
Budget Amount Actual Final Budget-
Orlginal Final Amounts positive(negative)
Revenmes:
General property taxes
Current realty taxes $ 33,855,002 §$ 33,855,002 % 32,827,868 % (1,027,134)
Current personal taxes 12,647,454 12,647,454 12,963,515 316,061
Ad valorem taxes on autornobiles 6,152,936 6,352,936 6,484,640 131,704
Delinquent taxes 290,000 520,000 1,385,163 795,163
Interest on current taxes 350,000 350,000 226 {349,774)
Interest on delinquent taxes 65,000 427,980 747,115 319,135
Community improvement ' 177,000 177,000 185,706 8,706
Total general property taxes 53,737,392 54,400,372 54,594,233 193,861
Licenses and permits
Privilege Licenses 350,250 350,250 460,249 109,999
Building permits 777,967 777,967 812,939 34972
Air conditioning and duct perrmits 60,000 60,000 56,561 (3,439)
Plumbing permits 50,000 50,000 57,549 7,549
Electric permits 140,000 140,000 162,603 22,603
Gas Permits 70,000 70,000 52,171 (17,829)
Historic preservation application 1,000 1,000 1,278 278
Landscape permits 17,000 17,000 7.520 (9.480)
Dance hall and other recreational fees 7.500 7,500 17,287 9,787
Landfill charges 1,210,000 1,210,000 1,095,869 {114,131)
Taxicab license fees 2,000 2,000 2,538 538
Sign permits 51,200 51,200 56,330 5,130
Zoning permits 37,000 37,000 23,016 {13,984)
Combustible and flammable liquid permits 7,000 7,000 6,825 (175)
Fireworks Display Pemmit 200 200 175 (25)
Aircraft registration 5,000 5,000 2310 (2,650)
Transit Metchants-Peddlers License 5,000 5,000 6,300 1,800
Boarding, Lodging-Licenses 1,000 1,000 1,280 280
Adult enterfainment-and License 30,000 30,000 31,471 1,471
Special event fee 1,000 1,000 5,176 4,176
Fire inspection permit 6,000 6,000 8335 2,335
Anmnal vehicle imspecton 3,500 3,500 5,093 1,593
Total licenses and permits 2,812,617 2,832,617 2,873,375 40,758
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City of Jackson
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

Variance with
Budget Amount Actual Final Budget-
Original Final Amounts positive(negative)
Revenues (Continued):
Intergovernmental Revenues:
State Grants and Shared Revenues:
Alcohol permits 3 280,000 $ 280,000 § 268275 § (11,725)
Gasoline Tax 31,146 31,146 28,864 (2,282)
Municipal revolving fand 96,040 96,040 95,633 (407)
State reimb training academy - - 75,000 75,000
State fire protection 954,301 890,227 890,226 [0))]
Sales tax 29,974,464 30,436,331 30,797,900 361,569
Bus & truck privilege tax 497,694 497,694 465,664 (32,030)
Wireless radio communieation program 173,037 173,037 187,867 14,830
Historic Preservation - - 6,001 6,001
Homestead exemption 1,163,951 1,163,951 1,440,612 276,661
Total state grants shared revenues 33,170,633 33,568,426 34,256,042 687,616
Federal and State Grants and Shared Revenues:
HITDA Grant 50,000 50,000 24,683 (25317
COPS- Universal Hire 31,333 24,234 24,233 (1)
MDOQT Summer Youth reimbursement 35,000 28,346 28,216 (130)
MS-Seatbelt Enforcement - - (2,000) (2,000)
MDOT Litter Pick Up 12,168 12,168 16,313 4,145
FEMA/MEMA Disaster - 122,559 198,826 76,267
Other police grants 75,000 75,000 73,341 (1,659)
Total federal and state shared revennes 203,501 312,307 363,612 51,305
County Revenues:
Pro rata road tax 400,000 400,000 521,890 121,890
Smith Robertson Museumn 10,000 10,000 36,809 26,809
Himds County 911 Funds - 6,001 - (6,001)
Hinds County - 10,043 {90,818) (100,861)
Total county revenue 410,000 426,044 467,881 41,837
Total infergovernmentnl revenues 33,784,134 34,306,777 35,087,535 780,758
Fines and Forfeitures:
Court & misdemeador fines 1,200,000 1,200,000 960,681 (239,319)
Vehicle parking fines 150,000 150,000 163,038 13,038
Moving traffic violations 1,400,000 1,400,000 1,581,607 181,607
City court costs 25,000 25,000 19,140 (5,860)
Bad check fee and Warrant fee 177,000 177,000 176,998 (2)
Animal control citations 1,000 1,000 2,070 1,070
Municipal court cotrputer 20,000 20,000 26,399 6,399
Mumnicipal court drivers impr fee 25,000 25,000 55,350 30,350
Expungement fee 6,000 6,000 7,850 1,850
Jackson collection fee 100,000 100,000 375,608 275,698
Miscellaneous Coust Docket fee 118,000 118,000 143,095 25,095
Dropped charge fee 5,000 5,000 6,600 1,600
Cash bond - clearing account 55,000 55,000 10,562 (44,438)
Rearraignment fee 20,000 20,000 22,825 2,825
Daily storage fee-vehicle 35,000 35,000 28,660 (6,340)
Administrative fee - del cases 300,000 300,000 408,305 108,305
Contempt fee 100,000 100,000 150,993 50,993
Computerized Crime prevention 20,000 20,000 30,716 10,716
Municipal Court Enhancement fee - 51,410 51,550 140
Jackson Enhancement fee - - 126,867 126,867
Wrecker fees 100,000 100,000 90,985 (9,015)
Total fines and forfeitures 3,857,000 3,508,410 4,439,989 531,579

19



City of Jackson
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

Yariance with
Budget Amount Actual Final Budget-
Original Fimal Amounts positive{negative)
Revenues {Contimied):
Admissions, Fees, Rentals and Concessions:
Parking melers $ 160,000 % 160,000 § 178,592 § 18,592
Municipal Auditorium:

Rentals 101,000 101,000 83,357 (17,643)

Concessions ’ 2,200 2,200 2,415 215
Local record fee 6,000 6,000 5,108 (892)
Pistol Range renl 500 500 1,658 1,158
Outdoor adverstiing 12,000 12,000 14,767 2,767
Fire Water flow test fee 2,500 2,500 2,500 -
Fire Reporis 13,500 13,500 16,075 2,575
Accident report fee 110,000 110,000 98,995 (11,005)
Background check fee 12,500 12,500 11,915 (585)
Bail bondsman applicant photo 200 200 273 73
Bail bondsman nmg shot fee 300 300 225 (75)
Bail bondsman ID card 700 700 945 245
Fingerprinting 16,000 16,000 21,760 5,760
Verification of records 30,000 30,000 28,654 (1,346)
Fire sprinkler plans review 4,000 4,000 75 (3.,925)
Rents & Royalitics 11,000 11,000 15,892 4,892
Art Gallery Donations - 300 1,954 1,654
Telecommunication Franchise Agreement 276,900 276,500 260,128 (16,772)
Tower Rentals 2,388,430 2,395,906 2,358,136 (37,770)
Aris Center:

Admissions, rents and royalties 10,100 10,100 4,150 (5,950)

Commumity room rent 12,000 12,000 8,791 (3,209)

Concessions 250 250 293 43

Planetariym:

Admissions,Discovery Shop, ctc. 116,000 116,000 40,448 {75,552)
Senior Centers Reservation Fee - 3,600 5177 1,577
Smith Robertson Moseum:

Gift shop 1,500 1,500 591 (909)

Donations 4,400 4,400 4,350 (50)

Admissions, rental 9,100 5,500 5,619 119

Total admissions and rentals 3,301,080 3,308,356 3,172,843 (136,013)

Interest:
Eamed on investmenis 175,787 176,123 179,780 3,657
Eamed on accounts - - - -
Total interest earned 175,787 176,123 179,780 3,657
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Clty of Jackson
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actunal

Revenues (Continued):

Other Revermes:
Public utility
Franchise cable television
Water Sewer Franchise Fee
Nuclear power plant
In-lieu-of property tax
Smal] animal control
Police-sale of weapons
Parking fee-City ernployees
Police
Public Safety Communications
Indirect cost

Street index books
Plumbing exam

Eletrical exam

Penalty on dermo/grass/weeds
Cemeteries-openings/closings
Performance contract rebate

Site plan review planning
Construction plan review

Building & Permil misc

Cafeteria plan-flexible spending
Administrative fee-payroll deductions
Sale of maps, plans, and specifications
Traffic

Legal/City Clerk/Finance and Manegement

Telecommunications

Fire Museum donations
Fire-Amson/Internal A ffairs donations
Fire Department

Grants & Donations

1D. Badge fee-city employee
Abtract fees

Setilement of insurance elaim
Proceeds from assets and forfeitures
P E G Revenue

Other

Total other revenues
Total revemues

For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

Variance with
Budget Amount Actual Final Budget-

Original Final Amounts _positive(negative)

$ 4,434,978 § 4,434,978 § 4,610,599 $ 175,621

1,638,350 1,638,350 1,823,358 185,008

830,597 830,597 830,597 -
1,635,134 1,635,134 1,617,573 (17,561)

- - 40,846 40,846

3,000 3,000 3,988 988
- 3,000 13 (2.987)

7,000 7,000 10,813 3,813

243,000 241,251 268,087 26,836

20,596 20,596 45,958 25,362
2,506,069 2,779,890 2,745,152 (34,738)
1,000 1,000 - (1,000)

- - 75 75

160 100 200 100

6,500 6,500 4,000 (2,500)
45,000 45,000 11,025 (33,975)

- - 4,128 4,128

15,000 15,000 13,187 (1,813)
3,500 3,500 3,023 4
125,000 125,000 109,080 (15,920)
150,000 150,000 141,092 (8,908)

12,000 12,000 13,808 1,808
3,500 3,500 3313 (187)
2,393 16,962 14,573 (2,389)

15,000 11,000 12,953 1,953

- - 11,245 11,245

3,000 3,000 o (2,029)

- - 1,050 1,050
1,700 302,700 201,000 (101,700)
86,020 173,193 106,560 (66,533)

500 500 810 310

- 4,000 7,580 3,580

5,158 5,158 98,112 92,954
82,903 82,903 66,637 (16,266)

- - 2,765 2,765

278,839 1,662,329 1,929,053 266,724

12,155,837 14,217,141 14,753,224 536,083
109,843,847 113,150,296 115,100,979 1,950,683
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City of Jackson
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

Expenditures:
Current Operations:
General Government
Administartion and Intra-govemmental
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Capital outlay
Total Department of Adminstration
Personuel
Persomnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Capital Outlay
Total Departroent of Personnel
Planning
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Capital Outlay
Total Department of Planning
Total General Governinent
Department of Human and Cultural Services
Health and Welfare
Personnel supplies
Sopplies
Other services and chargers
Capital outlay
Total Health and Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and cherges
Capital outlay
Total Culture and Recreation
Total Department of Human and Cultural Services
Department of Public Safety
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Capital outlay
Total Department of Public Safety

Variance with

Budget Amoont Actual Final Budget-
Original Final Amounis _positive(negative)
$ 10,257,594 $ 10,465,929 $ 9,403,150 % 1,062,779
985,203 1,157,432 819,282 338,200
5,923,679 9,034,638 6,993,403 2,041,235
1,265,176 4,356,816 1,361,750 2,995,066
18,431,652 25,014,865 18,577,585 6,437,280
1,111,488 774,374 621,473 152,901
23,487 12,561 10,212 2,349
704,109 4,169,645 1,699,670 2,469,975
1,174 3,734 - 3,734
1,840,258 4,960,314 2,331,355 2,628,959
2,294,141 2,339,813 2,143,082 196,731
103,719 106,640 81,320 25,320
3,496,113 4,469,217 4229927 239,290
3,075 1,443 368 1,075
5,897,048 6,917,113 6,454,697 462,416
26,168,958 36,892,292 27,363,637 9,528,055
1,147,862 1,179,750 1,101,703 78,047
22,600 32,224 28,405 3gle
724,963 644,588 613,055 31,533
263,090 263,090 261,910 1,180
2,158,515 2,119,652 2,005,073 114,579
07,830 563,655 529,921 33,734
93,095 163,699 82,578 81,121
1,406,355 1,496,802 1,458,894 37,908
3,155 2,581 2,168 413
2,110,435 2,226,737 2,073,561 153,176
4,268,950 4,346,389 4,078,034 267,755
45,127,525 46,468,246 45,140,578 1,327,668
3,164,363 3,747.721 3,505,395 242,326
4,424 605 5,565,473 3,500,113 2,065,360
4907313 5,039,354 4,795,043 244,311
57,623,806 60,820,794 56,941,129 3,879,665
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Clty of Jackson
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011
VYarlance with

Budget Amount Actual Final Budget-
Original Final Amounts positive{negative)
Expenditures (Continued):
Department of Public Works
Personnel services 5 7,300,946 § 7,152,010 § 6,971,560 § 180,450
Supplies 1,387,276 1,614,525 1,539,251 75,274
Other services and charges 1,807,658 2,163,723 1,880,668 283,055
Capital outlay 1,601,486 1,300,031 1,076,175 223,856
Total Department of Public Works 12,097,366 12,230,289 11,467,654 762,635
Current Operations
Enmployee Benefits
Supplies 65,000 35,000 31,134 3,866
Other services and charges 1,887,728 1,913,329 1,818,428 94,901
Tatal Employee Benefits 1,952,729 1,948,329 1,849,562 98,767
Total expenditures 102,111,809 116,238,093 101,700,616 14,537,477
Excess(deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 7,732,038 (3,087,797} 13,400,363 (16,488,160)
Other Financing Sources(Uses)
Transfers in - - 2,000 (2,000)
Tranfers out (14,898,649) (14,898,649} (14,898,649) -
Proceeds from long term debt 2,924,145 3,627,319 3,627 319 -
Sale of Fixed Assets 187,050 233,688 171,599 62,089
Total other financing sources{uses) {11,787,454) (11,037,642) {11,097,731) 60,089
Net change in fimd balance (4,055,416) (14,125,439 2,302,632 (16,428,071}
Fund balances at beginning of year 30,823,975 30,823,975 30,823,975 -
Fund balances at end of year $ 26,768,559 § 16,698,536 $ 33,126,607 § (16,428,071)
The notes to the financial statements are an ingral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
Federal Grants Special Revenue Fund
Schedunle of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2011

Budget Amount
Variance with
Final Budget -
Originsal Final Actuals Amounts  positive(negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $28,424,245 $ 25,659,649 3 9,911,123 $  (15,748,526)
Interest - 1,646 4362 2,716
Other 150,587 158,843 300,180 141,337
Total revenues 28,574,832 25,820,138 10,215,665 (15,604,473)
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations:
Personnel Services 7,904,094 5,238,557 4,233,866 1,004,691
Supplies _ 869,898 1,213,320 692,866 520,454
Other Services and Charges 19,629,465 20,027,954 5,251,425 14,776,529
Capital Outlay 1,079,545 2,227,746 1,045,445 1,182,301
Total expenditures 29,483,002 28,707,577 11,223,602 17,483,975
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (908,170) (2,887,439) (1,007,937) (1,879,502)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in:
General Fund 895,820 2,054,901 1,893,571 {161,330)
Total other financing sources (uses) 895,820 2,054 901 1,893,571 (161,330)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other uses {12,350) (832,538) 885,634 1,718,172
Fund balances at beginning of year 697,556 697,556 697,556 -
Fund balances at end of year 3 685,206 3 (134,982) ¥ 1,583,190 é 1,718,172

The notes to the financiai statements are an integral part of this statement.
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REVENUES
General property taxes
Intergovernmental Revenue
Interest
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURLS
Current Operations
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues over {under) expenditres
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from long term debt
Total other financing sources and uses
Net change in fund balanees
Fund balances at beginning of year
Tund balances at end of year

City of Jackson

Improvement Fund
Schedule of Revenucs, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-

Original Final Actual Amounts  positive (negative)

£ 950,000 § 950,000 $ 1,026,810 $ 76,810
- 1,996,348 177,654 (1,818,694)

- 510 20,717 20,207

- 106,061 106,061 -
950,000 3,052,919 1,331,242 (1,721,677)
1,000,000 1,000,000 51,832 948,168
1,635,119 10,950,944 2,863,583 8,087,361
2,635,119 11,950,944 2,915,415 9,035,529
(1,685,119) {8,898,025) {1,584,173) (7,313,852)

- 300,000 300,600 -
- - (26,352) (26,352)

201,595 5,413,453 5,413,453 -
201,595 5,713,453 5,687,101 26,352
(1,483,524) (3,184,572) 4,102,928 (7,287,500)
2,733,366 2,733,366 2,733,366 -
$ 1,249,842 $ (451,206) § 6,836,294 $ (7,287,500)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, less allowances
Intergovernmental receivables
Other receivables
Restricted Assets
Casb and cash equivalents
Inventories
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Restricted Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Deferred charges - bond costs,
net of amortization
Total Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets:

Property, plant and equipment, at cost
Land
Buildings

Water plant, distribution system and equipment

Automotive and other equipment

Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction in Progress
Net property, plant and equipment

Total Assets

City of Jackson
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
As of September 30, 2011
Water/Sewage Nonmajor
Disposal Enterprise Internal
System Sanitation Funds Totals Service Fund
5 8786716 § 1,258,520 § 38,571 § 10083807 § 221,255
20,296,579 4,969,355 - 25,265,934 54,836
- - 1,003,728 1,003,728 -
292,157 - - 292,157 -
19,508,626 - - 19,508,626 -
2,407,330 - - 2,407,330 -
51,291,408 0,227,875 1,042,299 58,561,582 276,091
30,691,184 - - 30,691,184 -
2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 -
2232918 - - 2,232918 -
34,924,102 - - 34,924,102 -
1,387,999 - 450,000 1,837,999 -
117,783,060 57,301 187,903 118,028,264 -
258,742,877 - 943,632 259,686,509 -
12,945,054 2,639,140 10,352,607 25,936,801 -
390,858,990 2,696,441 11,934,142 405,489,573 -
(191,557, 483) (1,537,618)  (4,933,428)  (198,028,529) -
199,301,507 1,158,823 7,000,714 207,461,044 -
142,390,140 - 712,476 143,102,616 -
341,691,647 1,158,823 7,713,190 350,563,660 -
$ 427,907,157 § 7,386,698 § 8,755,489 $ 444,049,344 b 276,091

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Liabilities and Fund Equity
Current Liabilities Payable from Unrestricted Assets:

Accounts/claims payable

Due to other funds

Compensated absences

Retfainage payable

Customer deposits

Other

Current portion of Long-Term Debt:

Lease obligations
State Department of Environmental Quality

Total Current Liabilities Payable
from Unrestricted Assets

Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Revenue bonds
Accrued interest payable
Total Current Liabilites Payable
from Restricted Assets

Total Current Liabilities

Post Employment Benefits accrual
Long-Term Debt
(less emounts classificd as current lizbilities):
Compensated absences
Revenue bonds
(net of unamortized discount/premium)
Lease obligations
State Department of Environmentel Quality
Total Long-Term Debt
Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

Total Habilities and net assels

City of Jackson
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Fands
As of September 30, 2011
Water/Sewage Nonmajor
Disposal Enterprise Internal
System Sanitation Fands Totals Service Fund
$ 2,763,131 $ 207,624 $§ 953376 § 3,924,131 % 296,319
- - 2,928,944 2,928,944 -
295,770 30,248 6,552 332,570 -
792,302 - - 792,302 -
4,071,655 - - 4,071,655 -
171,487 - - 171,487 -
1,279,469 284,733 218,489 1,782,691 -
1,520,855 - - 1,520,855 -
10,894,669 522,605 4,107,361 15,524,635 296,319
760,000 - - 760,000 -
610,435 - - 610,435 -
1,370,435 - - 1,370,435 -
12,265,104 522,605 4,107,361 16,895,070 296,319
1,941,203 - - 1,941,203 -
166,258 45,760 . 212,018 .
149,513,919 - - 149,513,919 -
199,133 123,910 650,933 973,976 -
12,277,113 - - 12,277,113 -
162,156,423 169,670 650,933 162,977,026 -
176,362,730 692,275 4,758,294 181,813,299 296,319
176,141,157 750,180 6,843,768 183,735,105 -
75,403,270 5,944,243 (2,846,573) 78,500,940 (20228)
251,544,427 6,694,423 3,997,195 262,236,045 (20,228)
$ 427907157 § 7386698 $ 8755489 § 444049344 § 276,091

The notes in the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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l City of Jackson
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
I Proprietary Funds
As of September 30, 2011
I Water/Sewage Nonmajor
Disposal Enterprise Internal
System Sanitation Funds Total Service Fund
I Operating Revenues:
Sales to customers $ 47,577,896 $11473,278 528,744 $ 59579918 3§ -
Contributions - - - - 4,685,824
I Contributions - City Match - - - - 2,814,996
Other revenues 94,565 94,172 517,340 706,077 575,390
Total Operating Revenues 47,672,461 11,567,450 1,046,084 60,285,995 8,076,210
Operating Expenses:
Personnel services 11,151,617 1,126,736 172,071 12,450,424 -
l Supplies 4,438,709 419,629 984,756 5,843,094 -
Other services and charges 17,164,756 9,310,962 6,665,045 33,140,763 13,515,614
l Depreciation 4,085,720 298,905 942,379 5,327,004 -
Total operating expenses 36,840,802 11,156,232 8,764,251 56,761,285 13,515,614
Operating income (loss) 10,831,659 411,218 (7,718,167) 3,524,710 {5,439,404)
Nonoperating revenues {expenses):
Interest revenue 484 392 4,505 200 489,797 7,002
Interest and service charges on long-term
debt and capitalized lease obligations (4,670,423) - - (4,670,423) -
l Gain on retirement bond 1,275,207 - 1,275,207 -
Sale of fixed assets - 50 90,965 91,015 -
Gain (loss) on sale of fixed assets (14,940) - - (14,940) -
l Amortization of bond issuance cost (283,835) - - (283,835) -
Total nonoperating revenues {expenses) {3,209,599) 4,555 91,865 (3,113,179) 7,002
l Income (loss) before contributions
and transfers 7,622,060 415,773 (7,626,302) 411,531 (5,432,402)
l Capital contributions from grants - - 2,568,423 2,568,423 -
Transferé In:
General Fund - - 5,566,566 5,566,566 4,667,045
I Enterprise Fund - - 60,139 60,139 -
Transfers Out:
General Fund - (2,000) - (2,000) -
Enterprise Fund (60,139) - - (60,139) -
Total Transfers In (Out) (60,139) (2,000) 5,626,705 5,564,566 4,667,045
Change in Net Assets 7,561,921 413,773 568,826 8,544,520 (765,357)
Total net assets - beginning 243,982,506 6,280,650 3,428,369 253,691,525 745,129
I Total net assets - ending b 251,544,427= $ 6,694,423 $ 3,997,195 $ 262,236,045 3 (20,228)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staternent.
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Cash Flows from Operating Actlvities
Receipts from customers and users
Receipts from other revenue
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net Cash provided by (used for)
Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers In
Transfers OQut

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activites

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financlog Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Proceeds from capital debt
Principal paid on capital debt
Proceeds from capital contributions
Interest paid on capital debt
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related

financing activities

Cash Flow Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities:

Disposal of capital assets

Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment securities

Interest on investments
Net Cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivatents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

City of Jackson
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
As of September 30, 2011
Nonmajor
Water/Sewer Enterprise Internal Service
Disposal System Sanitation Funds Total Fund
L3 45,043,608 $11,473278 $§ 528,744 §57,045,630 § 7,500,820
94,565 (6,950) 673,954 761,569 551,578
(22,181,455  (10,222,863) (8,199,430)  (40,603,748) (13,581,425)
(10,581,177) (1,123,869) {174,973y  (11,880,019) -
12,375,541 119,596 {7,171,705) 5,323,432 (5,529,027}
- - 5,626,705 - 4,667,045
(60,139) (2,000) - (62,139) -
{60,139) (2,000} 5,626,705 5,564,566 4,667,045
(7,289,661} (314,390} (865,997) (8,470,048) -
84,372 50 90,965 175,387 -
6,930,000 - 71,300 7,001,300 -
(9,069,509) (421,307) (282,020) (9,772,836) -
- - 2,568,423 2,568,423 -
(5,300,269) - - (5,300,269) -
(14,645,067) (735,647) 1,582,671 (13,798,043) -
273,428 226,108 - 499,536 -
2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 -
484,392 4,505 900 489,797 7,002
2,757,820 230,613 900 2,989,333 7,002
428,155 (387,438) 38,571 79,288 (854,980)
58,558,371 1,645,958 - 60,204,329 1,076,235
$ 58,986,526 § 1,258,520 §$ 38,571  $60,283,617 % 221,255

The notes to the financial stetements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
As of September 30, 2011

Water/Sewer
Disposal System Sanitation

Nonmajor
Enterprise Internal Service
Funds Total Fund

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used for) Operating Actlivities:

Operating income (loss} $ 10,831,659 $ 411,218 8 (7,718,167) $ 3524710 % (5,439,404)
Depreciation Expense 4,085,720 208,905 942,379 5,327,004 -
(Increase} decrease in accounts receivable, net (2,534,288) (106,045) - (2,640,333) -
Increase (decrease) in inventories (695,530} - - (695,530) -
(Increase) decrease in other receivable (241,285} 4,923 156,614 (79,748) (23,812)
(Increase) decrease in deferred charges (402,773) - - (402,773) -
(Increase) decrease in due to other funds - - 385,969 385,969 -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 982,530 (492,272) (935,598) (445,340) (65,811)
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable (42,943) - - (42,943) -
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences (51,716} 2,867 (2,902) (51,751) -
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 272,680 - - 272,680 -
Increase (decrease) in other liabilties 171,487 - - 171,487 -
Total adjustments 1,543,882 (291,622) 546,462 1,798,722 (89,623)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 12,375,541 $ 119,596 % (7,171,705) $ 5323432 § (5,529,027)

l Recap of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 8786716 § 1258520 § 38571 $10,083,807 § 221,255
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 50,199,810 - - 50,199.810 -
l $ 58986526 § 1258520 $ 38571 $60283617 § 221,255

I The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment at fair value:
Certificate of deposit

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities:
Payables to others

Total liabilities

Net Assets:
Held in trust

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

CITY OF JACKSON
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Trust Funds

Agency Funds

$ 312,687

32,270

3 531,923

344,957

$=

$__ 531923

$ 531,923

b 531,923

344,957

344,957

r————r—

$ 344,957

—

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF JACKSON
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Trust Funds
Additions:
Interest $ 1,982
Other additions 207,000
Total additions 5 208,982
Deductions:
General government
Trust funds 5 135,756
Total deductions 135,756
Change in Net Assets 73,226
Net assets at beginning of year 271,731
Net assets at end of year 5 344,957

The notes lo the financial staternents are an integral part of this stalement.
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CITY OF JACKSON
Notes to Flnancial Statements
September 30, 2011

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Jackson, Mississippi (the City) is incorporated under the Laws of the State of Mississippi. The
City operates under the Mayor-Council form of government with a full-time Mayor elected from the City at
large and seven part-time Council members (City Council} elected from wards. The City's major
operations include police and fire protection, parks and recreation, public works, public transit system,
urban development and general administrative services. In addition, the City owns and operates a water
and sewer system,

The City’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). Governments are also required to follow the
pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1989
that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Although the City has the option to apply
FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type activities and enterprise funds, the City
has chosen not to do so. The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the
City is discussed below.

In evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management has addressed potential component units for
which the City may or may not be financially accountable and as such, be included within the City's
financial statements. The component units discussed below are included because of the significance of
their operational or financial relationships with the City.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

Using the criteria above, management has determined that the Jackson Redevelopment Authority (JRA)
and the Capltal City Convention Center Commission should be reported as discretely presented
component units of the City. The discretely presented component units are reported In separate columns
in the government-wide statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the primary government.
The following is a summary of the City's discretely presented component units.

The Jackson Redevelopment Authority (JRA) was established in 1968 under Section 43-35-1 through 235
of the Mississippi Code of 1942, as annotated. In 1970, JRA became the Parking Authority for the City
under the same statute. The Mayor of the City makes appointments to a seven-member Board of
Commissioners for staggered flve-year terms to oversee the operations of JRA. Members may be
removed from office for inefficiency, neglect of duty or misconduct in office. The City Council appropriates
the administrative operating budget and must review and approve any amendments or budgetary
adjustments, The City Council is responsible for designation of those urban renewal projects undertaken
by JRA. The City makes annual contributions necessary to pay a portion of JRA's urban renewal bonds
and has agreed to make payment of substantially all of the outstanding bonds. JRA operates on a
September 30 fiscal year and its financial statement data is presented as a proprietary fund type.
Complete financial statements for JRA may be obtained at its administrative office located at 218 South
President Street, Jackson, Mississippi 39201.

The Capital City Convention Center Commission, a non-profit corporation, was authorized to he created
by House Bill 1832 during the 2004 Regular Session of the Mississippi State Legislature. The entity is
governed by nine commissioners. The Mayor of the City appoints hotel/motel members for initial terms of
one and three years, respectively, restaurant members for initial terms of two and four years, respectively.
The Mayor appoints two members representing the business community for initial terms of one and five
years, respectively. The Mayor appoints two members at large for initial terms of two and three years,
respectively. One member is appointed by the Governor of Mississippi for an initial term of four years.
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CITY OF JACKSON
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2011

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Polices (Continued):
A. REPORTING ENTITY (Continued):

The City issued $65,000,000 of General Obligation Bonds for the development of the proposed
Convention Center. The Capital City Convention Center Commission has jurisdiction and authority over
all matters relating to the acquisition, construction, furnishing, equipping, erection, operation,
maintenance, and promotion of a convention center, The Commission submits its budget and certain
other planned actions to the City for comment prior to initiation. The Commission operates on a
September 30 fiscal year and its financial statement data is presented as a proprietary fund type.
Complete financial statements for the Capital City Convention Center Commission may be obtained at

P. O. Box 3563, Jackson, Mississippi 39207.

Related Organlzations

The following four agencies are non-profit corporations established within the City of Jackson. The Mayor
appoints the board members of each respective agency as confirmed by the City Council. Each agency is
fiscally independent from the City of Jackson, issues its debt, approves its budgets, and sets its rates and
charges. The primary government has no authority to remove board members, designate management,
or approve or modify rates. The City of Jackson is not obligated in any manner for the debt issues of
these agencies. Financial statements for these agencies can be obtained at the following addresses:

Airport Authority ‘ Jackson Housing Authority
100 International Drive 2747 Livingston Road
Jackson, MS 39208 Jackson, MS 39213
Jackson Public School District Metro Jackson Convention & Visitors Bureau
662 South President Street 921 North President Street
Jackson, MS 39201 Jackson, MS 39202

Joint Ventures

The Jackson/Hinds Library System (the System) operates under a joint agreement between the City and
Hinds County and is funded equally by the City and the County. The joint agreement was effective
October 1, 1986, All buildings used by the System within the City of Jackson are owned and maintained
by the City and, as such, have been included in the capital assets of governmental activities. The
Jackson/Hinds Library System’s financial statements may he obtained by writing to 300 North State Street,
Jackson, MS 39201.

B. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND LEVEL STATEMENTS

The City's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole) and
fund financial statements (reporting the City's major funds). Both the govemment-wide and fund financial
statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The City’s police and fire
protection, parks and recreation, public works, and general administrative services are classified as
governmental activities. The City's water/sewer, sanitation, and public transit services are classified as
business-type activities.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and business-type activities
columns (a) are presented on the consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on the full accrual,
economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt
and obligations. The City's net assets are reported in three parts: invested in capital assets, net of related
debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets. The City first utiizes restricted resources to
finance qualifying activities.
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):

B. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND LEVEL STATEMENTS
(Continued):

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net costs of each of the City’s
functions and business-type activilies (police, fire, public works, etc.). The statement of activities
demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to applicants who use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Operating
grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital
grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues,
operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be direcly associated with the function (police, fire,
public works, etc.) or a business-type activity. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. The net costs (by function or business-type
activities) are normally covered by general revenue (property, sales or gas tax, intergovernmental
revenues, interest income, atc.).

The City does not allocate indirect cost. An administrative service fee is charged by the General Fund to
the other operating funds that is eliminated iike a reimbursement (reducing the revenue and expense in
the General Fund) to recover the direct costs of General Fund services provided (finance, personnel,
purchasing, legal, technology managemant, etc.).

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the changes in the
City's net assets resulting from the current year's activities. Separate financial statements are provided for
governmental funds and proprietary funds. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and
expenditures/expenses. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the
fund financial statements.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperaling items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principat operating revenues of the
City's Proprietary Funds and of the City’s Internal Setvice Funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. Operating expenses for Proprietary Funds and Internal Service Funds include the cost of sales
and services, direct administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not maating this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Agency funds are used to report resources in a purely custodial capacity (assets equal
liabilities). So, agency funds cannot be said to have a measurement focus, however, they do use the
accrual basis of accounting to recognize receivables and payables. Revenuses are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items
are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING {Continued):

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the cumrent financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soan as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to ba avallable when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafier to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgmenits, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest assomated with the current fiscal pericd are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the cumrent fiscal
period. Afll other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the City
receives cash.

The City reports the following major government funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
transactions of the City, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Federal Grant Fund — This fund is used to account for proceeds of various federal grant
programs.

Debt Service Fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources and the
subsequent disbursement of such resources to pay principal and interest on long-term debt of the
City (other than debt of the Enterprise Funds). Bend ordinances require the City to account for
debt service transactions in separate funds, restrict the flow of cash between such funds, and
comply with various other covenants. For financial statement reporting, the various debt service
funds have been combined.

Improvement Fund — This fund is used to account for revenues that are legally restricted for
improvements to City facilities.

1998 GO Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of
$35,000,000 issued to finance certain projects including storm drainage systems, construction of
a youth detention center, and repairing buildings.

2003 GO Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for prbceeds of general obligation bonds of
$20,000,000 issued to finance certain projects including storm drainage systems, repairing and
the construction of municipal buildings, infrastructures, and other related improvements.

2006 GO Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of
$65,000,000 issued to finance the acquisition, construction, equipping, and furnishing of a
convention center in the City to be known as the Capital City Convention Center and other
authorized costs.

2009 GO Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of
$26,210,000 issued to pay the costs of constructing, improving and paving streets, sidewalks,
driveways, parkways and public parking facilities.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund - This fund accounts for activities associated with the
provision of water, sewerage and water pollution control services to individuals, organizations and
other governmental units within and around the City.

Sanitation Fund = This fund accounts for activities associated with the City’'s sanitation and
recycling service.
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C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued):
Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Fund is used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the governmental unit, or to other
governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds:

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and
therefore are not available to support City programs. The City has three trust funds, the
Unemployment Compensation Revolving Fund, the Charitable Trust Fire and Police Fund, and the
Mausoleum Trust Fund. The function of the City's principal employee benefit trust fund, the
Unemployment Compensation Revolving Fund, s discussed in NOTE 6.A.2. The function of the
Charitable Trust Fire and Police Fund is to account for contributions from the public sector which is
held in trust for fire and police allowable claims. The function of the Mausoleum Trust Fund is to
maintain and upkeep the Henry Mausoleum.

The purpose of the City's Agency Funds is to collect and remit to the related organizations the
property taxes collected and proceeds of a special sales tax received from the State. The reporting
focus is on net assets and changes in net assets and are reported using accounting principles
similar to proprietary funds.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-
type activities categories. Nonmajor funds by category are summarized intc a single column. GASBS No.
34 sets forth minimum criteria {percentage of assets, liabilities, revenues or expendituresfexpenses of
either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds.
The nonmaijor funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statements.

The City's intemal service fund is presented in the proprietary funds financial statements. Because the
principal users of the intemal services are the City's governmental activities, the financial statements of
the internal service fund are consolidated into the governmental activities column when presented In the
government-wide financial statements. To the extent possible, the cost of these services is reported in the
appropriate functional activity {police, fire, public works, etc.).

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposit accounts, petty cash, and certificates of deposit with a
maturity date generally within 90 days of the date acquired by the City. Collateral as further discussed in
Note 4.A, is pledged by the various financial institutions to secure City funds.

2. Receivables .

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated
portion that is expected to be uncollectible.
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D, ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY {Continued):

3. Investments

Investments are recorded at fair value with all investment income, including changes in the fair value of
investments, reported as revenue in the financial statements. Income from short-term interest bearing
securities is recognized as earned. Statutes authorize the City to invest in U.S. Government obligations,
U.S. Government agency cbligations, State of Mississippi obligations, and obligations of a corporation of
the U.S. Government.

Securities traded in a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at
current exchange rates. Short-term investments are reported at fair value when published prices are
available, or at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value. For individual investments
where no readily ascertainable fair value exists, the City of Jackson, in consultation with its investment
advisors and custodial bank, has determined the fair values,

4. Restricted Asseots

Certain proceeds of the City's Proprietary Fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for
their payment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in
separate bank accounts and trust accounts and their use is limited by applicable bond covenants.
Restricted amounts in governmental activities include amounts set aside by law for state tort claims and
amounts accumulated for general obligation bond debt service.

5. Inventories

Inventories are priced at cost using the weighted average method. Inventories are accounted for using
the consumption method and are not charged out until used. Inventories consist of major stores of
materials and supplies held at central locations. The user departments and other funds of the City are
charged for the cost value of the items, as they are withdrawn from inventory.

6. Capiltal Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired are carried at historical cost. Contributed assets are recorded at fair
market value at the date received. The City’s classes of capital assets and their capitalization levels are:
land — cost or fair market value, buildings - $50,000, land improvements - $25,000, machinery and
equipment - $1,000, infrastructure - $100,000, and construction in progress — based on the project’s class.
The cost of normal maintenance and repair that do not add to the value of capital assets or materially
extend their respective lives are not capitalized. Interest expenditures within governmental activities are
not capitalized.
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D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (Continued):

6. Capital Assets (Continued):

Capital assets, excluding land and construction in progress, are depreciated using the straight-line method
over the following estimated useful lives:

Assels Years
Buildings 40
Land improvements 20
Heavy machinery and 5156
equipment

Computer equipment 3
Vehicles 3-10
Infrastructure 8-50

Interest Is capitalized on proprietary fund assets constructed with the proceeds of tax-exempt debt. The
amount of interest to be capitalized is calculated by offsetting interest expense incurred from the date of
the borrowing until completion of the project with interest earned on invested proceeds over the same
period.

The City has a collection of artwork presented for public exhibition and education that is being preserved
for future generations. The proceeds from the sales of any pieces of the collection are used to purchase
other acquisitions. The collection is not capitalized or depreciated as part of capital assets.

Infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, underground pipe (other than related to utilities), traffic
signals, etc.

7. Compensated Absences

The City accrues accumulated unpaid personal leave and associated employee-related cost when earmed
(or estimated to be earned) by employees up to 240 hours. For the Proprietary Funds and the
govemment-wide Statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to be used in the following year.
In accordance with GAAP, for the governmental funds, all of the compensated absences are considered
long-term and therefore, are not a fund liability and represents a reconciling item between the fund level
and government-wide presentation. The compensated absences liability is liquidated by the following
funds: general fund, special revenue, fransportation, sanitation & water/sewer.

8. Bond Discounts, Bond Premiums and Issuance Costs

In the governmental funds, bond discounts, bond premiums and Issuance costs are treated as period
costs in the year of issue. Bond premiums and discounts are shown as an “Other Financing
Sources/Uses".

In the proprietary funds and government-wide financlal statements, bond discounts, bond premiums and
issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the terms of the bonds outstanding method, which
approximates the effective interest method. Bond discounts and premiums are presented as a reduction
and increase, respectively, of the face amount of the revenue bond payable. Issuance costs are recorded
as other assets.
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D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (Continued):

9. Interfund Actlvity

Interfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near fair market rates are treated as
revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the
appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund
transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as
part of the recaonciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

10. Revenues

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are recognized at the levy date.
All property taxes are billed, collected and recognized as revenue within the same period for which they
are levied. Subsidies and grants to proprietary funds, which finance either capital or current operations are
reported as non-operating revenues. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from
nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations, The principal
operating revenues of the enterprise fund and of the government's internal service funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
In, applying GASBS No. 33 to grant revenues, the provider recognizes liabilities and expenses and the
recipient recognizes receivables and revenues when the applicable eligibility requirements, including time
requirements, are met. Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements are met are reported as
advances by the provided and deferred revenue by the recipient.

11. Expenditures

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs are reported in the
period when inventory ltems are used, rather than in the period purchased.

12. Reserves and Designations

Portions of fund equity are segregated for future use and therefore, are not available for
future appropriations or expenditure. City has a municipal bond debt service reserve insurance policy for
the proprietary funds in iieu of cash. Amounts reserved for state tort claims represent amounts required
by state law to be segregated for these purposes. The unreserved designated fund balance of the Capital
Projects Funds is appropriated for expenditures in future years.

13. Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets,
net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net
assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use sither through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.
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D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (Continued):
14. Fund Balance

In the fund financial stalements, fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constrainls on the
specific purpose for which amounts in the funds can be spent. Fund balance is reported in five
components - nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

Nonspendable - This component includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - This component consists of amounts that have constraints placed on them either externally by
third-parties (creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments) or by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling legislation authorizes the City to assess,
levy, charge or otherwise mandate payment of resources (from external resource providers) and includes
a legally enforceable requirement (compelled by external parties) that those resources be used only for

. the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation.

Committed - This component consists of amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the City's highest level of decision making authority which includes
the city charter, ordinances and resoiutions. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unless the City removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of aclion (city
charter, ordinance and resolution) it employed previously to commit those amounts.

Assigned - This compeonent consists of amounts that are constrained by the City's intent to be used for
specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The authority for assigning fund balance is
expressed by the City Council, Mayor or their designee as established in the City's Fund Balance Policy.

Unassigned - This classification represents amounts that have not been restricted, committed or assigned
to specific purposes within the general fund. The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive
unassigned fund balance amount. Other governmental funds besides the general fund can only report a
negative unassigned fund balance amount.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources (committed, assigned and unassigned) as they are
needed. When unrestricted resources (committed, assigned and unassigned) are available for use it is the
City's policy to use committed resources first, then assigned, and then unassigned as they are needed.
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D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY {Continued):
15. Fund Balance/Net Asset Policy

The City has adopted a fund balance / net assets policy that is tailored to the needs of the City to ensure
against unanticipated events that would adversely affect the financial condition of the City and will not
jeopardize the continuation of necessary public services. This policy will ensure the City maintains
adequate fund balance / net assets and reserves in the City's various operating funds to provide the
capacity to: (1) provide sufficient cash flow for daily financial needs, (2) secure and maintain investment
grade bond ratings, (3) offset significant economic downturns and revenue shortfalls, and (4} provide
funds for unforeseen expenditures related to emergencies.

The City will maintain reservations of Fund Balance / Net Assets in the General Fund and proprietary
funds of the City. The City shall retain the minimum requirement for each fund listed below.

General Fund — There shall be a reservation (unassigned)} of fund balance equal to 7.5% of the adopted
General Fund operating revenues. For the purposes of the caiculation, the current fiscal year budget shall
be the budget as originally adopted by resclution on or before September 15" for the subsequent fiscal
year. The reserve shall be in addition to all other reserves or designations of the fund balance, including
but not limited to reserves for encumbrances, donations, advances to other funds, designations for
compensated absences, and insurance.

Enterprise Fund — The City maintains a Sanitation Fund, Water and Sewer Fund, and Transportation
Fund. Under the Water Sewer Bond Ordinance, the following Fund Balance/Reserves are required: 1/12
of O8M budget for Operation & Maintenance; 1/12 of actual debt service; 2/12 of O&M budget for
Contingent Fund; and, Maximum of $100,000 for Depreciation Fund.

The total Required Fund Balance/Reserve for 2011 is $11,884,931 and this amount is on deposit at
September 30, 2011.

Replenishment of Reserve Deficits - If, at the end of any fiscal year, the actual amount of unassigned fund
balance or unassigned net assets falls below the required fund levels set forth herein, the Mayor shall
prepare and submit a ptan for expenditure or expense reductions and / or revenue increases to the City
Council. As a part of the annual budget review, the City Council shall review and, if necessary, amend the
plan submitted by the Mayor for restoring the amounts of unassigned fund balance or unassignedo net
assets to the required levels.

16. Penslon Expenses

The City funds pension expenses as required by applicable statute. Two plans, funded from both City and
employee contributions are described in NOTE 6.F.

17. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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D. ASSETS, LIABLILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (Continued):

13. New Accounting Pronouncements

During the fiscal year 2011 the City implemented the following GASB pronouncements:

In March 2009, GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions. This statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2010. The objective of
this statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance
classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental type
definitions.

In June 2011, GASB issued Statement No. 59, Financial Instruments Omnibus. The Statement updates
and improves existing standards regarding financial reporting of certain financial instruments and external
investment pools. The Statement is effective for financial statements prepared by state and local
governments for periods beginning after June 15, 2011. In conjunction with the 2011 fiscal year audit, a
review was made relating to the requirements of this statement. As a resuilt of this review, this statement
had no significant Impact on the City's financial statements.

The City wili adopt the foliowing new accounting pronouncements in future years:

In November 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service
Concession Arangements. This Statement addresses how to account for and report service concession
arrangements (SCAs). It improves financial reporting by establishing recognition, measurement and SCA
disclosure requirements for both transferors and governmental operators. The requirements of Statement
60 are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. This Statement will not have a significant
impact on the City.

In November 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an
amendment of GASB Slatements No. 14 and No. 34.  This statement includes amendments to GASB
Statement No. 14 and GASB Statement No. 34 that better address user needs and reporting entity issues
that arose after the issuance of those Statements. Statement 61 modifies requirements for inclusion of
component units, amends the criteria for reporting components and clarifies the reporting of equity
interests in legally separate organizations. The provisions of this Statement are effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2012. Early application is encouraged. This Statement will not have a significant
impact on the City.

In December 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Conlained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. This Statement
incorporates generally accepted accounting principles for state and local governments issued from all
sources that do not conflict with, or contradict GASB pronouncements, Into one. This Statement
supersedes GASB Statement No. 20 and eliminates the election in paragraph 7 of Statement No. 20 that
allowed enterprise funds and business-type activities to apply post-November 30, 1989 FASB Statements
and Interpretations that do not conflict with GASB pronouncements. The requirements of this Statement
are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Early application is encouraged. This
Statement will not have a significant impact on the City.

In June 2011, GASB issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred QOutflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. This statement calls for deferred outflows of resources
to be reported separately from assets, and for deferred inflows of resources to be reported separately
from liabilities. The net difference between these elements are described as net position, rather than as
net assets. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods that ends December 31, 2012.
This statement will not have a significant impact on how the City reports its net position.
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D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (Continued):
18. New Accounting Pronouncements (Continued):

In June 2011, GASB issued Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting
Termination Provisions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 53. This Statement enhances
comparability and improves financial reporting by clarifying the circumstances in which hedge accounting
should continue when a swap counterparty, or a swap counterparty's credit support provider, is replaced.
The requirements of this statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2011. Early
application is encouraged. This statement is expected to have a significant impact on the City.

Note 2 — Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements

A. Explanation of certaln differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - tofal
governmental funds and net assets — governmental aclivities as reported in the govemment-wide
statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that "long-term liabiiities, including
honds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.”
The detalls of this $183,859 difference are as follows (in thousands):

Bonds payable $ 149,026
Less: Deferred charge on refunding (to be amortized as
interest expense) 1,221
Less: Issuance premium 3,852
Less: Issuance discount (to be amortized as interest expense) (519)
Deferred bond issuance cost (429)
Accrued interest payable 700
Capital leases payable 18,074
Claims and judgments 2,087
Compensated absences 4,934
Workers' Compensation Benefits 4,933

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance ~ total governmental funds to arrive at
niet assets — governmental activities $ 183,859

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “Internal service funds are used to account for the

group benefit plan. The assets and liahilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental

activities in the statement of net assets.” The details of this ($ 20) difference are as follows (in thousands):
Net assets of the internal service funds (% 20)

Net adjustment to increase fund balance ~ fotal governmental funds to arrive at
nel assels — governmenlal aclivities ($ 20)

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
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Note 2 - Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements
(Continued):

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities
{Continued):

reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net
assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. COne element
of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense.” The details of this ($1,072) difference are as follows (in thousands):

Capital outlay $ 5,749
Depreciation expense (6.821)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances — total governmental
funds fo amrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities (§1,072)

Another element of that reconciliation states that “The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases)
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however,
has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums,
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized
in the statement of activities.” The details of this $1,005 difference are as follows {in thousands):

Principal repayments: :
Limited obligation debt 490
Other debt : 515

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances — total
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental
activities $ 1,005

Another element of that reconciliation states that "The activities from debt related transactions include new
capital lease proceeds reported in the fund statements and retirement of prior lease.” The details of this
$4,553 difference are as follows (in thousands):

Debt issued or incurred:

Capital lease financing $ 8,159
Principal repayments:
Payment on capital lease (3,606)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances — fotal
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental
activities ' $§ 4,553
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Note 2 - Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements
(Continued):

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities
(Continued):

Another element of that reconciliation states that “Some expenses reported in the statement of activities
do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in
governrental funds.” The details of this $121 difference are as follows (in thousands):

Compensated absences $ 486
Workers' compensation benefits (175)
Claims and judgments {721)
Accrued interest ' 27
Amortization of bond premium 360
Amortization of bond discounts (28)
Amortization of issuance costs _ 155
Amortization of deferred costs 17

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances — lotal
governmental funds to arrive at changes in nef assets of govermmental
activitles $ 121

Ancther element of that reconciliation states that "Revenues recognized on the full accrual basis for the
government-wide statements but are not recognized on the fund statements.” The details of this $267
difference are as follows (in thousands):

Property taxes receivable $ 234
Special assessments recelvable 33

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances — total governmental
funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities $ 267

Another element of that reconciliation states that "Internal service funds are used by management to
charge the costs of fleet management and management information systems to individual funds. The net
revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.” The details
of this {$ 920) difference are as follows (in thousands):

Change in net assets of the internal service funds ($ 920)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - total
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental

aclivilies g$ 920}
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Note 3 — Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

The City follows these procedures in establishing budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements.

1.

The Finance Division of the Department of Administration prepares estimates of available
revenue.

Department directors submit proposed expenditure budgets to the Finance Division of the
Department of Administration by June 1 each year.

The Finance Division of the Department of Administration reviews the expenditure budgets,
and the necessary revisions are communicated to depariment directors.

Budgeted revenues and expenditures are balanced, and a summary budget is prepared by July
1, and presented to the Mayor.

The Mayor submits the proposed budget to the City Council by August 1. The final
budget is approved by September 15 and must be published in a local newspaper on or before
September 30.

The budget is formally amended in September each year or any time that budget revisions
through funds reallocation are necessary or a budget deficit is indicated.

The City prepares annual budgets for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service
Fund, Capital Projects Funds (with the exception of the 1986 Industrial Park, the 1992 Special
Assessment and the 1996 Metro Station Funds), Enterprise Funds, Intemal Service Fund and
Trust Funds (with the exception of the Charitable Trust Fire and Police Fund). Budgets for the
Enterprise Funds are prepared on a GAAP basis but exclude depreciation and bad debt
expense and include debt retirement payments. The General Fund, Debt Service Fund,
Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Funds, Internal Service Fund and Trust Funds are
prepared in accordance with GAAP. Budget and actual comparisons are presented in the
accompanying financial statements for all governmental type funds for which a budget is
adopted.

During the fiscal year, several adjustments are normally required to the adopted budget. The
approved budget may be amended as required in accordance with the following protocol:

a. Revenues are reviewed at least quarterly, and the projections are adjusted if warranted.
These adjustments to expected ravenues, if maternal, can precipitate adjustments to the
expenditure budget.

b. Adjustments to transfer approved expenditure budgets from one department to another or
to transfer from one category to another within a department must be approved by the
City Council.

c.  All new appropriations must be approved by the City Council and are normally submitted
by the Mayor's Office.

The legal level of control for all budgets adopted is at the category level by funds with the
exception of the General Fund, which is appropriated at the category level by department.
Administrative control for all budgets is maintained through the establishment of more detailed
line-item budgets.
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Note 3 — Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability (Continued):

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION (Continued):

The Finance Division of the Department of Administration exercises budgetary monitoring
throughout the fiscal year. An adopted budget may not exceed its appropriated level without
City Council approval. The Finance Division of the Department of Administration advises the
Mayor whenever a requested expenditure will exceed budgeted amounts. The City Council
may approve expenditures in excess of budgeted amounts in various funds or departments as
appropriate, as long as total annual expenditures do not exceed available resources.
Adjustments in expenditure rates, if necessary, are implemented by the City Council as
required, so that the total expenditures and resources will remain in balance throughout the

year,

8. Budgeted expenditure or expense amounts as originally adopted were amended by the City
Council in September 2011 as provided by law, as follows (in thousands):

General Fund

Special Revenue Funds

Debt Service Fund
Capital Projects Funds
Enterprise Funds
Internal Service Fund

Originally Budget as Increase
Adopted Budget Amended (Decrease)

$102,112 $ 116,238 $ 14126
32,327 48,105 15,778

10,392 11,811 1,419

24,902 28,207 3,305

112,198 179,115 66,917

12,286 14,066 1,780

$ 294,217 $ 397,542 $103,325

9. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year end in all funds.

B. DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

The City has no deficit fund equity by individual fund as of September 30, 2011.
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds
A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

1. Policies and Practices

The collateral for public entities’ deposits in financial institutions are now held in the name of the State
Treasurer under a program established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by Section
27-105-5, Mississippi Code Ann. (1972). Under this program, the entity’s funds are protected through ¢
collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer. Financial institutions holding deposits of public funds
must pledge securities as collateral against those deposits. In the event of failure of a financial institution,
securities pledged by that institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public
deposits not covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

2. Deposits - Primary government

At year end, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $114,934,517 and the bank balances totaled
$117,611,980. Of the bank balances, $250,000 was insured by federal deposit insurance and
$117,361,080 was covered by pooled and/or pledged collateral, as allowed by the Mississippi Code.

3. Investments - Primary Government

As of September 30, 2011, the City had investments consisting of U.S. Agencies at a total fair value of
$2,000,000 with a total Portfolio Weighted Average maturity of less than one year.

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. As a means of limiting its exposure to losses from rising interest rates, the City's
investment policy limits investment maturities in its portfolio to no more than 12 months for U.S. Treasury
obiigations for all investments except bond funds. With respect to bond funds, the City can invest in
obligations of U.S. federal agencies for no more than 18 months.

Custodial Credit Risk — Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of failure of the counterparty, the
City will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the
possessions of an outside party. Consistent with the City's investment policy, all investments above are
held by a counterparty and are not insured but are backed by the U. S. government.

Following is a list of the City's eligible investments, which in accordance with State statute are limited to
the investment of funds in excess of sums required for immediate expenditure or current obligations:
¢ Certificates of deposit with municipal depositories approved annually by the State Treasurer
°  Money market mutual funds where portfalios consist entirely of U. S. governmental and/or
federal agency securities
*  Bonds or direct obligations of the:
- United States of America
- State of Mississippi
- County or Municipality of Mississippi
- Schaool Districts

State statute allows the investment of funds received from the sale of bonds, notes, or certificates of
indebtedness which are not immediately required for disbursement for the purpose issued, in direct
obligations issued by or guaranteed in full by the United States of America, or in certificates of deposit with
approved municipal depositories.
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):
A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued):

4, Cash and Investments - Component Units

The component unit's policy is to invest available funds in the following types of investments: 1) direct
obligations of the U. S. of America, including such instruments as treasury bills, treasury notes and
treasury bonds; 2) obligations of U, S. Government agencies that are deliverable on the Federal Reserve
System; 3) Repurchase agreements in U. S. Government securities made with dealers that report to and
are regulated by the Federal Reserve Bank; 4) deposits with financial institutions which are insured or are
fully collateralized by qualifying securities.

The collateral for public entities’ deposits in financial institutions is held in the name of the State Treasurer
under a program established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by Section 27-105-5,
Mississippi Code Ann. (1972). Under this program, the entity’s funds are protected through a collateral
pool administered by the State Treasurer. Financial institutions holding deposits of public funds must
pledge securitles as collateral against those deposits. In the event of failure of a financial institution,
securities pledged by that institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public
deposits not covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). As of September 30, 2011
all of the component unit's cash deposits in excess of the amounts covered by the FDIC were covered
under the collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer.

Investments are reflected at cost, which approximates fair value. These investments were uninsured,
unregistered, and held by the counterparty brokerage firm. At September 30, 2011, investments of the
component unit consisted of the following (n thousands}):

Jackson Redevelopment Authority
U. S. Treasury Bills:

Unrestricted $ 527
Restricted under bond agreements 1,202
3 1,819
Capital City Convention Center Commission
Certificate of deposit:
Unrestricted $ 500

B. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at September 30, 2011, for the primary government's individual major funds and nonmajor,
internal service, and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible
accounts, are as follows (in thousands):

Water 2003
Debt and Federal GO Nonmajor and
General  Service Sewer Sanitation  Improvement  Grant Bond Other Funds Total
Receivables:
Accounts receivable $ - § - $20297 § 4969 % - % 20 % - % 55 $ 25341
Intergovemmental 35 - - - 8 1,848 454 1,004 3,347
Other 59,662 3,543 292 - - - 8,989 72,486
Gross receivables $58697 $3543 $20589 $ 4969 § 6 $18688 §$ 454 § 10,048 $ 101,174

Receivables of Water and Sewer are reported net of uncollectible amounts.
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):
B. RECEIVABLES {Continued):
1. Property taxes

Property taxes on real and personal property, exclusive of automobiles, attach as an
enforceable lien on the levy date or January 1 for the preceding calendar year. Hinds, Rankin and
Madison Counties bill and collect the real, personal and auto ad valorem taxes for the City of Jackson,
Jackson Municipal Separate School District and the Jackson/Hinds Library System. Automobile taxes are
remitted monthly and real and personal taxes are remitted on a weekly basis to the City of Jackson. Hinds
County remits directly to the Jackson Municipal Separate School District taxes collected for ali schoo!
funds except the Bond and Interest Fund in accordance with State law. Hinds County also remits to the
City a pro rata share of road and bridge taxes collected by the County.

The taxes are due on or before February 1; however, installment payments can be made one-half of
balance due on February 1 and one-fourth each on May 1 and August 1.

Tax millage levies for 2010 were collected in the current fiscal year and statutory maximum millage rates
were as follows:

Fund , Levy (in mills) Purpose Maximum
General Fund 45.81 General None
Parks and Recreation Fund 2.00 Recreation 2.00 mills
Debt Service Fund 3.07 Debt retirement None
Disability and Relief Fund 575 Retirement None
Total City of Jackson 56.63
Jackson/Hinds Library System 1.40 Public library None
Jackson Municipal Separate
School District:
District Supplement Levy 62.58 Public schools None
Special Debt Retirement Levy 2.21 public schoqls None
Special Debt Retirement Bond 3.59 Public schools None
Special Debt Retirement 6.61 Public schools None

74.99
Total mills 133.02

The City levies an assessment for the Landscape Improvement fund which consists of nine cents of the
gross square footage of land and building of property owners located in the downtown deveiopment
district.

The City is permitted to fevy taxes based on a percentage of up to 100% of fair value of property at the
millage indicated above. At the present time, the City levies taxes based on 10% of fair value for
homeowner-occupied real property, 15% of fair value for all other real and personal property, and 30% of
fair value for all motor vehicles and property owned by public service corporations. The City may levy
taxes as necessary to meet bonded debt retirement. Limitations are imposed on the amount of bonded
debt that may be issued based upon assessed valuation of properties.

Annual tax increases for all purposes except payment of general obligation bonds and interest are limited
by State law to 10% of the preceding year’s receipts plus new construction.
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):
B. RECEIVABLES (Continued):

1. Property taxes (Continued):

The State levies a 7% sales tax on retail sales and remits 18.5% of collections to the City monthly.

Intergovernmental revenue of the General Fund inciudes $30,797,900 of sales tax revenue.

In accordance with the Local and Private Act, since January 1, 2005 the City has levied, assessed and is
collecting: {(a) tax of 1% of the gross proceeds of sales of restaurants and of sales of food and beverages
in the hotels and motels, within the City; (b) a tax of 3% of the gross proceeds of sales of hotel and motel
rooms and lodging within the City; and (c) a tax of 3% of gross proceeds of sales at the Convention Center
by caterers. The tax is primarily to be used for debt service payments on bonds issued for the

construction of a convention center.

Governmental funds reported deferred revenue in connection with receivabies for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds alsc defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end
of the current fiscal year, the vanous components of deferred revenue reported in the governmentat funds

were as follows:

Delinquent property taxes receivable (general fund)
Delinquent property taxes receivable (debt service fund}
Special assessments not yet due (debt service fund)
Current year tax assassments (all funds} '
Grant drawdowns prior to meeting all eligibflity requirements
Total uneamed revenue for governmental funds

C. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Uneamed
$ 1,385,163

747,115
105,713

66,664,297

532,938

$60,425,226

1. Primary government capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2011, was as follows

{thousands):
Balance Balance
September 30, September 30,
Governmental Actlvitles: 2010 Additions Deletions 2011
Capital assets not heing depreciated:
Land $ 14,528 § - % 2 % 14,526
Construction in progress 80,434 3,645 - 84,079
Total capltal assets not being depreciated 94,962 3,645 (2) 98,605
Capital assets belng depreclated:
Bulldings 81,408 72 - 81,480
Infrastructure 214,246 - - 214,246
Automotive and equipment 67,948 3,443 {1,410} 69,961
Total capltal assets being depreciated 363,602 3,515 {1,410) 365,707
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (22,578) (1,531) - (24,109)
Infrastructure (91,845) (3.811) - (95,656)
Automotive and aquipment (56,617) (2,888) 1,410 {58,085)
Total accumulated depreciation {171,040) {8,230} 1,410 (177,860)
Total capital assets being depreclated, net 102,562 {4,715) - 187,847
Total govermmental actlvilies capital
assets, net $ 287,524 % (1.070) §$ 2 % 286,452
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):

C. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued):

Balance Balance
September 30, September 30,
Business-Type Actlvities: 2010 Additions Deletions 2011
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1838 $ - - 8 1,838
Construction in progress 136,594 6,660 {152) 143,102
Total capital assets not being depreciated 138,432 6,660 {152) 144,940
Capital assets being depreclated:
Buildings 117,840 a8 - 118,028
infrastructure 259,716 152 (182) 259,686
Automotive and equipment 32,348 2,266 (8,677) 25,937
Total capital assets being depreciated 410,004 2 506 (8,859) 403,651
Less accumulated depreciation for;
Buildings (73,922} (1,062) - (74,984)
Infrastructure (112,135) (993) - (113,128)
Automotive and equipment {15,124) {3,641) 8,849 (9,916)
Total accumulated depreciation (201,181) {5,696) 8,849 (198,028)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 208,823 {3,190) {10) 205,623
Total business-type activities capital assets, net $ 347,255 § 3470 § {162) $ 350,563

2. Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows {in thousands):

Governmental Activities:
General govemment
Public Works
Human & Cultural
Public Safety

Total depreciation expense — governmental activities
Business-Type Activitles:

Water/Sewer

Sanitation

Non-major business - type activitles

Total depreciation expense — business-type activilles
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):

C. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued):

3. Construction work in progress at September 30, 2011 for the governmental activities of the primary

government is composed of the following:

Remaining
Project Spent-to-date Commitment
Improvement Fund $ 13,520,123 $ 48,377
Community Development Block Grant 1,760,060 10,687
FEMA/MEMA Disaster - 277,096
1982 Industrial Park Bond 189,686 -
1988 G O Public Improvement Construction Bond 116,179 -
1994 G O Public Improvement Construction Bond 10,000 -
1998 G O Public Improvement Construction Bond 18,848,330 129,648
2003 G O Public Improvement Construction Bond 21,433,828 1,258,183
2007 Tax Increment Limited Obligation Bond 2,077,735 -
Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant - 4,061,547
2008 G Q Street Construction Bond 18,480,121 1,080,294
2009 American Recovery Reinvestiment Act 219,667 685,868
Thalia Mara Halt ) 231,976 -
Economic Development Initiative —
Economic Development 166,134 14,423
Traffic — Repair and Replacement 2,092,581 285,367
Drainage — Repair and Replacement 1,023,223 14,885
Housing Rehab 284,377 -
Resurfacing — Repair and Replacement 3,615,417 27,233
Hawkins Fileld Industrial Development 9,643 -
Parks - Repair and Replacement - 28,161
Total $ 84,079,080 $ 7,931,769

4. Construction work in progress at September 30, 2011 for primary government enterprise funds

is composed of the following:

Project
Water/Sewer Construction
Fund
Total

Spent-to-date
$143,102.616

$143,102,616
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):

C. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

5. A summary of changes in capitat assets for component units is as follows (in thousands):

Activity for the Jackson Redevelopment Authority for the year ended September 30, 2011, was as follows:

Balance Balance
September 30, September 30,
Businese-Type Activities: 2010 Addlitlons Deletions 2011
Capital assets not being depraciated:
Land $ 4383 $% 155 $ - $ 4,538
Construction in progress 78 58 - 135
Property held for development 1,838 8 - 1,846
Total capital assets not being depreciated 6,299 221 6,520
Other capital assets:
Land improvements 29 - - 29
Buildings 49,929 50 - 49,979
Equipment and fumiture 1,288 5 - 1,293
Total other capital assets 51,246 55 - 51,300
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land Improvements (29) - - {29)
Buildings (18,086) (1,255) . (19,321)
Equipment and furniture {1,288} {1) - (1,289)
Total capital assets being depreciated {19,383) {1,256} - (20,639)
Total other capital assets, net 31,863 {1,201) - 30,662
Total capital assets, net 5 38162 % (980) % $ 37,182
Depreciation expense was charged to activities as follows (in thousands).
Urban renewal projects $ 815
Rehabilitation loan services 1
Parking facilities 440
Total $ 1256

Activity for the Capital City Convention Center Commission for the year ended September 30, 2011, was

as follows (in thousands}):

Balance Balance
. September 30, September 30,

Business-Type Actlvities: 2010 Additions Delations Transfers 2011
Capital assets not being depreclated:
Land $ 5785 § 7 % - 3 - % 5,792
Buiiding and Improvements 78,842 17 - - 79,926
Equipment 4,214 261 - - 4508

89,941 285 - - . 90,226
Less accumulated depreciation {4.324) (2,460) - - {6,784}
Total capital assats, nat $ 85617 $ (2175) $ - % - $ 83,442
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):

D. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS:
Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances as of September 30, 2011 follows (in

thousands):
Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables
General Fund $ 3,142 $ -
Federal Grant - 214
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds - 2,928
Total $ 3,142 $3.142

Summary of transfer in/transfer out within primary government {in thousands):

Transfer Transfer
In Out
General Fund $ 2 $ 14,899
Debt Service Fund 2,491 742
Proprietary Fund - 62
Federal Grant Fund 1,883 -
Improvement Fund 300 26
2006 G O Bond - 2,431
Nonmaijor Governmental Funds 3,240 -
Internat Servica Fund 4667 -
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds 5,627 -
Total $ 18,220 $ 18,220

Interfund transfers at September 30, 2011 consist of the following (in thousands):

$ 743
60

27

2,491

1123

3.240
4,687

5,567

300
$¢

From Debt Service Fund to the Major Governmentat Fund (Federal Grant Fund) to subsidize operations.
From Water Sewer to Madison to subsidize operations.

From the improvement Fund to the Major Governmental Fund (Federal Grant Fund) to subsidize operations.
From the Major Governmental Fund {2006 G O Bond) to the Debt Service Fund for debt service payment,
From the General Fund to the Major Governmental Fund {Federal Grant Fund) fo subsidize operations.

From the General Fund to the Nenmajor Govemmental Funds (Parks and Recreation and State Grant Funds) to
subsidize operatlons.

From the General Fund to the Intemal Service Fund to subsidize operations.
From the General Fund to the Nonmajor Proprietary Funds (Transportation) to subsidize operations.
From the Proprietary Funds (Sanilation) to the General Fund to subsidize operations.

From the General Fund to the Major Governmental Fund (Improvement Fund) to subsidiza cperations.
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):

E. CAPITAL LEASES:

The City leases property with varying terms and options. Most leases contain a clause that states that the
lease shall terminate in the event that no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated. However, if renewal
is reasonably assured, leases are considered noncancellable leasss for financial reporting purposes.

The City has financed through lease agreements the acquisition of the data processing division computer
system, word-processing systems for the legal division, computerized records management system and a
computer-aided dispatch system for the fire and police departments, and varicus copying and duplicating
equipment. In addition, tractors have been acquired for both the Water Maintenance and the Engineering
Maintenance divisions; golf carts have been acquired for the City's golf courses and riding lawn mowers
have been acquired for park maintenance. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for
accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of future minimum lease
payments as of the date of their inception. Future minimum lease payments under operating leases are
disclosed in the following note. At September 30, 2011, there were assets under capital lease totaling
$22,851,666 for machinery and equipment. Future minimum lease payments for capital leases are
disclosed in Note 4.G.8.

The City has reported the proceeds of capital leases related to its Proprietary Funds ‘as inflows of tash
since the City receives cash advances from the lessors and purchases the related assets.

F. OPERATING LEASES:

The City is obligated under certain noncancellable leases for land and buildings with terms remaining
more than one year that are classified as operating leases. Operating leases do not give rise to property
rights; therefore, the results of the lease agreements are not reflected in the City's account groups. Total
lease expenditures for the rental of all land and buildings under operating leases for the year ended
September 30, 2011, amounted to $552,753. The following Is a schedule by years of future minimum
lease payments required under the noncancellable land and building operating leases as of
September 30, 2011, (in thousands of dollars);

Fiscal Year : Amount
2012 $ 405
2013 188
2014 188
2015 188
2016 123
2017 and thereatter 2270
Total $ 3,362

The total rental expenditures for all operating leases of the City for the year ended September 30, 2011
totaled to $1,233,037. There were no subleases or contingent rentals associated with the operating
leases.
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):
G. LONG-TERM DEBT:

1. General Obligation Bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for both general government and proprietary
activities. These bonds therefore are repaorted in the proprietary funds if they are to be repald from
proprietary revenues.

The City issued $20 million of general obligation bonds in January 2003 to provide funds for the costs of:
(A) erecting, repairing, improving, and equipping municipal buildings, (B) improving streets, (C) traffic
signals, (D)} drainage improvements. _

On August 4, 2005, the City issued $20,960,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds with an average
interest rate of 4.26 percent to advance refund $20,710,000 of outstanding General Obligation Bonds,
Series 1998 with an average interest rate of 5.05. The net proceeds of $21,904,652 (after payment of
$343,777 in underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance costs} were used to purchase U. S.
government securities. Those securities were deposited in an Irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to
provide for ail future debt service payments for the General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998. As a result,
the General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998 bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those
bonds has been removed from the government-wide statement of net assets. A portion ($7,490,000} of
the General Obligation Bonds, Series 1988 was not refunded,

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the old debt of $1,401,036. This difference is being charged to operations through the year
2017. The City completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next
12 years by $816,595 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the oid
and new debt service payments) of $861,719.

On Nevember 8, 2006, the City issued $65,000,000 in General Obligation Bonds to provide funds (a} to
purchase the City Bond to provide funds to the City in order to finance the acquisition, construction,
equipping, and furnishing of a convention center in the City to be known as the Capital City Convention
Center and for other authorized purposes under the Act (the "Consfruction Project™), and (b} to pay the
Costs of Issuance of the Series 2006 Bonds and the City Bond, including the cost of the premium for the
Bond Insurance Policy.

On January 1, 2009 the City issued $26,210,000 General Obligation Street Resurfacing Bond. The Bonds
are being issued to provide funds to (a) purchase the City Bond to provide funds to the City to pay the
costs of constructing, improving and paving streets, sidewalks, driveways, parkways, walkways and public
parking facilities, and purchasing land therefore; and consfructing bridges and culverts and (b) pay the
Caosts of Issuance of the Bonds and the City Bond.

On September 1, 2010 the City issued $23,665,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series A & B.
The bonds were issued to provide funds to the City in order to refund, defease and/or restructure certain
outstanding maturities on the $5,490,000 General Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 1998, the
$35,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998, the $20,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series
2003, the $20,960,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2005, the $5,155,000 General
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2008, and the $26,210,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009,
and to pay the costs of issuance.
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The average interest rate on the 2010 General Obligation Refunding Bond is 4.17%. The net proceeds of
$25,128,292 resulted in an economic loss to the City in the amount of {($2,116,552). The 1998 General
Obligation Bond $5,490,000, the 1998 General Obligation Bond $35,000,000, and the 2008 General
Obligation Bond $5,155,000 are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds have been
removed from the government-wide statement of net assets. A portion of the 2003 General Obligation
Bond $20,000,000, 2005 General Refunding Bond $20,960,000, and the 2009 General Obligation Bond
$26,210,000 were not refunded.

At September 30, 2011, the City had $12,855,000 of general obligation bonds considered to be defeased
and outstanding.

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and piedge the fult faith and credit of the City. These
bonds generally are issued as serial bonds in denominations of $5,000 with principal maturing annually
and interest due at various semi-annual dates. General obligation bonds currently outstanding at
September 30, 2011, were as follows (in thousands):

Final

Date of Interest Maturity

Obligation Rate Date _lssued Qutstanding
General Obligation Bonds:
MS Development Bank GO Bonds, Series 2003 01/05/03 2.00-5.25% 03/01/23 20,000 $ 12395
General Obligation Bonds, Refunding 2005 08/04/05 3.00-5.00% 10/ 17 20,960 9,815
General Obllgation Bonds, Series 2006 11/08/06 3.60-5.00% 03/01/36 85,000 65,000
General Obiigation Bonds, Series 2009 © 01/01/02 4.00-5.80% 01/91724 26,210 21,045
General Obligation Refunding Series 2010A 08/01/10 2.00-5.00% 09101724 16,655 16,655
General Obligation Refunding Series 2010B 09/01/10 4.370 09/01724 7,010 7.010
Total General Obligation Bonds $ 131,720

2. Revenue Bonds

On October 22, 2004, the City issued $78,085,000 of Water/Sewer System Revenue and Revenue
Refunding Bonds with an average interest rate of 4.53 percent to provide construction funding of
$57,985,452 and to advance refund $5,030,000 of outstanding Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds,
Series 1999 with an average interest rate of 6.38 percent and to advance refund $5,895,000 of
outstanding Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 with an average interest rate of 3.71. The
net proceeds of $11,567,152 (after payment of $210,259 in underwriting fees, insurance and other
Issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. govemment securities. Those securities were deposited in
an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the portions of
the Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 and the Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds,
Series 2002 that were refunded.
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As a result, the portion of the Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 and the Water/Sewer
System Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 that were refunded are considered to be defeased and the liability
for those bonds has been removed from the Water/Sewer Proprietary Fund.

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the old debt of $642,152. This difference is being charged to operations through the year 2034.
The City completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 6 years
by $9,212,277 which resuited in an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old debt
and the new debt service payments) of $209,734.

On August 4, 2005, the City issued $27,180,000 in Water/Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bonds with
an average interest rate of 4.32 percent to advance refund $25,800,000 of outstanding Water/Sewer
System Revenue Bonds, Series 1989 with an average interest rate of 5.21. The net proceeds of
$27,758,429 (after payment of $496,236 in underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance costs) were
used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irevocable trust with
an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments for the Water/Sewer System Revenue
Bonds, Series 1999. As a result, the Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 bonds are
considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the Water/Sewer
Proprietary Fund. A portion ($5,085,000) of the Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 was
not refunded. The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net
carrying amount of the old debt of $2,785,028. This difference is being charged to operations through the
year 2024. The City completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the
next 19 years by $1,057,504 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the
old debt and the new debt service payments) of $1,383,192.

On September 1, 2011, the City issued $46,720,000 and $2,565,000 in Water/Sewer System Revenue
Refunding Bonds to advance refund $42,355,000 of outstanding Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds,
Series 2002, $1,140,000 of outstanding Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding, Series 2004, and $2,790,000
of outstanding Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding, Series 2005. The purpose for issuing the Tax-Exempt
Bonds is {(a) to fund the 2011A Purchase Account, in order to provide funds for the purchase of the Tax-
Exempt City Bond (which amounts are to provide financing for the refunding, defeasance and/or
restructuring of a portion of the Prior Bonds pursuant to the Act), (b) to pay the premium for the Bond
Insurance Policy and the Surety Bond for the Tax-Exempt Bonds, and {c) to fund the 2011A Bond
Issuance Expense Account to pay the Costs of Issuance in connection with the Tax-Exempt Bonds and
the Tax-Exempt City Bond. The purpose for issuing the Taxable Bonds is {a) to fund the 2011B Purchase
Account, in order to provide funds for the purchase of the Taxable City Bond (which amounts are to
provide financing for the refunding and/or restructuring of a portion of the Prior Bonds pursuant to the Act),
{b) to pay the premium for the Bond Insurance Policy and the Surety Bond for the Taxable Bonds, and (c)
to fund the 20118 Bond Issuance Expense Account to pay the Costs of Issuance in connection with the
Taxable Bonds and the Taxable City Bond.

Revenue bonds outstanding, at September 30, 2011, were as follows (in thousands):

Finat
Date of Interest Maturity

Revenue Bonds: Obligation Rate Date _Issued  _Outstanding
Enterprise Funds:

Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding 2004 10/22/04 3.00-5.00% 08/01/31 78,085 $ 76,120
Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding 2005 07/01/05 3.00-5.00% 08/01/24 27,180 22,920
Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding 2011A 09/01/11 2.50-5.00% 09/01/34 46,720 46,720
Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding 2011B 09/01/11 4.070-5.40% 09/01/34 2,565 2,565

§ 148326

At September 30, 2011, the 'City had $44,700,000 of revenue bonds considered to be defeased and
outstanding.
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3. Tax Increment Limited Obligation Bonds

The City issued $2.270 million of tax increment limited obligation bonds in December 2007 to provide
funds for the costs of constructing certain infrastructure improvements, site development and or site
preparation in connection with the development and construction of a redevelopment project located within
the City. The City entered into an Interfocal Cooperation Agreement with Hinds County, Mississippi, to
provide the pledge of certain ad valorem tax revenues for the payment of the principal and interest on the
bonds. As a result, the bonds are not a general obligation of the City. Limited obligation bonds
outstanding at September 30, 2011, are as follows (in thousands):

Final
Date of Interest Maturity
Limited Obligation Bonds: _Obligation Rate Date lssued Qutstanding
General Long-Term Debt:
Tax Increment Financing
Bonds, 2007 122812007 4.47% 3/1/2020 2,270 $ 1,850
Tax Increment Financing
Bonds, 2009 41232009 4.20% 4/1/2024 407 374
Tax Increment Financing
Bonds, 2009 6/16/2009 3.83% 7112015 375 259
Tax Increment Financing
Bonds, 2009 6/18/2009 4.75% 7/1/2022 1,600 1,423
Tax Increment Financing
Bonds, 2010 12/30/2010 - % 7112022 2,800 2,634
Total Limited Obligation Bonds 6,540

4. Section 108 Loan

On July 1, 2008, the City entered into a loan guaranty assistance in an amount not to exceed the
$10,000,000 under Section 108 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 for the purpose
of providing assistance for the Capital City Center Revitalization Project and for development of a
revolving business loan program. Under the Confract for Loan Guarantee Assistance between the City
and HUD, HUD authorized the City to loan up to $10,000,000 under the 108 Program to TCl MS
Investment, Inc. for special economic development activities under 24 CFR 570.703(i)(1) and 570.203(b)
and, in particular, for “site assemblage” costs for the Revitalization Project. Upon repayment of the TCI
Loan, the City is authorized to use funds under the 1098 program for the Business Loan Pool.
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The Revitalization Project is to consist of development of two (2) hotels, commercial and retail space, a
parking garage and residential facilities to help revitalize the City's CBD while providing job creation for
persons of low and moderate income through construction activities and then through the new businesses
opened as part of the Revitalization Project. The Business Loan Pool is to be used to provide loan to for-
profit and non-profit businesses and organizations which meet the eligibility requirements of 24 CFR
570.703, the national objective requirements of 570.208 and, if applicable, the public benefit standards of
570.209(b).

As required by the Guaranty Agreement, the City also entered into an agreemsnt with Regions Bank to
serve as custodian of original loan and security documents for the loan to TCI.

5. Jackson Redevelopment Authority
Urban Renewal Bonds and Notes

Urban renewal bonds and notes are issued to provide funds for various rehabilitation projects. The urban
renewal bonds outstanding and net of unamortized bond discount of $351,769 at September 30, 2011,
were as follows (in thousands):

Final
Date of Interest Maturlty
Obllgation Rate Date Jssued Qutstand|
Urban Renewal Bonds:
Enterprise Funds:
Urban Renawal Revenue
Bonds, Series 1997-A 10/01/97 4.00-5.00% 11/01/13 12,270 $ 1.036
Urban Renewal Central '
Business District, 1998-A 09/01/98 4.50-6.375% 09/01/23 2,825 170
Urban Renewal Central )
Business District, 1988-B 09/01/98 6.50-8.50% 09/01/23 1,175 -
Urban Renewal Bonds
Jackson Mall Area Project, 1998-A 11/01/98 4.10-5.70% 11/01/13 650 -
Urban Renewal Borkl
Central Business Dlstrict, 2000-A 11/01/00 5.00-7.00% 11/01/25 2,250 -
Urban Renewal Note
Central Business District, 2006-A-1 10/01/06 3.75% 10/01/10 4,450 -
Urban Renewal Note, Series 2009 08/10/09 68.50% 08/01/19 1,750 -
Urban Renewal Bond, Series, 2011-A 06/01/11 3.25% 06/01/31 7.165 7.002
lJrban Renewal Bond, Series, 2011-B 06/01/11 5.15% 06/01/23 2,745 2,745
Total Urban Renewal Bonds and Notes $10,9563
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G. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

i

6. A summary of long-term debt transactions for the primary government and for the component unit for
the year ended September 30, 2011, was as follows (in thousands):

Beglnning Ending Due Within
Governmental actlvities: Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Bonds and loans payable:
General obligation bonds $ 11,720 § - 8 P 131,720 & 430
H Limited obligation bonds 4,231 2,800 490 6,541 438
State issued bonds 286 - 286 - -
State revolving loan MDA 462 - 32 430 40
Miss. Development Bank Loan 2,850 a8z 197 3,335 254
Section 108 Loan 7,000 - - 7.000 -
L ess deferred amounts:
For issuance discount (547) - (28} (519) -
On refunding 1,376 - 155 1,221 -
For issuance premium 4,212 - 360 3,852 -
Total bonds payable 151,380 3,682 1,492 153,580 1,162
’ Capital leases 13,520 8,159 3,606 18,073 4,240
Clalms and Judgments 2,788 883 1,603 2,068 600
Workers' Compensation Benefits 5,108 1,643 1,818 4,933 2,000
! Compensated absences 4,448 2,583 2,096 4,935 2,410
a 25,864 13,268 9,123 - 30,009 9,250
Total Govemmental Activity $ 177,254 % 16,950 % 10615 § 183,569 § 10,412
Business-type activities:
Bonds and loans payable:
Revenue bonds $ 148,920 $% 49,285 § 49880 § 148,325 §$ 760
a L ess deferred amounts:
For Issuance premiums 3,953 1,378 1,854 3,477 -
On refunding {1,705} 38 {136) {1,531) -
Total bonds payable 151,168 50,701 51,598 150,271 760
Capital leases 4,703 71 2,016 2,758 1,783
State Revolving Loan (DEQ) 15,428 - 1,629 13,799 1,520
2 Compensated absences 539 288 282 545 333
20,670 359 3,927 17,102 3,636
Total Business-type activities $ 171,838 § 51,060 § 65,525 % 167,373 § 4,396

;
Component Unit — Jackson Redevelopment Authority

Urban Renewal bonds $ 7070 § 8810 $ 5860 $ 11,120 $ 1,105

g Urban Renewal notes 3,671 - 3,671 - -
Less deferred amounts:

For issuance premiums - - - - -

On refunding {15) {(152) - (167} -

Total Component Unlt $ 10,726 § 9758 $ 8531 $ 10,953 % 1,105

Total Long-Term Debt $ 358,818 $ 77,768 § 75671 § 61,915 $ 15,913
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G. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

7. The City's legal debt margin for the issuance of general obligation bonds was $100,368,253 at
September 30, 2011.

8. Annual Maturities Requirements
The annual requirements to amortize all long-term debts outstanding, net of unamortized bond discount of
$561,252 for the component unit as of September 30, 2011, including interest, by source of retirement are

as follows {in thousands):

Debt Service Fund (Speclal Tax Levy)
General Obligation Bonds

Fiscal Year Interest Principal Total
2012 $ 6,252 $ 430 3 6,682
2013 6,232 2,890 9,122
2014 6,142 5,610 11,752
2015 5,923 5,855 11,878
2016 5,630 6,330 11,960

2017 - 2021 23,160 33,335 56,495
2022 — 2026 13,175 34,995 48,170
2027 - 201 8,315 17,245 25,560
2032 - 2036 3,297 24,930 28,227
Total $ 78,126 $131,720 $ 209,846
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Limited
Obligation Bonds
Fiscal Year Interest Principal Total

2012 $ 264 $ 438 $ 7,384

2013 257 467 9,846

g 2014 255 488 12,495
2015 243 518 12,639

ﬂ 2016 229 476 12,665
2017 — 2021 448 2,483 59,406

2022 - 2026 239 961 49,370

2027 - 2031 200 730 26,490

g 2032 - 2036 - - 28,227
_ 2037 - 2041 - - -
Total $ 2135 $ 6,541 $ 218,522

General Fund (General Fund Revenues)
Obligation Under Capital

a

Loases
Fiscal Year interest Princlpal Total

2012 $§ 513 $ 4240 $ 4753

2013 442 3910 4,352

2014 339 2,803 3,142

ﬂ 2015 267 1,515 1,782
2016 . 216 1,154 1,370

2017 — 2021 737 2,562 3,299
2022 - 2026 235 1,814 2,049

a 2027 — 2032 7 75 82
Total $ 2,756 $ 18,073 $20,829
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Enterprise Funds - Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund (Water/Sewer Revenue)

Revenue Bonds

Fiscal Year Interest Principal
2012 $ 6,990 $ 760
2013 6,876 4,870
2014 6,715 5,030
2015 6,519 5,220
2016 6,283 5,460
2017 — 2021 27,511 31,200
2022 - 2026 19,896 34,275
2027 - 2031 11,679 35,735
2032 - 2036 2.597 25,775
Total $ 95,066 $ 148,325
Obligations Under
Capital Lease
Fiscal Year Interest Principal
2012 $ 60 $ 1,783
2013 24 514
2014 14 167
2015 9 150
2016 4 144
2017 — 2021 - -
Total $ 111 $ 2,758
State Revolving Loan
Fiscal Year Interest Principal

2012 $ 440 $ 1,520

2013 374 1,757

2014 307 1,825

2015 245 1,316

2016 - 202 1,083

2017 - 202 509 4,567

2022 - 2026 96 1,519

2027 - 2031 2 212

2032 - 2036 - -

Total $ 2,175 $ 13,799
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Jackson Redevelopment Authority (Urban Renewal Project Revenues)

Jackson Redevelopment Authority
Notes Payable, Urban Renewal

Notes and Bonds

Fiscal Year Interest Principal Total
2012 $ 464 , $1,105 $ 1,569
2013 434 465 899
2014 416 485 901
2015 399 440 839
2016 382 460 842
2017 - 2021 1,569 3,110 4,679
2022 - 2026 892 2,520 3,412
2027 - 2031 353 2,535 2,888

4,909 11,120 16,029
Unamortized refunding

cost and discounts - 167 167

Total $ 4,909 $§ 10953 $15,862

The City has unconditionally and irmrevocably agreed to grant and contribute to the Jackson
Redevelopment Authority from the General Fund of the City sums sufficient to pay the principal of and
interest on the bonds issued by the Jackson Redevelopment Authority for urban renewal purposes, as the
same shall mature and become due. Principal and interest maturities for 2011 were paid by contributions
from the General Fund of $614,226.

There are a number of requirements contained in various revenue bond ordinances. The City is in
compliance with all significant requirements.

9. Annual Maturities Requirements

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding for the City and the component unit as of
September 30, 2011, including interest of $561,252 for the component unit are as follows (in thousands):

Jackson
City of Redevelopment
Fiscal Year Jackson Authority
2012 $ 23,690 $ 1,569
2013 28,613 899
2014 29,606 901
2015 27,880 839
2016 27,211 842
2017 and thereafter 364,496 10979
Total 3 501,586 $ 16,029
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10. Interest Rate Swap

On March 31, 2004, the City and the Mississippi Development Bank {collectively "the City") executed a
confirmation with RFPC, LLC {a subsidiary of Rice Financial Products Company) (the "2004 Swap
Counterparty™), in connection with the execution of an Interest Rate Swap Agreement (the “2004 Swap
Agreement”) in order to reduce the debt service costs associated with certain outstanding obligations of
the City. The swap was done in conjunction with the Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation
Bonds Series 2002 (Jackson, Mississippi Water and Sewer System Revenue Bond Project) issued to fund
certain water and sewer improvements for the City. The notional amount of the swap is $49,105,000. The
City received a savings pre-payment of $119,235 from the 2004 Swap Counterparty.

Under the 2004 Swap Agreement the City receives a fixed rate from the 2004 Swap Counterparty, and in
return pays a fixed rate iess an Adjustment Factor. The Adjustment Factor exposes the City to changes in
the ratio between the tax-exempt BMA Index and LIBOR. Payments on the swap are exchanged
semiannually. The swap became effective on Apnl 1, 2005 and will terminate on April 1, 2024, An early
termination of the swap transaction may result in the City making or receiving a termination payment
based on the prevailing market interest rates at the time of such termination. As of September 30, 2011,
the fair value of the transaction was a liability of $4,247,151 for the City, which is not recorded, in the
financial statements.

Risks Associated with the 2004 Swap Agreement

Credit Risk — The City's swap relies on the performance of the 2004 Swap Counterparty. The City is
exposed to the risk that the 2004 Swap Counterparty is unabile to fulfill its obligations to the City. The
obligations of the 2004 Swap Counterparty to the City are guaranteed by a third party guarantor that
maintains credit ratings of Aaa/AAAJAAA by Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poor's and Fitch,
respectively.

Basis Risk — The City pays fixed rates on the Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation Bonds
Series 2002 (Jackson, Mississippi Water and Sewer System Revenue Bond Project).

Interest Rate Risk — The City is exposed to changes in relationships between tax-exempt and taxable
interest rates that may be affected by changes in the marginal tax rate, the elimination of tax preferences
or other major changes to current tax law including, but not limited to, implementation of a flat tax or value-
added tax.

Termination Risk — The 2004 Swap Agreement does not contain any extraordinary termination events or
triggers that would expose the City to significant termination risk. Iif the 2004 Swap Counterparty falls to
meet its obligations to the City, these obligations will be met by a third party guarantor that maintains credit
ratings of Aaa/AAAJAAA by Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poor's and Fitch, respectively. If the
third party guarantor suffers a loss of creditworthiness, the 2004 Swap Counterparty shall find an
acceptable replacement guarantor. If such replacement guarantor is not available or if the City fails to
meet its obligations to the 2004 Swap Counterparty, the termination provisions in the 2004 Swap
Agreement will apply. The City may be liable for a payment equat to the fair market value of the swap if a
termination occurs prior to April 1, 2024 and that fair market value is negative.
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The City adopted GASB Statement 54 during the year ended September 30, 2011 as such, fund
balance of the governmental funds are classified by specific purpose as follows:

Noamajor Tatal
foprovement  1998GO 2083 GO 2006 GO Governmsental  Governencal
General Fund ~ Federsl Geanl  Debi Servike Fund Bood Bead Boad 2009 GO Bondd Funds Foada
i FUND BALANCES:
NONSPENDABLE:
! Genersl government 5 1,813,522 % - 3 - 8 - § - 5 -3 - 3 - 3 - § L,Bl3j522
RESTREICTED FOR:
General government . 620,237 - - - - - - 83,537 703,774
! Public safety 416,962 44,922 - - - - - - 57,338 539,222
Pablic works - 275,445 - - - - - - 43,135 318,580
a Hunan and Cultural services - 642,586 - - - - - - 915 643,501
Debx service reserve - - 1832076 . - . . . - 1,832,076
COMMITTED TO:
General goveromend 4,660,24 - - 167,902 - - - - - 4,878,143
Public safety 1,425,366 - - - - - - - - 1,425,366
Public works - - - 6,668,392 495,245 4,406,262 319,%4% 5,943,851 - 17,833,739
Human and Cnhursl services - - - - B - - - 1,737,988 1,737,988
Employte benefis - - - - - - - - 41,113 41,113
ASSIGNED TO:
Generat povemment 33,442 - - - - - - - - 33,442
UNASSIGNED:
General povernmen 24,722,819 - - - - - - - - 24,722,819
Public safety 34,255 - - - - . - - - 34,255
Total fimd balances $33,126,607 $1,583,190 $1,832076 $63836294 §$495245 $4,406262 $ 319,989 §$5043.851 § 1,964,026  § 56,507,540
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A. RISK MANAGEMENT
1. Workers Compensation Benefits

The City maintains a self-funded workers compensation plan accounted for in the General Fund.
Commercial insurance is obtained to protect the City from excess losses greater than $1,000,000 per
individual claim for police and fire employees. Commercial insurance is obtained to protect the City from
excess losses greater than $400,000 per individual claim for all other employees. Benefits paid to
employees during fiscal year 2011 were $1,818,428.

Estimates of the liability for unpaid claims are actuarially determined based on observed patterns of claims
payments and case reserves development. Liabilities are based on the ultimate costs of settling claims,
inctuding inflation and other factors, and includes provisions for estimated claims adjustment expenses.

2. Unemployment Benefits

The City also maintains an Unemployment Compensation Revolving Fund (Employee Benefit Trust Fund)
established pursuant to state law. In addition to funding all valid claims, the City is required to maintain
the balance in the fund at not less than 2% of the first $7,000 paid each employee during the preceding
year. As of September 30, 2011, the required amounts were funded. Claims totaled $135,755 during
fiscal year 2011. Estimates of the liability for unpaid claims are based on patterns of claims payments.

3. Group Beneflts

Additionally, the City maintains the Employees' Group Benefit Fund {Internal Service Fund) to account for
the accumulation of revenues, principally contributions from the City of Jackson and employees to be used
to fund future liabilities and current payment of employer medical claims and related administration
expenditures of the City’s group benefit plan. Revenues totaled $8,076,210 and employee benefit costs
were $13,515,614 during fiscal year 2011. Claims incurred but not reported at September 30, 2011, in the
Employees' Group Benefit Fund are provided for in the fund balance of that fund based primarily upon an
actuary’s estimate,

4, Tort Liabllity

In compliance with the Tort Claims Act, Chapter 46 of Title 11 and as amended by the 1993 Legislature,
Section 11-46-17(3) requires all municipalities from and after October 1, 1993, to obtain such policies of
insurance, establish self-insurance reserves, or provide a combination of insurance and reserves
necessary to cover all risks of claims and suits for which the City of Jackson may be liable under the Tort
Claims Act. '

In order to assure compliance with the Tort Claims Act, House Bill 417 established the Mississippi Tort
Claims Board. Municipalities are required to submit plans of insurance, self-insurance and or reserves to
the Tort Claims Board for approval.

Municipalities may comply with the requirements of the Tort Claims Act by one of the following methods:
(1) Purchase of liability insurance, (2) Pooling of two or more municipalities or other political subdivision to
purchase liability insurance or to self insure, {3) Self-insure with the establishment of a self-insurance
reserve fund.
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A. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued):

4. Tort Liability (Continued):

The City of Jackson is in compliance by using method number three as indicated above. The 2011 fiscal
year budget had the monies necessary to establish the reserve fund at the required funding level.

Estimates of the liability for unpaid claims are actuarially determined.

For the past three years, the settlement amount for claims against the City has not exceeded the amount
of insurance coverage maintained by the City.

The following table provides a reconciliation of changes in the liabilites for claims for years ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010:

Unemployment Workers'
Employee Tort Benefits Compensation
Benefit Fund Claims Fund Benefits
2011:
Beginning Balance
$ 360,791 $ 2,788,833 $ - $ 5,108,260
Current Year Claims/Changes in Estimates 13,515,614 882,328 135,755 1,643,914
Clatms Payments 13,502,215 1,603,964 135,755 1,818,428
Ending Balance $ 284,190 $ 2,067,197 $ - $ 4,933,746
2010;
Beginning Balance
$ 785168 $ 2,616,890 $ - $ 4,389,677
Current Year Claims/Changes In Estimates 11,576,962 595,478 188,584 2,173,851
Clalms Payments 12,702,821 423,535 188,584 1,455,268
Ending Balance $ 360,791 § 2,788,833 $ - % 5,108,260

5. Other Risks

~ The City of Jackson is exposed to various other risks of loss related to theft of, damage to and

destructions of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The City purchases commercial
insurance policy covering smployee dishonesty up to $100,000 per employee with a $1,000 deductible.
The City carries casualty insurance in the amount of $300,000,000 with a $5,000 deductible to protect
against damage to property caused by natural disaster or other casualties. Amounts of setlements have
not exceeded insurance coverage in the past three years.

B. COMMITMENTS
During fiscal year 1993, the City entered into a revolving loan agreement with the Department of
Environmental Quality (DEQ) for loans to the Jackson Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund. The City

has pledged sales tax reimbursements from the State of Mississippi to repay the DEQ loans. The
outstanding balance of the revolving Ipans at September 30, 2011, was $13,797,968.
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Note 6 — Other Information (Continued):

D. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

Litigation

The City is defendant in a number of legal actions seeking actual and punitive damages. Contingencies
totaling $1,364,500 for which it is probable a loss has been incurred and are subject to reasonable
estimation are recognized in the financial statements in the governmental funds. The City is vigorously
defending all matters of litigation and believes there will be no material adverse financial effect.

The City of Jackson is the subject of an enforcement action by the United States Environmental Protection
Agency and there is a reasonable possibility that it will be assessed a civil penalty for violations of the
Clean Water Act, though the amount of any civil penalty is unknown at this time.

E. JOINT VENTURES

The following provides the summary financial information of the Jackson/Hinds Library System as of
September 30, 2011 {in thousands}):

Jackson/Hinds Library Sﬁ tem

Tolal assets $1,339
Tolal liabilities $ 178
Total fund equity $1.161
Total revenues 241418 (1)
Total expendltures $4127
Net increase {decrease) in fund balance $( 8B)
Total debt 8 -

(1) The percentage share of the joint venture applicable to the Cily of Jackson is fifty percent
(50%).

F. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

The City of Jackson participates In two retirement systems administered by the Public Employees'
Retirement System of Mississippi {PERS). Both systems are defined benefit plans and include a multi-
employer, cost-sharing pension plan and an agent multi-employer pension plan as described below:

Publlc Employees' Retirement System

1. Plan Description and Provisions

Substantially all City of Jackson full-time employees participate in PERS, a multi-employer, cost-
sharing, defined benefit public employee pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Benefit provisions are established by Section 21-20-201 of the Mississippi Code of 1942 as
annotated, and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. PERS issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. That information may be obtained by writing to Public Employee Retirement System,
PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 39201-1005 or by calling (601) 359-3589 or
1-800-444-PERS.
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l Note 6 — Other Information (Continued):

F. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued):

2, Description of Funding Policy

PERS members are required to contribute 9.00% of their annual covered salary and the City of
Jackson is required to contribute at an actuanally determined rate. The current rate is 12.00% of
annual covered payroll, The contribution requirements of PERS members are established and may
‘be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature.

Annual Pension Cost. For 2011, the City's annual pension cost of $9,627,790 for PERS was equal
to the City’s required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of
the September 30, 2011, acluarial valuation using the eniry age actuarial cost method, PERS'’s
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on
a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at September 30, 2011 was 23 years,

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS
(Dollar amounts in Thousands}

Fiscal Annual Percentage
Year Pension Of APC
Eunding Cost (APC) Contributed
9/30/09 8,006 100%
9/30/10 7.977 100%
9/30/11 9,628 100%

Disability and Relief- Munic¢ipal Retirement Systems Pensjon Plan

1. Plan Description

The City of Jackson contributes to the Municipal Retirement Systems and Fire and Police Disability
and Relief Fund (MRS), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by
the Public Employees' Retirement System of Mississippi. The City’s uniformed police officers and
firefighters employed prior to April 1, 1976, participate in MRS. Firefighlers and police officers
employed subsequent to April 1, 1976, are members of the Public Employees’ Retirement System
of the State as previously described. MRS provides retirement and disability benefits and death
benefits o plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by Sections 21-29,
Articles 1, 3, § and 7, Mississippi Code Ann. (1972) and annual local and private legislation.
Legislation may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. At September 30, 2011,
the date of the most recent actuarial verification, there were 2 participating municipal employees
and 654 retired participants and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits. PERS issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information
for MRS. That information may be obtained by writing to Public Employees' Retirement System,
PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 39201-1005 or by calling (601) 359-3589 or
1-800-444-PERS.
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Note 6 — Other Information (Continued):
F. EMPLOYEES'’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued):
2. Basis of Accounting

MRS uses the accrual basis of accounting. Employee and employer contributions are recognized
as revenue in the period in which employee services are performed, investment income s
recognized when earned. Expenses, including benefits and refunds paid, are recognized when
incurred. Investments for MRS are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national or
international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates.
Corporate bonds are valued based on yields currently available on comparable securities from
issuers of similar credit rating. Mortgage securities are vaiued on the basis of future principat and
interest payments and counted at prevailing interest rates for similar instruments. Short-term
investments are reported at market value when published prices are availabie, or at cost plus
accrued interest, which approximates market or fair value, For individual investments where no
readily ascertainable market value exists, the Public Employees' Retirement System, in consultation
with their investment advisors and custodial bank, has determined the fair values.

3. Funding Status and Progress

The actuarial accrued liability is a measure intended to (i) help users assess the plan's funding
status on a going-concern bhasis, and (i) assess progress being made in accumulating sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due. For the years ending September 30, 1994, and prior, the actuarial
value of assets was equal to book value. Beginning with the September 30, 1895, actuarial
valuation, the actuarial value of assets will be determined on a market related basis that recognizes
20% of the previously unrecognized and unanticipated gains and losses {both realized and
unrealized). Allocation of the actuarial present value of projected benefits between past and future
service was based on sefvice using the entry age actuarial cost method. Assumptions, including
projected pay increases, were the same as used to determine the system's annual required
contribution between eniry age and assumed exit age. Entry age was established by subtracting
credited service from current age on the valuation date,

As of September 30, 2011, the most recent actuaral valuation date, the plan was 51.6% funded.
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $127.5 million and the actuarial value of assets was
$65.8 million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $61.7 million. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $99,000, and the ratio
of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 62.298%.

4. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset

The net pension obligation or asset represents the cumulative difference since the effective date of
the statement between City's annual pension cost calculated pursuant to GASB 27 and the
employer's contribution to the plan, including the pension liability or asset at fransition. For
purposes of transition, funding deficiencies which occurred prior to October 1, 1987 are not required
to be considered but to do so is acceptable. However, information on fiscal years prior to October 1,
1987 is not available although considerable funding deficiencies occurred to that point. As a resuit
of the transition rules under GASB Statement No. 27, the net pension obligation is considerably less
than if the calculation were made considering alt applicable years of the plan. Consequently,
although the City has an unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $61,675 as of September 30, 2011,
the City has recorded a net pension asset of $14,201 in the accompanying government wide
statements in the governmental activities.
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Note 6 — Other Information (Continued):
F. EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM {(continued):
4, Annual Penslon Cost and Net Pension Asset (Continued):

The City's annual pension cost and net pension asset for the current year calculated pursuant to
GASB 27 is as follows (in thousands):

Annual required pension contribution $ (5,857)
Interest on net pension asset 1,093
Adjustments to annual required contribution (1,317}
Annual pension cost (6,081)
Confributions made . 6,620
Decreass in net pension asset 539
Net pension asset beginning of year 13,662
Net pension asset end of year $ 14,201

As the result of the issuance of $49,790 of general obligation bonds in 1997, the City's contribution
to the plan has been limited since that date to matching contributions on employee withholdings.
Since 2001, the City's unfunded actuarial accrued liability related to MRS has grown considerably
and the annual required contribution for fiscal 2011 is projected to be approximately $5,857. The
City’'s plans are to continue the present contribution level to the plan through fiscal 2011. At that
point the 1997 general obligation bonds will have been retired and tax millage presently used for
bond payments amounting to approximately $6.0 million will be diverted toward making annual
contributions to the plan. Projections of cash flow for the plan indicate contributions of
approximately $ 6.9 million in 2011 and growing to approximately $9.8 million through 2018 will be
necessary to meet the City's obligations under the plan. To account for the receipt of revenues,
property tax levies, and payments of bond principal and interest related to the bonds issued to
provide reductions in the accrued actual liability related to pensions of retired and disabled police

and fireman, all contributions are paid from in the Disability and Reiief Fund (Non-Major Fund}.

In 1997, the City issued $48,790,000 of General Obligation Bonds and contributed the proceeds to
the MRS plan to provide for a similar reduction in the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. As a
result of this contribution, the City has not recognized a net pensicn obligation (NPO}) in its financial

statements.

The entry age actuarial accrued liability was determined as part of an actuarial valuation of the
system (but not used for funding purposes) as of September 30, 2011. Significant actuanal
assumptions used in determining the entry age actuarial accrued liability include: (a) a rate of retum
on the investment of present and future assets of 8% per year compounded annually, (b} projected
salary increases of 4.5% to 6.0% per year compounded annually, attributable to inflation and
seniority/merit. The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that spread the
effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period. The
unfunded liability is being amortized over a closed 30 year period with 23 years remaining as of
September 30, 2011. At September 30, 2011, the unfunded actuariai accrued liability was

determined as follows;

Actuarial Accrued Liability {In Thousands}
Retirees and beneficiaries currently

receiving benefits $126,700
Active members 761

Vested terminated members not yet
receiving benefits -

Total actuarial accrued liability 127,461

Actuarial Value of Assets 65,786

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability $ 61,675
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Note 6 — Other Information (Continued):
F. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued):

4. Annual Pension Cost and Net Penslon Asset (Continued):

During the year ended September 30, 2011 the plan experlenced an estimated net change of
$(3,702) in the Actuarlal Accrued Liability.

5. Funding Policy

The schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information following the
notes to the financial statements presents muiti-year trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability
for benefits.

The funding policy for MRS provides for periodic employer contributions at actuanally determined
rates that are designed to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. In developing the
annual required contribution shown below, the normal cost and actuarial accrued liability are
determined using the entry age actuarial cost method. Unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being
amortized on an open basis as a level dollar amount over a period of 40 years. The City's active
MRS members contribute ten percent of their base salaries to the plan. This difference has
historically resulted in the actual contribution being less than the annual required contribution.

6. Annual Pension Cost

During the year ended September 30, 2011, conftributions totaling approximately $6,630,282
(36,620,526 employer and $9,756 employee) were made in accordance with contribution
requirements determined by the actuarial valuation of the system as of September 30, 2010. The
employer contributions consisted of approximately $17,330 for normal cost and administrative
expenses and $6,603,196 for amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. In addition to
the above contributions, the City has levied a special tax for the retirement of bonds issued to
provide funding for City's pension obligation for the year ended September 30, 2011,

7. Contributions Required and Contributions Made (Continued):

Three-Year Trend Information for MRS
(In Thousands)

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net Pension

Year Pension Of APC Asset

Funding Cost (APC) Contributed {NPO)

9/30/09 $ 4,981 7.9% $ 13,790

9/30/10 128 114.6% 13,662

9/30/11 (538) 117.0% 14,201
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G. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Effective for the 2009 fiscal year, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financlal
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. GASB Statement No. 45
establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of other postemployment benefits
(OPEB) expenses/expenditures and related liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and required
supplementary information. This Statement requires recognition of the cost of other postemployment
benefits during the periods when employees render their services and disclosure about actuarally accrued
liabilities related to past services and the status and progress of funding the benefits. The requirements of
GASB statement No. 45 were implemented prospectively beginning Cctober 1, 2007.

Plan Description

The City's CPEB plan provides post employment healthcare coverage, including dental benefits to eligible
individuals. Eligible individuals include all regular, full-time employees of the City, as well as permanent
part-time employees who work at least 20 hours per week, and their spouses and dependent children.
Employees must have eamned at least 25 years of service with the City in order to be eligible for retiree
healthcare coverage. Coverage continues at the election of the retiree untit age 65. Retirees must pay
the required monthly premium for either single or family coverage, as applicable. As of September 30,
2011, 156 retirees are eligible to receive benefits under the plan. The plan was established under
authority of the City Council and may be amended or abolished by council action.

Annual OPEB cost and Net OPEB Ohligation

The City's annual OPEB cost (expense) was calculated based on the annual required contribution of the
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to
cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over the actuarial amortization
period. The ARC was calculated as part of the actuarial valuation performed by an outside actuary
consultant. The following table shows the components of the government’s annual OPEB cost for the
year and the amount actually contributed to the plan during the year:

Govermmental Business-type Total
Actlvitles Activities OPEB Plan
Annual Required Contribution $5,038,099 $722,901 $5,761,000
Interest on net OPEB obligation 382,164 54,836 437,000
Adjustment to ARC {826,420) {118,580} (945,000)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 4,593,843 669,157 5,253,000
Less: Contributions made (618,284) (88,716} (707,000)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 3,975,669 570,441 4,546,000
Net OPEB obligation beginning 9,563,236 1,370,764 10,924,000

Net OPEB obligation end of year $13.528.795  _$1.941,205 $15470,000
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G. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued):

Trend Information for OPEB Plan:

Fiscal Annual Percentage of Net

Year OPEB Annual OPEB oPEBs
Ending Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
9/30/09 $7,905,000 10% $7,108,000
9/30/10 $5,214,000 27% 10,924,000
9/30/11 $5,253,000 13% 15,470,000

Funding status and funding progress:

The City funds the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. As of September 30, 2010, the most recent actuarial
valuation date, the plan was zero percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
$36,875,000 with no valued assets, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability {UAAL) of the same
amount. The covered payroll was $66,782,000 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was
55.2%. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probabllity of cccurrence of events far into the future, Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trand. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject
to continual revision and actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future.

Although, the actuarial accrued liability for the OPEB plan has increased, the City has not provided funding
for the plan.

Actuarial methods and assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan {the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and the plan
members. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce
the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the September 30, 2010 actuanial valuation, the projected unit credit method was used. It is amortized
as a level percent of payroil over a 15 year open period and a level-dollar payment. The actuaria
assumptions included a 4.0 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and an
annual healthcare cost trend rate of 10 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate trend rate of
6 percent after ten years. Both rates include a 2.75 percent inflation assumption. Currently there are no
assets set aside that are legally held exclusively for OPEB.

Note 7 — Prior Period Adjustment

In 2011, the City recorded an adjustment to accumulated depreciation for automotive and equipment. The
adjustment was reconciled to the detailed subsidiary depreciation schedule and comected previously
reported net assets as follows:

Adjustment to correct capital assets accumulated depreciation $ 692476
Total adjustment to capital assets accumulated depreciation $ 692,476
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Actuarial
Valuation
Date
9/30/2009
9/30/2010

9/30/2011

Actuarial
Valuation
Date
10/1/2008
10/1/2009

10/1/2010

CITY OF JACKSON
Required Supplementary Information

Employees’ Retirement Systems
Schedule of Funding Progress

September 30, 2011

DISABILITY AND RELIEF - MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEMS PENSION PLAN

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(@)
79,140
70,753

65,786

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(a)

(Dollar amounts in Thousands)

Actuarlal
Accrued
Liability
(AAL) -
Entry Age
(b}

133,079
131,163

127,461

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
for the OPEB PLAN

Unfunded
AAL (UAAL)
(b-a)
53,939
60,410

61,675

Funded
Ratio
(a/b)

59.5
53.9

51.6

(Dollar amounts in Thousands)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability

(AAL) -

Entry Age

(b}

52,430
36,875

36,875

Unfunded
AAL (UAAL)
(b-a)
52,430
36,875

36,875

79

Funded
Ratlo
(a/b)

0.00%
0.00%

0.00%

Covered
Payroll

(c)
191
93

99

Covered
Payroll

(c)
69,894
66,782

66,782

UAAL as a

Percentage

Of Covered
Payroll
[(b-a)/c]

28,240.3
64,957.0

§2,298.0

UAAL as a

Percentage

Of Covered
Payroll
[(b-a)/c]

750
56.2
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NON-MAJOR
GOVERNEMENTAL FUNDS






Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Parks and Recreation Fand

To account for the operation and maintenance of all City-owned parks. Financing is provided by
a 2-Mill annual property tax levy, admissions, fees and concessions. Appropriations are made
from General Fund sources to the extent that such tax levy and other revenues are not sufficient
to finance expenditures.

State Grant Fund
To account for proceeds of state grants or loans other than those grants or loans for Enterprise
Fund or Capital Projects Fund items.

Disability and Relief Fund

To account for the receipt of revenues, property tax levies, and payments of bond principal and
interest related to bonds issued to provide reductions in the accrued actual liability related to
pensions of retired and disabled police and fireman employed prior to April 1, 1976.

Capital Projects Funds

Industrial Park Bond Fund, 1982-A
To account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of $3,000,000 to establish an industrial park.

2009 Tax Increment Financing Revenue Bond
To account for bond proceeds issued to finance the costs of infrastructure improvements to the
River Hills project.

2009 Tax Increment Financing Revenue Bond
To account for bond proceeds issued to finance the costs of infrastructure improvements to the
Paul Moak project.

2009 Tax Increment Financing Revenue Bond
To account for bond proceeds issued to finance the costs of infrastructure improvements to the
Fondren project.

2010 Tax Increment Financing Revenue Bond
To account for bond proceeds issued to finance the costs of infrastructure improvements to the
King Edward Hotel project.



ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Receivable

Tatal Current Asset

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
Other Liabilities

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted

Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilties and Fund balances

City of Jackson
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmasjor Governmental Funds
As of September 30, 2011

Special Revenwe

Parks and " Disability and

Recreation State Grant Relief Total
$ 1,790,534 § 132,061 $ 1,479,347 $ 3,401,942
2,320,381 16,087 6,652,577 8,989,045
$ 4110915 $ 148148  §  8,131924 $ 12,390,987
$ 37,252 $ 6,358 $ 1,438,234 $ 1,481,844
2,308,680 - 6,652,577 8,961,257
126,995 - - 26,995
2.372,927 6,358 8,090,811 10,470,096
- 141,790 - 141,790
1,737,088 . 41,113 1,779,101
1,737,988 {41,790 AL 1020.891
$ 4,110,915 $ 148,148 $ 8131924 $ 12,390,987

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Capital Projects

2009 Tax Total Nonmajor
1982 1ndustrial 2009 Tax 2009 Tax Increment 2010 Tax Governmental
Park Bond Increment Bond Increment Bond Bond Increment Bond Total Funds
$ 35865 § 231§ 160 § 6,879 § - 43,135 % 3,445,077
- - - - - - 8,089,045
hy 35865 § 231 % 160 § 6,879 % - 43135 § 12,434,122
$ - % - 8 - % - % - - 3 1,481,844
- - - - - - 8,961,257
- - ~ - - - 26,995
- - - - - - 10,470,096
15,865 231 160 6879 - 43,135 184,925
- - - - - - 1,779,101
35,865 231 160 6,879 - 43,135 1,964,026
b 35865 % 231 § 160 § 6,879 § - 43,135 § 12,434,122
8]



City of Jackson
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expcnditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the year ended September 30, 2011

Special Revenue

Parks and Disability and
Recreation State Grant Relief Total
REVENUES
General property taxes $ 2,330,531 $ - $ 6,584,751 $§ 8915282
Intergovernmental 128,138 129,660 180,876 438,674
Admissions, fees, rentals and concessions 325,416 - 278 325,694
Interest 13,667 268 13,168 27,103
Other 4,081 - 9,850 13,931
Total revenues 2,801,833 129,928 6,788,923 9,720,684
EXPENDITURES
Current Operalions:
Personnel Services 3,636,519 2,898 - 3,639.417
Supplies 711,976 16,113 - 728,089
Other Services and Charges 974,750 51,286 6,775,756 7,801,792
Capital Outlay : 365,604 58,449 424,053
Debt Service:
Interest and service charges 47,583 - - 47,583
Total expenditurcs 5,736,432 128,746 6,775,756 12,640,934
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendilures - {2,934,599) 1,182 13,167 (2,920,250}
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES
Transfers in:
General Fund 3,240,366 - - 3,240,366
Proceeds of tax incremnet bonds - - - -
Total other financing sources 3,240,366 - - 3,240,360
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other uses 305,767 1,182 13,167 320,116
Fund balances at beginning of year 1,432,221 140,608 27,946 1,600,775
Fund balances at end of year 5 1,737,988 ] 141,790 5 41,113 § 1,920,891

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.
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Capital Projects

2009 Tax 2009 Tax 2010 Tax Total Nonmajor
1982 Industrial Fn¢crement 2009 Tax Increment Increment Governmental
Park Bond Bond Increment Bond Bond Bond Total Funds

-8 - - -8 -8 -8 8,015,282
- - - - - . 438,674

- 325,694
; 229 27,332
2,800,000 2,800,000 2,813,931

228 - -

— . —

228 - - 2,800,000 2,800,229 12,520,913

] ) - ; - - 3,639,417
- - - - . - 728,089
- - - - - - 7,801,792
- - - - - - 424,053

- - - - - - 47,583

. - - - - - 12,640,534

228 - - 1 2,800,000 2,800,229 (120,021)

- - 3,240,366
- - - - 2,800,000 2,800,000 2,800,000

- - - - 2,800,000 2,800,000 6,040,366

228 - - 1 - 229 320,345
35,637 231 160 6,878 - 42,906 1,643,681

35865 & 231§ 160 % 6,879 % - 3 43,135 3§ 1,964,026
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City of Jackson
Parks and Recreation Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2011

Budget Amount
Variance with
Final Budget -
Original Final Actual Amounts _ pesitive(negative)
REVENUES
General property taxes $ 2,283,620 $ 2,283,620 3 2,330,531 b 46,911
Intergovermmental 120,000 120,000 128,138 8,138
Adinissions, fees, rentals and concessions 309,800 309,800 325416 15,616
Interest - - 13,667 13,667
Other - - 4,081 4081
Total revenues 2,713,420 2,713,420 2,801,833 88,413
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations:
Personnel Services 4,200,547 4,146,079 3,636,519 509,560
Supplies 773,625 921,366 711,976 209,390
Other Services and Charges 1,179,943 1,267,522 874,750 292,772
Capital Qutlay 200,888 478,789 365,604 113,185
Debt Service:
Interest and service charges - - 47,583 {47,583)
Total expenditures 6,364,003 6,813,756 5,736,432 1,077,324
Excess (deficicncy) of revenues over expenditures (3,650,583) {4,100,336) (2,934,599 1,165,737
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in:
General Fund 3,240,366 3,240,366 3,240,366 -
Process from long term debt 123,000 128,000 - (128,000}
Total other financing sources (uses) 3,368,366 3,368,366 3,240,366 {128,000)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other uses {282,217) {731,970) 305,767 1,037,737
Fund balances at beginning of year 1,432,221 1432221 1,432,221 -
Fund balances at end of year $ 1,150,004 $ 700,251 3 1,737588 § 1,037,737




City of Jackson
State Grants Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2011

Budget Amount

Yariance with

Final Budget -
Original Final Actual Amount Miﬁve(negaﬁvc)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 118,765 $ 632,835 b 129,660 (503,175)
Interest - - 268 268
Total revenues 118,765 632,835 129,928 (502,907)
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations:
Personnel Services - 3,000 2,898 102
Supplies 250 3,580 16,113 {12,533)
Other Services and Charges 55,410 447,288 51,286 396,002
Capital Outlay 63,105 178,967 58,449 120,518
Total expenditures 118,765 632,835 128,746 504,089
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures - - 1,182 1,182
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in:
Special Revenue - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) . - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other uses - - 1,182 1,182
Fund balances at beginning of year 140,608 140,608 140,608 -
Fund balances at end of year } 140,608 $ 140,608 3 141,790 $ 1,182
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Disability and Relief Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

City of Jackson

For the year ended September 30, 2011

REVENUES
General property taxes
Intergovernmental
Admissions, fees, rentals and concessions
Interest
Other
Tolal revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current Operations:
Other Services and Charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in:
General Fund
Total other finaneing sourees (uses)

Exeess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other uses
Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

86

Budget Amount
Variance with
Final Budget -
Original Final Actual Amount  positive(negative)
$ 6,544,706 $ 6,577,684 $ 6,584,751 7,067
190,292 190,292 180,876 (9,416)
- - 278 278
- - 13,168 13,168
18,172 18,172 9,850 (8.322)
6,753,170 6,786,148 6,788,923 2,775
- - 6,775,756 _ (6,775,756}
- - 6,775,756 6,775,756}
6,753,170 6,786,148 13,167 6,772,981
6,753,170 6,786,148 13,167 6,772,981
27,946 27,946 27,946 -
$ 6,781,116 ¥ 6,814,094 b 41,113 6,772,981
—_— —t— _—_————ute— e



City of Jackson
Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

REVENUES

General property taxes
Current realty 1axes
Current personal taxes
Delinquent laxes
Automobile ad valorem taxes
Homestead exemption

Interest

Special assessments

Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General obligation bonds
Principal
Interest
Bank service charge
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances at beginning of year
Fund balances at end of year

For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-

Original Final Actual Amounts Positive (Negative)
2,233,270 % 2,361,845 % 2,322,867 §% (38,978)
877,050 877,050 840,771 (36,279)

28,201 28,201 119,376 91,175

384,079 384,079 433,907 49,328
186,662 168,176 97,423 (70,753)

- 651 15,135 14,484
- 52,947 8,260 (44,687)

- - 749,347 749,347

3,709,262 3,872,949 4,587,086 714,137

2,135,874 1,004,843 624,227 380,616

5,470,509 6,421,244 6,404,752 16,492
11,466 17,631 19,178 (1,547}

7,617,849 7,443,718 7,048,157 395,561
{3,908,587) (3,570,769) (2,461,071) (1,109,698)
5,790,4%0 6,693,231 2,491,080 (4,202,151)
2,775,033 4,420,322 (775,133) {5,195,455)
8,565,523 11,113,553 1,715,947 {9,397,606)

4,656,936 7,542,784 (745,124) 8,287,908

2,577,200 2,577,200 2,577,200 -

7,234,136 éf 10,119.984 3 1,832,076 $§ 8,287,908
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City of Jackson
1982 Industrial Park Bond Capital Project Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-
Actual Positive
REVENUES Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Interest 3 - b - $ 228 % 228
Total revenues - - 228 228
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations:
Other Services and Charges 34,675 34,905 - 34,905
Total expenditures 34,675 34,905 - 34,905
Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures (34,675) {34,905) 228 35,133
Net change in fund balances (34,675) (34,905) 228 35,133
Fund balances at beginning of year 35,637 35,637 35,637 -
Fund balances at end of year 3 962 b 732 $ 35;865 b 35,133
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City of Jackson
1998 GO Bond Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Variance
with Final
Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenue $ - % - 8 - % -
Interest - - 4,535 4,535
Total revenues - - 4,535 4,535
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations
Supplies 217 24 892 11,947 12,945
Other services and charges 1,122,680 996,175 515,888 480.287
Total expenditures 1,122,897 1,021,067 527,835 493,232
Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures (1,122,897}  (1,021,067) {523,300) 497,767
Net change in fund balances (1,122,897 (1,021,067) (523,300) 497,767
Fund balances at beginning of year 1,018,545 1,018,545 1,018,545 -
Fund balances at end of year $ 510453522 $ (2,522) § 495245 § 497,767

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson

2003 GO Public Improvement Bond Fund
Schedule of Revenucs, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the year endcd September 30, 2011

REVENUES

Intergovernmental Revenue
Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current Operations
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget-

Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 6,917,943 $ 6,917,943 $ 453882 % (6,464,061)
27,737 27,737 27,028 - (709)
6,945,680 6,945,680 480,910 - (6,464,770)
37,263 17,179 - 17,179
40,000 34,318 - 34,318
11,305,602 11,389,788 399,005 10,990,783
39,500 39,500 - 39,500
11,422,365 11,480,785 399,005 11,081,780
{4,476,685) {4,535,105) 81,905 4,617,010
{4,476,685) {4,535,105) 81,905 4,617,010
4,324 357 4,324 357 4,324,357 -
$ (152328) § (210,748) § 4406262 3 4,617,010

The notes to the finaneial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
2006 GO Bond Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the year ended September 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

Yariance
with Final
Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Interest b - % - 3 12,999 % 12,999
Total revenues - - 12,999 12,969
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations
Other services and charges 2,491,080 2,491,080 - 2,491,080
Total expenditures 2,491,080 2,491,080 - 2,491,080
Deficiency of revenues over {under) expenditures _ (2,491,080) (2,491,080) 12,999 2,504,079

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)
Transfers out

Debt Service Fund - - 2,491,080 {2,491,080)

Total other financing sources and uses - - 2,491,080 (2,491,080)

Net change in fund balances {2,491,080) {2,491,080) (2,478,081) 12,999
TFund balances at beginning of year 2,798,070 2,798,070 2,798,070 -
Fund balances at end of year $ 306,990 8§ 306990 $ 31998% 3 12,999

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
2009 GO Bond Fund -
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Chaunges in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30,2011

Budpeted Amounts

¥Yariance
with Final
Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Interest by - 3 - $ 49536 § 49,536
Total revenues - - 49 536 49,536
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations
Personnel services 442,769 215,949 16,253 199,696
Supplies 1,053,229 906,972 652,021 254 951
Other services and charges 8,019,789 8,940,613 3,595,369 5,345,244
Capital outlay 275,000 275,000 - 275,000
Total expenditures 9,790,787 10,338,534 4,263,643 6,074,891

Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures  (9,790,787)  (10,338,534) (4,214,107) 6,124 427
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)

Total other financing sources and uses - - - -

Net change in fund balanccs (9,790,787)  (10,338,534) (4,214,107) 6,124,427
Fund balances at beginning of year 10,157,958 10,157,958 10,157,958 -
Fund balances at end of year $ 367,171 $ (180,576) § 5,943,851 § 6,124,427

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
2009 Tax Increment Financing Bond Capital Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditurcs and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget and Actunl
For the year ended Scptember 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)

REVENUES
Interest 3 - % - 3 - 3 -

Total revenoes - - - N

EXFENDITURES
Current Opcrations:
Other services and charges - - - -

Total expenditures - R N N

Deficiency of revenucs over (under) expenditures - - - -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)
Transfers in - - . -
Proceeds from Tax Inerement Financing Bond - - - -

Total other financing scurces and uses - - - R

Nel change in fund balances - - - -
Fund batances at beginning of ycar - - 6,878 {6,878)

Fond balances at cnd of year 3 - % - 3 6,878 % 6,878

The notes 1o the financial statements are an inlegral pari of (his statement,
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2009 Tax Incremeat Financing Bond Capital Projcct Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2011

REVENUES

Interest
Tatal revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current Operations:
Other Services and Charges
Total expenditures

Deficicncy of revenues over {(under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES (USES)
Transfers in:
Proceeds from Tax Increment Bonds

Tatat other financing sources {uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund batances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

City of Jackson

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-

Actuat Positive
Amounts (Negative)
b $ -8 -
231 -
b b 231 5 -
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City of Jackson
2009 Tax Increment Financing Bond Capital Project Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2611

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-
Actual Positive
REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Interest 3 - 3 - $ - % .
Total revenues - - - -

EXPENDITURES

Current Operations:
Otlier Services and Charges - - - .
Total expenditures - - - -

Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures - - - .

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in:
Proceeds from Tax Increment Bonds - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -

Net change in fund balances - R - -
Fund balances at beginning of year - - 160 -

Fund balances at ¢nd of year b - 3 - 5 160 $ -
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City of Jackson
2010 Tax Increment Financing Bond Capital Project Fuads
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2011

Budgeted Amonnts
Variance with
Final Budget-
Actual Positive

REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Interest $ - 3 - $ - 3 -
Total revenues - - - -

EXPENDITURES
Current Operations:

Other Services and Charges 2,800,000 2,800,000 2,800,000 -
Total expenditures 2,800,000 2,800,000 2,800,000 -

Deficiency of revenues over {under) expenditures {2,800,000) {2,800,000) ~(2,800,000) -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in:
Proceeds from Tax Increment Bond 2,800,000 2,800,000 2,800,000 -

Total other financing sourees (uses) 2,800,000 2,800,000 2,800,000 -

Net change in fund balances - - - _
Fund balances at beginning of year - - - -

Fund balances at end of year $ - $ - $ - 3 -
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~ NON-MAJOR
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
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Nonma jbr Proprietary

Madison Sewage Disposal System Fund

To account for costs of construction, operation and maintenance of the East Madison County
Sewage Disposal System. The City of Ridgeland, Mississippi will be responsible for the service
contracts with Madison County participating in the system.,

Transportation Fund

To account for operational costs of the City’s transit system., Deficiencies in revenues over
expenses are financed by the City.






City of Jackson
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds - Nonmajor Funds

As of September 30, 2011
Madison
Sewage Transportation Totals
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalent 3 38,571 % - 38,571
Intergovernmental Receivable ~ 1,003,728 1,003,728
Total Current Asset 38,571 1,003,728 1,042,299
Property, Plant and Equipment, at Cost
Land - 450,000 450,000
Buildings ‘ - 187,903 187,903
‘Water plant, distribution system and equipment 532,942 410,690 943,632
Automotive and other equipment - 10,352,607 10,352,607
532,942 11,401,200 11,934,142
Less: accumulated depreciation (202,038) {4,731,390) (4,933,428)
330,904 6,669,810 7,000,714
Construction in progress 13,800 698,676 712,476
Net property, plant and equipment 344,704 7,368,486 7,713,190
Total Assets $ 383,275 8,372,214 8,755,489

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Fonds - Nonmajor Funds
As of September 30, 2011

Madison
Sewage Transportation ‘Totals

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 3 21906 § 931,470 $ 953,376

Due te¢ other funds - 2,928,944 2,928,944

Compensated absences - 6,552 6,552
Current portion of long term debt:

Lease Obligations - 218,489 218,489

Total current Liabilities 21,906 4,085,455 4,107,361

Long Term Debt (less amounts classified as current liabilities):

Lease obligations - 650,933 650,933
Total long-term debt - 650,933 650,933
Total ligbilities 21,906 4,736,388 4,758,294

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 344,704 6,499,064 6,843,768
Unrestricted 16,665 (2,863,238) (2,846,573)
Total Net Assets ' 361,369 3,635,826 3,997,195
Total liabilities and net assets $ 383275 % 8,3725214 3 8,755,489

The notes to the financial staternents are an integral part of this statement.
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I City of Jackson
Combining Statement of Revennes, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
I Proprietary Funds - Nonmajor Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011
I Madison Sewage_ Transportation Totals
Operating Revenues:
Sales to Customers 5 - h 528,744 b 528,744
I Other Revenue - 517,340 517,340
Total Operating revenues - 1,046,084 1,046,084
I Operating Expenses:
Personnel Services - 172,071 172,071
Supplies 2,480 982,276 984,756
Other services and charges 37,986 6,627,059 6,665,045
Depreciation 10,655 931,724 942,379
I Total operating expenses 51,121 8,713,130 8,764,251
Operating Income (loss) (51,121) (7,667,046) {7,718,167)
I Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest revenue 723 177 900
l Gain (loss) on sale of fixed assets - 90,965 90,965
Total nonoperating revenues {expenses) 723 91,142 91,865
I Loss before contributions and transfers (50,398} (7,575,904) (7,626,302)
Capital contributions from grants - 2,568,423 2,568,423
l Operating Transfers In:
General Fund - 5,566,566 5,566,566
Enterprise Funds : 60,139 - 60,139
l Total transfers in (out) 60,139 5,566,566 5,626,705
I Change in Net Assets 9,741 559,085 568,826
Total net assets - beginning 351,628 3,076,741 3,428,369
I Total net assets - ending ] 361,369 3 3,635,826 3 3,997,195
l The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users
Receipis from other revenue
Payments to suppliers
Paymeats to employees

Net cash used for
QOperating activities

Cash Flows froin Noncapiial Financing Actlvities
Transfers In
Net cash provided by noncapital and related
financing activities

Cash Flows from Caplial and Related
Financing Activitles
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from sales of capital assets
Proceeds from capital debt
Principal paid on capital debt
Proceeds from capital contributions
Net cash provided by capital and related
financing activities

Cash Flow Provided by Tnvesting Activities:
Interest on investments
Net cash provided by invesling activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cagh equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Casb
Used for Operating Activities:
Operating loss
Depreciation expense
{Increase) decrease in other receivable
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds
Increase (decrease) in accounts payabile
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activitics

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

City of Jackson
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds - Nonmajor Fonds
For the year ended September 30, 2011

Madison Sewage Transportation Totals
§ - 3 528,744 $ 528,744
- 673,954 673,954
(24,447) (3,174,5983) (8,199,430)
- (174,973) (174.973)
(24,447) (7,147,258) (2,171,705)
60,139 5,566,566 5,626,705
60,139 5,566,566 5,626,705
2,156 (868,153) (865,99T)
- 90,965 90,965
- 71,300 71,300
- (282,020) (282,020)
- 2,568,423 2,568,423
2,156 1,580,515 1,582,671
723 177 900
723 177 900
38,571 - 38,571
¥ 38,571 3 - $ 38,571
$ {51,121) $ {7,667,046) § {7,718,167)
10,655 931,724 942,379
- 156,614 156,614
- 385,969 385,969
16,019 (951,617) (935,598)
- (2,902) (2,902)
26,674 519,788 546,462
$ (4447 § (7,147.258) § ~(7,171,705)




FIDUCIARY FUNDS

.







Fiduciary Funds

Unemployment Compensation Revolving Fund
To account for money held in trust to fund wnemployment claims pursuant to State law,

Charitable Trust Fire and Police Fund

To account for contributions from the public sector which are held in trust for pohce and fire
allowable claims,

Mausoleum Trust Fand

To account for finds to be used for maintenance and upkeep of the Henry Mausoleum Jocated in
Kemnaghan Cemetery.

Tax Collections
To account for receipt of tax collections for and subsequent payment to the Jackson/Hinds

Library System, Jackson Muuicipal Separate School District, Capital City Community
Convention Center, and Jackson Convention & Visitors Burean,



CITY OF JACKSON
ALL TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Unemployment  Charitable

Compensation Trust Mausoleum
Revolving  Fire and Police  Trust
Fund Fund Fund Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 303,680 % 9007 § - §$ 312,687
Investment at fair value:
Certificate of deposit - - 32,270 32,270
Total assets $ 303,680 ¢ 9,007 $ 32270 §$ 344957
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities: :
Payables to others 5 - 3 - 3 - 3 -
Total liabilities - - - -
Nel Assets:
Held in trust 303,680 9,007 32,270 344 957
Total net assets 303,680 9,007 32,270 344957
Total liabilities and net assets $ 303,680 § 9,007 § 32,270 § 344,957
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CITY OF JACKSON
! ALL TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES TN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2611
Compensation Trust Mausoleum
! Revolving  Fire and Police  Trust
Fund Fund Fund Total
I Additions:
Interest $ 1,869 % 113 § - § 1,982
Other additions 207.000 - - 207,000
Total additions 208,869 113 - 208,982
I Deductions:
General government
! Trust funds 115,756 - - 135,756
Total deductions 135,756 - - 115,756
Change in Net Assets 73,113 113 - 73,226
Net assets at beginning of year 230,567 8,894 32,270 271,731
Net assets at end of year $ __303,680 3 9,007 $ 32,270 $ 344957
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CITY OF JACKSON
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 39, 2011

ASSETS LIABILITIES
Cash
and Cash Total Other Total
Equivalents Assets Liabilities Liabilities
Capital City Commumity Convention Center
Balance at October 1, 2010 $ 10,468 § 10,468 $ 10,468 % 10,468
Additions 3,970,879 3,970,879 3,970,879 3,970,879
Deductions 3,449 604 3,449,604 3,446,604 3,449,604

Balance at September 30,2011

Jackson Convention & Visitors Bureau

$ 531,743 % 531 743

b 531,743 % 531,743

Balance at October 1, 2010 ] 130 § 130 $ 130 § 130
Additions 3,000,663 3,000,663 3,000,663 3,000,663
Deductions 3,000,613 3,000,613 3,000,613 3,000,613
Balance at September 30, 2011 $ 180 § 180 3 180 § 180
3 e B —§ ———
Jackson/Hinds Library System
Balance at October 1, 2010 5 -5 - 3 - 5 -
Additions 1,541,977 1,541,977 1,541,977 1,541,977
Deductions 1,541,977 1,541,977 1,541,977 1,541,977
Balance at September 30, 2011 $ - § - $ - % -
e — ————— | — ]
Jackson Municipal Separate School District
Balance at October 1, 2010 $ -3 - 3 - % -
Additions 3,449,604 3,449,604 3,449,604 3,449,604
Deductions 3,449,604 3,449,604 3.449 604 3.449.604
Balance at September 30, 2011 5 - 3 - b - 3 -
| ————————— — B
Total - All Agency Funds: :
Balance at October 1,2010 $ 10,598 § 10,598 3 10,598 $ 10,598
Additions 11,963,123 11,963,123 11,963,123 11,943,123
Deductions 11,441,798 11,441,798 11,441,798 11,441,798
Balance at September 30, 2011 b 531,923 % 531,923 3 531,923 § 531 923
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CAPITAL ASSETS







CITY OF JACKSON
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE (1)
SEPTEMBER 230, 2011 AND 2010

2011 2010
Governmental funds capltal assets:
Land $ 14,526,622 § 14,528,418
Buildings 81,480,260 81,408,510
Automotive and equipment: 69,980,950 67,947,081
Infrastructure 214,244,644 214,244,644
Construction in progress 84,070,080 80,433,492
Total governmental funds capltal assets $ 464,311,557 $ 458,562,145
Investment in govemmental funds capltal assets by source:

Assets prior fo 1885 not segregated
by sources $ 14,002,713 § 14,002,713
General Fund revenues 76,313,930 75,505,754
Special Revenue Fund revenues 95,112,469 93,579,039
Speclal Assessment bonds 2,123,934 2,123,934
General Obligation bonds 232,501,954 229,094,148
Limited Obligation bonds 4,330,429 4,330,429
Debt Service Fund revenues 65,000 65,000
Federal grants 39,377,018 39,377,918
State grants 52,261 52,261
County grants 430,949 430,949
Total govenmental funds capital assets $ 464,311,557 §$ 450,562,145

()} This schedule presents only the capital asset balances (excluding accumulated depreciation)

related to govemmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported In intemal service funds

are gxcluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of intemal service funds
are included as governmental activities [n the statement of net assets.
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STATISTICAL SECTION







STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Jackson’s comprehensive annual financial report presents
detail information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the
city’s overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends | 113

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City of
Jackson's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 118

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City of Jackson’s most
significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity 122
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City
of Jackson’s current levels of outstanding debt and the city’s ability to issue additional
debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 127
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City of Jackson’s financial activities take
place.

Operating Information 129
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how

the information in the City of Jackson’s financial report relates to the services the city
provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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City of Jackson
Governmental Activities Tax Revenues By Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Motor Alcohelic
Fiscal Property Sales Franchise Fuel Beverage
Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Total
2011 54,594 30,798 1,823 28 268 £7,511
2010 50,483 29,995 1,890 31 262 82,661
2009 53,256 32,301 1,572 31 274 87,434
2008 48,769 35,428 1,477 31 282 85,987
2007 44,240 35,838 1,442 31 304 81,855
2006 41,324 37,993 1,398 31 302 81,048
2005 40,509 35,673 1,406 31 267 77,886
2004 41,660 35,882 1,152 i 261 78,986
2003 41,660 35,097 1,376 31 249 78,413
2002 38,285 35,685 1,836 30 250 76,086
Source: General Fund Budget and Actual Statement
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City of Jacksen
Principal Property Taxpayers
September 30, 2011
(amounty expressed in thousands)

2011 2002
Percentage of Percentage of
Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxahle
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
Bell South 3 - - s 74,080 1 8.19%
Entergy - - 46,333 2 5.12%
Atmos Energy - - - -
Jackson HMA - - - -
AT&T - - 12,023 3 1.33%
Trustmark National Bank - - - -
Parkway Propertics - - - -
Central MS Health Systems - - 9,712 4 1.07%
Jackson Medical Offices - - - -
Wal-Mart/Sam's Wholesale Club - - 3,954 6 0.44%
McCarty Holman, Inc. - - 2,234 10 0.25%
Deposit Guarenty National Bank - - - -
Metrocenter - - 3,919 7 0.43%
MS Baptist Medical Center - - 3,714 8 0.41%
Home Depot - - 2,770 9 031%
Gulf South Pipeline Company LP - - - -
Delphi Auto Systems LLC - - - -
Ilinois Central Railroad - - - -
Esaton Aerospace LLC - - - -
Mississippi Valley Gas Company - - 8,431 5 0.93%
Totals 3 - 0.00% $ 167,170 18.48%
Source: Hinds County
The data was not available from Hinds Coumty in 2011.
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Clty of Jackson
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activitles Debt
As of September 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Outstanding AppHeable Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes:
Hinds Cownty 5 43,730 76.57% s 33,484
Jackson Public Schools 142,845 100.00% 142,845
Subtotal, overlapping debt 176,329
City of Jackson direct debt 131,720 100.00% 131,720
Total direct and overlapping debt $ 308,049

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages by City of Jackson, Hinds County, and Jackson Public Schools.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coipeide with the geographic boundaries of the city. This schedule estimates the portion
of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the City of Jackson.

This process recognizes that, when considering the City of Jackson ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt

burden borne by the residents and business should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident,
and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.

The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable agsessed property values. Applicable percentages were estimated

by determining the portion of the county's taxable assessed value that is with the government's boundaries and dividing it by the county’s
total taxable assessed value.
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Employer

State of Mississippi

University of Mississippi

U.S. Government

Jackson Public School District
Baptist Health Systems

St. Dominic Health Services
City of Jackson, Mississippi
Jackson State University
AT&T

Central MS Medical Center

City of Jackson
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2001

Source: MetroJackson Chamber of Commerce 2009

Note: Data for 2001 is currently not available.

2011
Percentage

of Total City

Employees Rank  Employment
31,556 1 17.13%
3,000 2 4.34%
5,500 k! 2.98%
4814 4 2.61%
2,875 5 1.56%
2,600 6 1.41%
2,323 7 1.26%
1,667 8 0.90%
1,300 9 0.71%
1,200 10 0.65%
61,835 33.56%
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BANKS, FINLEY,
WHITE & CO.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor Harvey Johnson, Jr.
and Honorable Members of the City Council
Jackson, Mississippi

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of City of Jackson, Mississippi (the City), as of and for the
year ended Septemnber 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City of Jackson, Mississippi’s
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 30, 2012. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generatly accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Jackson, Mississippi's internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of City of Jackson, Mississippi's internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Jackson,
Mississippi's internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described

in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over
i financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore,

there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses
have been identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that
we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control such there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose describsd
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that might be deficiencles, significant deficiencies, or matenial
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that
we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified certain
deficiencies in Intemal control over financial reporting, described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as itern 2011-2 that we consider to be a significant deficiency in
internal control over financial reporting. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination

308 HIGHLAND PARK COVE ¢ RIDGELAND, MS 39157 » (601) 353-5423 » FAX (601) 353-5426
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of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Jackson, Mississippi's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs as items 2011-1. .

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of City of Jackson, Mississippi in
a separate letter dated March 30, 2012.

City of Jackson, Mississippi's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit City of Jackson,
Mississippi's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information of the Mayor, City Council, and management,

others within the organization, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

QMIQMJWM f' Lo

March 30, 2012
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City of Jackson
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

Federal Pass Through Cumenl Year
CFDA Grantar Federsl
Federal Agency/Program ‘Number Number Expendilures
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Food and Nutrition Serviee (MS Department of Education - Pass Through)
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10,558 V0000718080 311,907
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 10.558 311.907
Surmzner Food Service Program for Children (MS Dopartment of Education - Pass Through) 10.559 V0000718080 65,209
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 10.559 65,200
(Cenlral Mississippi Planning and Development District - Pass Through)
Commodity Suppleinental Food Program 10.565 378-L-25 24219
Commodity Supplemental Food Program 19,565 396-E-25 34,088
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 10,565 $8.307
(Natural Resource Conservation Service - Pass Throngh)
Emergency Walershed Protection Program 10,923 68-4423-10-1982 57,462
SUBTOTAL CFPDA NUMBER 10.923 57.462
i TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 532,885
U.8. Department of Compmierce
Direct Program:
Economic Adjustment Assistance 11,307 04-69-04180 90,835
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 11.307 90,835
TOTAL U.5. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 90,835
3 [ H Urban Development
i Direct Program:
CDBG - Entittement Grant Cluyter:
Camununity Development Block Grant - Neighborhood Stabilization Program 14218 B-08-MN-28-0001 325,189
Commumnity Developrment Block Grant 14.218 B-O9-MC-28-0003 1,539,014
Canmmnity Developnent Block Grant 14.218 B-10-MC-28-0003 260,304
SUHBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14,218 2,124,509
Community Development Block Grant - ARRA 14.253 B-09-MY-28-0003 75,766
i SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14.253 75,766
TOTAL CDBG - Entitlement Gran( Clusier 2,200,275
Emergency Shelter Granis Program 14.231 5-09-MC-28-0002 36,716
Emergency Shelter Grants Prograin 14,231 S-10-MC-28-0002 73,430
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 1[4.231 110,146
HOME Investment Partpership Program 14.239 M-04-MC-28-0200 29,205
’ HOME investmeni Partnership Program 14.239 M-05-MC-28-0200 177,289
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14239 M-06-MC-28-0200 16,944
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 M-07-MC-28-0200 299,400
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14,239 M-08-MC-23-0200 23,493
HOME Investment Partrership Propram 14.239 M-05-MC-28-0200 18,530
3 SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14,239 564,861
Housing Opporhumities for Persons with AIDS 14.241 MS-H09-FoQ1 482,053
Housing Oppartunities for Persons with AIDS 14.241 MS-H10-Fi)1 675,550
H SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14,241 1,158,503
Economic Developraeni Initistive-Special Project, Neighborhood Initiative dnd Miscellancous Grants 14.251 B-09-SP-MS-0134 3,760
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14.251 3,760
ﬁ Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program - ARRA 14357 S5-09-MY-28-0002 631,671
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14.257 631,671
I TOTAL U.S, DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOFPMENT 4,669,216
a The sccompanying notes are an lntegral part of this schedule,
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City of Jackson
Schedule of Expenditurcs of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011
Federal Pass Through Current Year
CFDA Grantor Federal
Federal Agency/Progratn Muwnber Number Expenditores
U.S. Departmeny of Justice
Direct Program:
Justice Assistence Grant (JAG) Cluster:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2007DJBX0570 237,734
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2008DBX0627 16,016
Edward Byrne Momorial Justice Assigtance Grant Program 16,738 2009DIBX 1159 73,411
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16738 2010DIBX 0594 298,291
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16,738 625,452
Edward Byme Memorial fustice Assislance Granl Prograin - ARRA 16,804 200988893222 260,389
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16,804 260z389
TOTAL Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Clusier: §85,841
Public Safety Partnership & Community Policing Grant 16,710 2009CK WX0603 3N
Public Safety Partnership & Community Policing Grent £6.710 2010CKWX0084 11,000
Public Safety Parinership & Community Policing Gran( 16.710 SSULWX0025 24,233
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16.710 417,970
Developing, Testing And Demonstmting New Programs 16.541 2009-J1L-FX-0009 104,418
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBEER 16.541 104,418
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 1,408,229
LS, Dopartment of Labor
Divect Program:
WA Pilots, Demontrations, and Rescarch Projects - Homeless Transitiona) fob Project 17.261 - EA-20630-10-10-60-A-28 84,423
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 17.261 84.423
Older Americans Act .
Senior Commmunity Sexvice Employment Program (Title V) 17.235 AD-21862-11-55-A-24 131,984
Semor Community Service Employment Program (Title V) 17,235 AD-20017-10-60-A-24 620,352
Sermor Community Service Employment Program (Digital Inclusicn Initiative) 17.235 AD-20017-10-60-A-24 DII 16,610
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 17235 768,548
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 853,369
LS. Depal n
Federal Transit AdmmistnaLion
Direct Proprams:
Federal Translt Cluster:
Federa] Tramsit Formula Grants 20.507 M5-90-%0-81 1,772,232
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20,507 1,772,232
Federal Transit Capital Investment Grants 20.500 MS5-03-00-12 199,153
Federal Transit Capital Investment Grants 20.500 MS5-03-00-13 15,689
Federal Transit Capital Investment Granis 20.500 MS-03-00-14 367,150
Federsl Transit Capital Inveshnont Grants 20,500 MS-04-00-03 213,900
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.500 795,862
TOTAL Federal Transit Chuster 2,568,124
(Mississippi Department of Tranaportation-Pass Through)
DHE-7300-00{001) LPA
Highway Planning and Construction {Lynch Street lmprovements) 20.205 104587/801000 453,882
ER-0250-00¢030) LPA
Highway Plarming and Construction (Debris Remaval) 20,205 1050827701000 158,083
SRSP-0250-00{037) LPA
Higirway Planning and Construction (Safe Routes) 20.205 105967/402000 7,104
(Missiasippi Department of Transpaortation-Pass Throagh)
Urban Youth Corps Grani 20.205 STP-9999-00{915) — 34870
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.205 106227/114000 34,870
TOTAL Highway Planning and Constraction Cluster 654,939
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 323.063

The accompanying notes are sn Integral part of this schedude,
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Ycar Ended September 30, 2011

City of Jackson

Federal Pass Through Current Year
CFDA Grantor Federal
Federal Agency/Program Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Energy
Direct Programs:
Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Progmm (ARRA) 81.128 DE-SC0003032 417,881
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 51.128 417.881
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 417,881
LS, Departmest of Health and Human Services
Special Programs for (e Aging Title [f1, Part B, Granis for Supportive Services and Senior Centers
{Central M5 Planning and Development District - Pass Through)
Tiile 111-B Outreach i 93.044 377-L-25 10,000
SUBTOTAL CFDA WUMBER, 93.044 10,000
Special Pragrams for the Aging Title 111, Part C, Nutrition Services
(Central MS Planning and Development Distriet - Pass Through)
Congregate Nutrition Program (Non-cash) 93.045 3ITE-L-25 83,181
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93.045 83,181
{State of MS Office of Child Nutrition - Pass Tlrough)
Child Care Development Bk Grant 93.575 625Q601A 868,192
Child Care Devolopment Block Grant 93.575 625Q611A 164,708
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93.575 1,032,900
Title XX-Social Services Block Grant
{Ceuntral MS Planning and Developtnent District - Pass Through)
Transportation 93.667 396-E-25 92,020
Home Delivered Meals (Mon-cash) 93,667 396-E-25 128,887
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93.667 220,907
TOTAL U.S, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERYICES 1,346,988
Corporation for Nationat amd Comujupity Service
Mississippi Cotnarission for Volumteer Service - Pass Tirough
AMERICORPS 94,006 10AC105584 226,465
AMERICORPS 94.006 11AC122587 11,537
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 94.0046 238,002
TOTAL CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE 238,002
11.S. Office of Natlonal Drug Contrgl Policy
{MS Gulf Coast HIDTA - Pass Through)
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) 95.001 T10PGCP540Z 2,100
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) 95.001 111PGCPS40Z 22,583
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 95.001 24,683
TOTAL U.S, OFFICE OF NATIONAL DRUG CONTROL POLXY 24,683
LL§: Pepartment of Homeland Secnrity
Mississippi Department of Public Safety (Pass-Through) .
Homeland Security Graot Program 97.067 oTMM221 33,523
Homeland Security Grant Program 97,067 08MM221] 98,960
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.057 08HS22IT 26,858
Honxeland Security Grant Program 97.067 SOHS21T 8,739
Homeland Secarity Grant Progmm 97.067 09HS221T 1,985
Homeland Security Granl Program 97.067 09LE221] 12,815
Homeland Secorily Granl Prograin 97.067 S9LE221 48,745
Homeland Sccurity Grant Program 97.067 10LE221 9,394
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 97.067 261,019
TOTAL US. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 261,019
13,066,170

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

The accompanying notes are an jntegral part of this schedule.
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I City of Jackson
Schedule of Expendimres of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011
’ Federal Pass Through Current Year
CFDA Grimlor Federal
Federal Agency/Programn Number Number Expengiturcs
i LS. ariment nd Urban Developmen
The City of Jacison has the following loans payable to the Principal Balance
1L_S. Department of Housing an Urban Development al Sepicmber 30, 2011, at 97302011
The funds were uzed to stimulate retiewal and economic development
aclivities in the Capitst Center Development Arca
Conumynity Development Block Grant - Section 108 Loan Guaraotecs
’ varigbie/fixed rate note daicd September 15, 2008 14.248 B-07-MC-28-0003 H 6,599,930
TOTAL 11.5. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 3 6,999,930

i

! The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this schedule, 139
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CITY OF JACKSON
Notles to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant
Activity of the City of Jackson and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of State, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented
in, or used in the preparation of, the general-purpose financial statements,

NOTE 2 - CONTINGENCY

The City has responsibility for expending grant funds in accordance with specific instructions
from its funding sources. Any deficits resulting from over expenditures and/or questioned
costs are the responsibility of the City.

Any unexpended grant funds at the end of the grant period may be refundable or carried over
to the following pericd at the discretion of the funding sources. Notwithstanding the audits by
independent certified public accountants, all costs included in this report remain subject to
audit by the agencies providing financial support within the limits of the Single Audit Act of
1996, as amended. The determination as to whether costs will be allowable or unallowable
under the grants will be made by representatives of the funding sources having authority to
make and enforce contracts.

NQOTE 3 - SUB-RECIPIENTS

Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the City of Jackson provided federal
awards to sub recipients as follows: '

Amount Provided
Program Title Federal CFDA Number to Subrecipients
Community Development Block

Grant - Entitlement Grants Cluster 14.218 $ 168,768
Home Investment Partnership _

Program 14.239 457,234
Emergency Shelter Grant Program 14.231 110,146
Housing Opportunities for Persons

With Aids 14.241 ’ 1,139,629
Homeless Prevention and Rapid

Re-Housing Grant — ARRA 14.257 631,671

Total $ 2,507,448
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BANKS, FINLEY,
WHITE & CO.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT
COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Honorable Mayor Harvey Johnson, Jr.
and Honorable Members of The City Council
Jackson, Mississippi

Compliance

We have audited the City of Jackson, Mississippl's (the City) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of City of Jackson, Mississippi's major federal
programs for the year ended September 30, 2011. City of Jackson, Mississippi's major federal
programs are identified In the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of City of
Jackson, Mississippi’s management. Our responsibility is to express an oplnion on the City of
Jackson, Mississippl's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audis of Statses, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Jackson,
Mississippi’s compliance with those reguirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Jackson,
Mississippi’s compliance with those requirements. '

!

As described in item({s) 2011-3 through 2011-6 in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs, City of Jackson, Mississippi did not comply with requirements regarding
Procurement & Suspension & Debament and Sub-Recipient Monitoring that are applicable to its
Community Development Block Grant, Home I[nvestment Partnership Program, Housing
Opportunities for Persons With Alds and Edward Bymes Memonal Justice Assistance Grant —
ARRA. Compliance with such requirements is necessary, In our opinion, for City of Jackson,
Mississippi to comply with the requirements applicable to those programs.

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, the City of
Jackson, Mississippi complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that couid have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended September 30, 2011.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of City of Jackson, Mississippi is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and

a
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grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered City of
Jackson, Mississippi's internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express
an apinion on the effectiveness of City of Jackson, Mississippi's internal contro! over compliance.

A deficiency in inlternal conlrol over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A malerial weakness in internat
conlrof over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

City of Jackson, Mississippi's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit City of Jackson,
Mississippi's responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information of the Mayor, City Council, and management,

others within the organization, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

BW’/JZﬁ/ WM é a2

March 30, 201
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2011

Section 1: Summary of Auditor's Results

Type of auditor’s report issued on the basic financial statements. Ungualified
Material noncompliance relating to the financial statements. None

intemal control over financial reporting:

a. Material weaknesses identified? None
b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material
weaknesses? Yes

Federal Awards:

4,

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance with major federal programs
Ungualified for all major programs except for Home Investment Partnership Program,

Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids Grant, Edward Byrne Memorial Justice
Assistance Grant Program - ARRA and Community Development Block Grant

Intemal control over major programs:

a. Material weaknesses identified? None
b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material
weaknesses? None

Any audit findings reported as required by Section ___.510(a) of OMB Circular A-1337  Yes
Federal programs identified as major programs:

CFDA #10.559 U. S, Department of Agnculiure
Child and Adult Food Care Program

CFDA #14.218 U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Community Development Block Grant

CFDA #14.239 U. 8. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Home Investment Partnership Program

CFDA #14.241 U. S, Department of Housing and Urban Development
Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS

CFDA #14.253 U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
ARRA — Community Development Block Grant

CFDA #14.257 U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
ARRA - Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program
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CFDA#16.710 U. S, Department of Justice
Public Safety Parinership & Community Policing Grant

CFDA #16.804 U. S, Department of Justice
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program - ARRA
Assistance Discretionary Grants Program

CFDA #17.235 U.S. Department of Labor
Senior Community Service Employment Program
Senior Community Service Employment Program (ARRA)

CFDA #20.507 U. S. Department of Transportation
Federal Transit Formula Grant

CFDA #81.128 U. S. Depariment of Energy
Energy Efficiency and Conservation Biock Grant - ARRA

CFDA #93.575 U. S. Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Development Block Grant Cluster

8 The dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $391,985

9. The City of Jackson did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.

Section 2; Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Audit

PAYROLL CHANGES IN PERSONNEL FILES

201141

Statement of Condition

Our audit festing of payroll transactions revealed that in 29 out of 40 personnel files tested,
adequate documentation was not available to support the employees’ current pay rate.
Cause of Condition

Failure to follow established procedures for pay rate changes.

Effect of Condition

An excessive amount of time was utilized in verifying the employee’s current salary pay rate.

Criteria

The requirements of the City of Jackson Department of Personnel and Management's Employee
Handbook Section 7.1.1 — states “The Department of Personnel Management shall maintain
records showing administrative actions including records of employment history of each
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employee, performance evaluation records and related files and correspondence. In addition, the
Department of Personnel Management shall prepare, maintain and preserve records on the
wages, hours and other conditions and practices of employment of all City employees.”

Auditor's Recommendation

The City should strengthen internal administrative controls to ensure that the personnel
department updates all changes in an employee’s wages and documents these changes in the
employee’s personnel file so that, at any point in time, the employee's current salary can bhe
verified.

TIMELY REQUESTS FOR GRANT REIMBURSEMENTS ~ PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
2011-2

Statement of Condition

During our audit, we noted that there are no formal procedures in the City's Public Works
Department for requesting reimbursement of grant expenditures and that the current practice has
contributed to the requesting of reimbursements near the end of projects or near the end of the
City’s fiscal year.

Cause of Condition

No formal procedures within the Public Works Department regarding requesting reimbursement
for grant expenditures.

Effect of Condition

The recording of revenue is delayed and grants receivables are not accurately reflected during the
year

Criteria
The City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effeclive intemal control over financial

reporting. ,

Auditor's Recommendation

We strongly suggest that the City implement procedures within the Public Works Department that
require requests for grant reimbursements to be made on at least a quarterly basis. Additionally,
a grant accountant should be assigned within this department to ensure for the timely recording of
revenues and to ensure that requests for grant reimbursements are submitied in a timely manner,
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Section 3: Major Federal Awards Program Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding 2011-03 - SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT

Grant Program/CFDA#: Home Investment Partnership Program/ 14.239; Housing
Opportunities for Persons with Aids/14.241; Community Development Block Grants/ 14.218

Statement of Condition

During the suspension and debarment testing, we noted that the City entered into three (3)
contracts for goods and/or services for an amount equal to or exceeding $25,000 and four (4}
sub-recipient confracts in which no documentation was maintained to support the fact that the
contractor or sub-recipient had not been suspended or debarred or otherwise excluded from
receiving the contract.

Cause of Condition

Failure to document that a search was performed t{o ascertain that the contractor was not
suspended or debarred.

Effect of Condition

Non-compliance with grant requirements.

Criteria

The OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement states that entities are prohibited from
contracting with or making sub-awards under covered transactions involving federal funds to
parties that are suspended or debarred or whose principals are suspended or debarred. Covered
transactions include procurement contracts for goods or services equal to or in excess of $25,000
and all non-procurement transactions {e.g., sub-awards to sub recipients).

Auditor's Recommendation

Although we were able to determine that the contractors and sub-recipients were not suspended
or debarred, we recommend that the department(s) responsible for monitoring and obtaining
suspension and debarment certifications require a suspension and debarment clause in all
procurement contracts involving federal funds for goods or services equal to or in excess of
$25,000 and all sub-recipient contracts.

Finding 2011-4 — SUB RECIPIENT MONITORING
Grant Program/CFDA#: Community Service Block Grant/ 14.218

Statement of Cgndition

The City of Jackson is required to monitor the performance of CDBG sub recipients against goals
and performance standards and sub recipients are required to submit to the City a copy of their
annual audit(s) within 180 days after their fiscal year end {if required).

A review of sub recipient monitoring reports and audit reports revealed ten (10) instances in which
sub-recipient audit reports were not submitted within 180 days after the fiscal year end.
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Cause of Condition

Lack of compliance with established policies and procedures.

Effect of Condition

Sub-recipient audit reports were not submitted in a timely manner.

Criteria

Pursuant to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 Part Il Subpart C -~ Auditees,
paragraph.300, which states that applicants will establish and maintain Internal control over
Federal Programs that provide reasonable assurances that the auditee is managing federal
awards in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements
that could have a material effect on each of its Federal Programs.

Auditor's Recommendation

The City should strengthen internal administrative controi procedures to ensure that sub recipients
submit monthly status reports and audit reports within the prescribed time peried and also ensure
that all reports submitted clearly indicate the date of submission.

Finding 2011-5 — SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING

Grant Program/CFDA#: Home Investment Partnership Program/ 14.239

Statement of Condition

During the Subrecipient Monitoring test, we noted that the City did not ensure that one (1)
subrecipient’s audit report was submitted within 180 days of their fiscal year end as required in the
sub-grantee agreement.

Cause of Condition

Lack of compliance with established policies and procedures.

Effect of Condition

Sub-recipient audit reports were not submitted in a timely manner.
Criteria

The City is responsible for ensuring that subrecipients expending $500,000 or more in Federal
awards during the subrecipient's fiscal year for fiscal years ending after December 31, 2003 as
provided in OMB Circular A-133 have met the audit requirements of OMB Circular A-133 and that
the required audits are completed and submitted to the City within 180 days of the end of the
subrecipient’s fiscal year.
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Auditor's Recommendation

We recommend that the City strengthen internal administrative control procedures to ensure that
subrecipients submit audit reports within the prescribed time period as noted in the sub-grantee
agreement.

Finding 20116 — SUB-RECIPIENT MONITORING
Grant Program/CFDA#: Edward Bymes Memorial Justice Assistance Grant - ARRAJ 16.804

Statement of Condition

During the Sub-recipient Monitoring test, we noted that the City did not request and review the
audit report of their sub-grantee.

Cause of Condition

Lack of compliance with established policies and procedures.

Effect of Condition

The sub-recipient audit report was not requested and reviewed to note any findings related to the
sub-grant award,

Criteria

The City is responsible for ensuring that sub-recipients expending $500,000 or more in Federal
awards during the sub-recipient's fiscat year for fiscal years ending after December 31, 2003, as
provided in OMB Circular A-133, have met the audit requirements of OMB Circular A-133 and that
the required audits are completed and submitted to the City.

Auditor's Recommendation

We recommend that the City strengthen internal administrative control procedures to ensure that
sub-recipient audit reports are requested and reviewed in adherence to the City's External
Funding Manual.
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

2010-1 FINDING NO. 2 - SECTION 2

Current Status: Corrected

2010-2 FINDING NO. 1 - SECTION 2

Current Status: Corrected

2010-3 FINDING NO. 2 - SECTION 3

Current Status: Not Corrected

2010-4 FINDING NO. 3 - SECTION 3

Current Status: Not Corrected, repeated as finding 2011-3
2010-5 FINDING NO. 4 - SECTION 3

Current Status: Corrected

2010-6 FINDING NO. 5-SECTION 3

Current Status: Not corrected, repeated as finding 2011-5
2010-7 FINDING NO. 2 - SECTION 2

Current Status: Corrected
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200 South President Street
Post Office Box 17
Jackson, Mississippi 39205-0017

Department of Administration

Harvey Johnson, Jr.
Mayor of the City of Jackson

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

03/30M2

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Tha City of Jackson respectfully submits the following corrective action pian for the year ended
September 30, 2011.

Name and address of independent public accounting firm: Banks, Finley, White & Company
308 Highland Park Cove, Ridgeland, MS 39157

Audit period: Year Ended September 30, 2011

The findings from the September 30, 2011 schedule of findings and questioned costs are discussed
below. The findings are numbered consistently with the numbers assigned in the schedule, Section 1 of
the schedule, Summary of Audit Results, does not include findings and is not addressed.

2. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT
Finding No, 2011-1 PAYROLL CHANGES IN PERSONNEL FILES

Recommendation: The City should strengthen internal administrative controls to ensure that
the personnel department updates all changes in an employee’s wages and documents these
changes in the employee's personnel file so that, at any point in time, the employee's current
salary can be verified. -

Action Taken: The City has approved several cost of living pay increases that may not be
reflected in an employee’s file unless that employee has had some type of personnel action to
ocecur which requires a PER-3 form, which is the necessary required documentation of that
personnel action where it would reflect an employee's current salary at that time. The two (2)
cost of living increases are as follows:

g

Effective 10/01/2008, the City approved a $50/month cost of living pay increase for current and
future employees and a $100.00/month cost of living pay increase for current and future sworn
police officers and firefighters.

Effective 01/01/2012, the City approved a $79.18/month cost of living pay Increase for current
and future school crossing guards, for current and future permanent and full-time employees, and
for current and future permanent part-time employees. Excluded from the approved pay
adjustments were Senior aides, Americorps trainees, elected officials, interns, and other
temporary part-time classifications.

Finding No. 2011-2 TIMELY REQUESTS FOR GRANT REIMMBURSEMENTS - PUBLIC
WORKS DEPARTMENT
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Finding No. 2011-2 TIMELY REQUESTS FOR GRANT REIMBURSEMENTS - PUBLIC
WORKS DEPARTMENT

Recommendation: We strongly suggest that the City implement procedures within the Public
Works Department that require requests for grant reimbursements to be made on at least a
quarterly basis. Additionally, a grant accountant should be assigned within this department to
ensure for the timely recording of revenues and to ensure that requests for grant reimbursements
are submitted in a timely manner.

Action Taken: The Public Works Department is now requiring that the MDOT reimbursement
forms are submitted with the invoice, so that the City of Jackson can submit reimbursement from
MDQT on a monthiy basis instead of quarterly.

FINDINGS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Finding 2011-03 ~ SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT

Grant Program/CFDA#: Home Investment Partnership Program/ 14.239; Housing
Opportunities for Persons with Aids/14.241; Community Development Block
Grants/ 14.218

Recommendatlon: Although we were able to determine that the contractors and sub-recipients
were not suspended or debarred, we recommend that the department(s) responsible for
monitoring and obtaining suspension and debarment certifications require a suspension and
debarment clause in all procurement contracts involving federal funds for goods or services equal
to or in excess of $25,000 and all sub-recipient contracts.

Action Taken: The City has determined that the contractors and sub-recipients were not on the
suspension and debarment list. Verification of a search and supportlng documentation can be
located in the file.

Finding 2011-4 — SUB RECIPIENT MONITORING
Grant Program/CFDA#: Communlity Service Block Grant/ 14.218

Recommendation: The City should strengthen internal administrative cortrol procedurss to
ensure that sub recipients submit monthly status reports and audit reports within the prescribed
time period and also ensure that all reports submitted clearly indicate the date of submission.

Action Taken: The City has taken the auditor's recommendation to strengthen its internal
administrative control procedures to ensure that annual audit reports are received within the
prescribed time period and that all reports submitted clearly indicates the date of submission
through implementation of the following Office of Housing & Community Development's policies:

1. All Subrecipients’ audit reports will be received in through the Office of Housing & Community
Development's Office Coordinator. Staff member(s) will date stamp, distribute to program
compliance staff member and filed in the appropriate agency folder.

2. The Office of Housing & Community Development will implement an electronic tracking
system through Microsoft Outlook that will notify staff members of audit report due dates from
each funded agency a month in advance of report due date.

3. The Office of Housing & Community Development will utilize the OMB Circular A-133 Single
Agency Audit Certification form supplied by Internal Auditors for all funded agencies. This
form will be completed by the funded agencies annually and placed in their files.
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Finding 2011-5 — SUB-RECIPIENT MONITORING
Grant Program/CFDA#: Home Investment Partnership Program/ 14.239

Recommendation: We recommend that the City strengthen internal administrative control
procedures to ensure that sub-recipients submit audit reports within the prescribed time period as

_noted in the sub-grantee agreement.

Action Taken: Subsequently, the OMB Circular A-133 Single Agency Audit Certification form for
the agency has been completed. Based on their certification form, West Jackson CDC did not
meet the threshold requirements of the Single Audit Act relating to the preparation and submittai
of an annual audit report.

Finding 2011-6 — SUB-RECIPIENT MONITORING

Grant Program/CFDA#: Edward Byrnes Memorial Justice Assistance Grant ~
ARRA/ 16.804

Recommendation: We recommend that the City strengthen internal administrative control
procedures to ensure that sub-recipient audit reports are requested and reviewed in adherence to
the City's External Funding Manual.

Action Taken: Subsequently, the City of Jackson has received the Hinds County audit and
reviewed the audit as it relates to the Edward Byrnes Memorial Justice Assistance Grant — ARRA.
There were no findings related to the current year and prior year findings have been corrected.

If the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development has questions regarding this plan,
please call me at (601) 960-2209.

incerely yours,

Director of Administration
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'WHITE & CO.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

| “ BANKS, FINLEY,
|

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the Honorable Mayor Harvey Johnson, Jr., and
Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Jackson, Mississippi

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Jackson, Mississippi (the City) as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated
March 30, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards.

As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State
Auditor, we have also performed procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and
regulations. However, providing an opinion on compliance with state laws and regulations
was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The results of those procedures and our audit of the basic financial statements disclosed no
material instances of noncompliance with state laws and regulations.

This report is intended solely for the information of the Mayor, City Council, management
others within the organization, Office of the State Auditor and federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities and is not intended to be and shouid not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.
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CITY OF JACKSON
SCHEDULE OF BONDS OF CITY OFFICIALS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

1) Company: Porter's Insurance Agency
Limits of liabllity: Honesty Blanket
Position Bond Coverage
Position Coverage per each
All employees except Clty Council (7} $100,000

Mayor, City Administrative Officer,
Director of Administration, Chlef of Pollce,
Deputy Chief of Police, City Clerk,

Termm of bond

Deputy Cierk (8)
2) Company: Porter's Insurance Agency
Fortson's Insurance Agnecy
Fisher Brown Botirell Insurance
Statewlde General Insurance
Limlts of liabllity: Surety Bond coverage as follows:
Posltion Coverage per gach
City Coundl (7) $100,000
Mayor $100,000
Clty Administrative Officer $50,000
Assistant Chief Administrative Cfficer $50,000
Clty Clerk $50,000
Director of Administration $50,000
Chief of Police $50,000
Assistant Pollce Chief $50,000
Deputy Chief of Police $50,000
Assistant City Clerk $50,000
Deputy Clerk (6) $50,000
Deputy Clerk . $50,000
Deputy Clerk $50,000
154

03/28M11 - Indefinite

Tem of bond

02/17/11 - 07/06/13

07/01/11 - 07/01112

03/29/11 - 03/29M12

03/29/11 - 03/2912

04/15/11 - 04/15M12

05/01/11 - 05/0112

01/02/11 - 01/02/12

07720111 - 0720112

02/24/11 - 051112

05/10/11 - 05/10M2

02/25M11 - 0822112

02/25/11 - 0822112

02/25/11 - 08/22/12
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RECEIVED



BANKS, FINLEY,
WHITE & CO.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Honorable Mayor Harvey Johnson, Jr., and
Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Jackson, Mississippi

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of The City of Jackson, Mississippi
(City),as of and for the year ended September 30, 2011, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, we considered
the City's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

However, during our audit, we became aware of several matters that are opportunities for strengthening
internal controls and operating efficiency. The memorandum that accompanies this letter summarizes our
comments and suggestions regarding those matters. This letter does not affect our report dated March
30, 2012 on the financial statements of the City.

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already
discussed many of these comments and suggestions with various City personnel, and we will be pleased
to discuss these comments in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these
matters, or to assist you in lmplementlng the recommendations. Our comments are summarized as
follows:

Maintaining Property Records

The City currently maintains detail property records of all capital assets acquired. However, according to
GASB 34 reporting of capital assets, only those capital assets with a per item cost greater than or equal to
$5,000 is required to be depreciated. During the audit of the depreciation schedules for capital assets,
items costing less than $5,000 had to be separated to arrive at the current year depreciation amounts. We
also, noted that numercus items remained on the detail depreciation schedules that had been sold and
disposed of in prior years. ‘

Suggestion

The City should revise its detailed property inventory records to include only those items with a per item
cost greater than or equal to $5,000 and a separate property inventory records of items costing less than
$5,000. This will allow the City to be in compliance with the GASB 34 reporting Model and also comply
with the State Law, which require the City to maintain an accounting of capital assets with a cost of $500,
Additionally, all capital asset items that have heen sold or disposed of should be removed from the detail
depreciation schedules in order to provide an accurate accounting of capital assets currently owned by the

City.
City’s Response

The City has modified its property inventory records by separating the inventory to include those items with
a per item cost of $5,000 or greater and one that has a per item cost of less than $5,000. Those inventory
items of $5,000 or greater has been separated and depreciated in compliance with GASB 34.Those
inventory items with cost of less than $5,000 will be maintained for inventory control purposes. Assets that
have been sold or disposed of have been removed from the depreciation schedules.
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Closing Construction in Progress Projects

During the audit of construction in progress over the past two (2) years, we found that several CIP projects
remain on the CIP detail reports (excel spread sheets) for which there have been little or no activity.
Additionally, the Public Works Department of the City has failed to respond to the Finance Department's
request to identify and confirm certain CIP projects that have been completed or closed over the past two
(2) years. We also found that numerous CIP projects that had been completed and closed in prior years
remained on the detail CIP schedules.

Suggestion

The City shouid implement internal administrative control procedures to identify all CIP projects that have
been completed and closed. Once the completed and closed CIP project has been identified, such project
should be removed from the CIP detail schedule (excel spread sheet) and placed on a separate excel
spread worksheet so that these projects can be easily identified. The necessary adjustments should be
made to the accounting records to reflect those projects that have been completed and move the cost
from the CIP general ledger account to the appropriate capital asset account so that the cost can be
depreciated.

City’s Response

The Public Works Department has initiated a policy to ensure that all CIP projects that have been
completed are closed in a timely fashion. Upon final payment requests from the contractor and approval
by the City Council to close the project, the Public Works Department will promptly notify the Department
of Administration Finance Division that the project has been closed. The Finance Division will then initiate
all entries to close the project and establish the capital asset account so that the cost can be depreciated.

Sub-Recipient Audit Reports

During our audit, we noted that sub-recipient contracts entered into by the City of Jackson contain a
clause that requires a sub-recipient to submit their annual audit report within 180 days of their fiscal year
end. The agreement, however, does not provide a basis for the City to determine if the sub-recipient is
required to have an annual audit. :

Suggestion

We strongly suggest that the City implement internal administrative controls that require sub-recipients to
document, on an annual basis, whether they are required to have an annual single audit. The OMB
Circular A-133 and the 2003 Single Audit Act set the guidelines for single audits. Any state, local
government or non-profit entity expending more than $500,000 in federal awards in a fiscal year is
required to have a single audit in accordance with the OMB Circular A-133 and the 2007 Single Audit Act
as amended. The sub-recipient must identify all federal programs they administer and if the total
expenditures are greater than $500,000, a single audit is required. The sub-recipient can submit a City
prepared form that will determine whether an audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the 2007
Single Audit Act, as amended are required to be performed. This document will also indicate whether an
audit is not required and will provide a basis for that decision.

City’s Response

The City will develop an intemal document to require sub-recipients to respond to the City as to whether or
not they are required to have a single audit under the guidelines of OMB Circular A-133 and the 2007
Single Audit Act as amended. Based on the response received, the City will request a copy of the single
audit within 180 days of their fiscal year end.



This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Mayor, the City Council, and
others within the organization and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.
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March 30, 2012



